
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
MAY 21, 2007 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days 
in advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 
 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
I. Enhance the livability and safety of the community  
II. Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of        

City government 
III. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment 
IV. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally 
V. Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public 

needs 
VI. Emphasize regionalism and incorporate creativity into the annual 

strategic planning process 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

 -  -  

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

May 21, 2007 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317   

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Father Stratton Dorozenski – St. Nicholas 
Greek Orthodox Church 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) Presentation by Oakland County Commissioner Tim Burns on Various Topics ... 1 
b) Service Commendation – Ann Tyrrell ................................................................... 1 
c) Service Commendations Presented to Troy SeniorNet Computer Lab Steering 

Committee – Mike Brady, Pam Brady, Bette Gay, Zora Hargrave, Jim Sauter, 
Bob Treharne, and Lee Watkins ........................................................................... 1 

d) Falun Dafa Day – May 21, 2007........................................................................... 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Conditional Rezoning Application (File No. CR-002) – Proposed Grand Troy Villas, 
West Side of Rochester Road, North of Wattles Road, Section 15 – CR-1 to R-1T 1 

C-2 Rezoning Application (File Number Z-625 B) – Southwest Corner of Square Lake 
and Niles, Section 9 – R-2 to O-1 2 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact 
the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 
 

 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 3 

D-1 Hooters v. Troy – Proposed Consent Judgment 3 

CONSENT AGENDA: 4 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 5 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 5 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 5 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): 5 

a) Service Commendation – Homes for Our Troops................................................. 5 
b) Service Commendation – Linda Thielfoldt ............................................................ 5 
c) Proclamation in Recognition of Falun Dafa Day – May 21, 2007.......................... 5 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 5 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – State of Michigan Cooperative 
Purchasing Agreement MiDEAL – Toro Lawn Maintenance Equipment............... 5 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – State of Michigan Cooperative 
Purchasing Agreement MiDEAL – John Deere..................................................... 6 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: Travel Authorization and Approval to 
Expend Funds for Council Member Dave Lambert’s Travel Expenses – 
National League of Cities (NLC) Community and Economic Development 
Steering Committee Meeting ................................................................................ 6 

E-5 Morrell v Troy, et al 6 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 6 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 7 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Historic District Commission; Municipal Building 
Authority; and Youth Council 7 

F-2 Standard Resolutions 1, 2 and 3 for Paving of the East ½ of Eckford – Section 15, 
SAD #06.202.1 9 



 
 

 

F-3 Approval of Project Plan for Expansion and Improvements at the Bharatiya 
Temple, 6850 N. Adams, and Waiver of Jurisdiction of the Troy Economic 
Development Corporation for the Issuance of Bonds 10 

F-4 Bid Waiver – Sanitary Sewer Televising Inspection Equipment Upgrade 11 

F-5 Scheduling a Joint Meeting with the Chamber of Commerce 12 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 13 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 13 

a) Rezoning Application (File Number Z-722) – Northwest Corner of Maple and 
Thorncroft, East of Maplelawn, Section 29 – R-C to B-3 – June 4, 2007............ 13 

G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted 13 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 13 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 13 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 13 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 13 

REPORTS: 13 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 13 

a) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – January 18, 2007........................ 13 
b) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – February 15, 2007 ...................... 13 
c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – April 4, 2007 .............. 13 
d) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – April 4, 2007 .............. 13 
e) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – April 5, 2007............................. 13 
f) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – April 11, 2007 ......... 13 
g) Library Advisory Board/Final – April 12, 2007..................................................... 13 
h) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final- April 17, 2007 ................................................... 13 
i) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – May 3, 2007............................. 13 
j) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – May 8, 2007............................................. 13 

J-2 Department Reports: 14 



 
 

 

a) City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – April 30, 2007....................................... 14 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 14 

a) Letter of Thanks to Jeff Biegler, Ed Carpus and the Troy Parks and 
Recreation Department from March of Dimes WalkAmerica .............................. 14 

b) Letter of Thanks to the Troy Police Department from Bambi Mansfield 
Regarding the Evanswood Threat ...................................................................... 14 

c) Letter to Chief Craft from the FBI National Academy Associates Michigan 
Chapter Commending the Performance of Lynn McDaniel ................................ 14 

d) Letter to Chief Craft from the FBI National Academy Associates Michigan 
Chapter Commending the Performance of Sergeant Bjork and Officers 
Fitzpatrick and Kaptur......................................................................................... 14 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 14 

J-5  Calendar 14 

J-6  Law Day 2007 14 

J-7  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission – Notice of 
Hearing for the Customers of the Detroit Edison Company – Case No. U-15244 14 

STUDY ITEMS: 14 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 14 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 14 

CLOSED SESSION: 14 

L-1 Closed Session: 14 



 
 

 

RECESSED 15 

RECONVENED 15 

ADJOURNMENT 15 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 15 

Monday, June 4, 2007 ............................................................................................. 15 
1. Troy Downtown Development Authority’s (TDDA’s) Development Plan and the 

Big Beaver Corridor Study.................................................................................. 15 
2. Kostal of America, Inc. - 350 Stephenson - Request for Industrial 

Development District (IDD)................................................................................. 15 
3. Kostal of America, Inc. - 350 Stephenson - Industrial Facilities Exemption 

Certificate (IFEC)................................................................................................ 15 
4. Rezoning Application (File Number Z-722) – Northwest Corner of Maple and 

Thorncroft, East of Maplelawn, Section 29 – R-C to B-3 – June 4, 2007............ 15 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 15 

Monday, June 4, 2007 Regular City Council ......................................................... 15 
Monday, June 18, 2007 Regular City Council ....................................................... 15 
Monday, July 9, 2007 Regular City Council........................................................... 15 
Monday, July 23, 2007 Regular City Council......................................................... 15 
Monday, August 6, 2007 Regular City Council...................................................... 15 
Monday, August 20, 2007 Regular City Council.................................................... 15 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 21, 2007 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Father Stratton Dorozenski – St. 
Nicholas Greek Orthodox Church 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  
a) Presentation by Oakland County Commissioner Tim Burns on Various Topics 
b) Service Commendation – Ann Tyrrell 
c) Service Commendations Presented to Troy SeniorNet Computer Lab Steering 

Committee – Mike Brady, Pam Brady, Bette Gay, Zora Hargrave, Jim Sauter, Bob 
Treharne, and Lee Watkins  

d) Falun Dafa Day – May 21, 2007             
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Conditional Rezoning Application (File No. CR-002) – Proposed Grand Troy Villas, 
West Side of Rochester Road, North of Wattles Road, Section 15 – CR-1 to R-1T 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-05- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The City is in receipt of a proposed Conditional Rezoning Agreement and related 
Site Plan documents, as per Section 03.24.00 of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance; 
 
WHEREAS, The CR-1 to R-1T conditional rezoning request, located on the west side of 
Rochester, north of Wattles, in Section 15, part of parcel 88-20-15-477-036, being 2.27 acres in 
size, is described in the following legal description and illustrated on the attached Certificate of 
Survey drawing: 
 

T2N, R11E, SE 1/4 of Section 15 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 21, 2007 
 

- 2 - 

 
Commencing at the southeast corner of said Section 15; thence N 00°16’21” W, 687.40 
ft.; thence West, 75.00 ft. to the west right-of-way line of Rochester Rd. (150 ft. wide) 
being the Point of Beginning; thence West, 250.00 ft.; thence N 00°16’21” W, 365.00 ft.; 
thence S 89°52’34” E, 282.01 ft.; thence S 00°16’21” E, 244.39 ft.; thence West, 32.00 
ft.; thence S 00°16’21” E, 120.00 ft. to the Point of Beginning.  Containing 2.27 acres, 
more or less, and subject to easements and restrictions of record; and 

 
WHEREAS, The conditional rezoning was recommended for approval by the Planning 
Commission; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the CR-1 to R-
1T Conditional Rezoning Agreement and related Site Plan documents; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk 
to sign the Conditional Rezoning Agreement on behalf of the City of Troy; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the City of Troy Zoning 
District Map. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-2 Rezoning Application (File Number Z-625 B) – Southwest Corner of Square Lake 

and Niles, Section 9 – R-2 to O-1 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-05- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
(a) Proposed Resolution – Approval of Z-625 B
 
RESOLVED, That the R-2 to O-1 rezoning request, located on the southwest corner of Square 
Lake and Niles, in Section 9, part of parcels 88-20-09-227-011 and 88-20-09-227-004, being 
0.648 acres in size, is described in the following legal description and illustrated on the attached 
Boundary Survey drawing: 
 

T2N, R11E, NE 1/4 of Section 9 
 

Lots 1, 2, 3, 42 and 43, inclusive, of Pleasant View Subdivision (Liber 31, pg. 39 of 
Oakland County Plats).  Containing ±0.648 ac. more or less, and subject to easements 
of record; 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS The City of Troy Zoning 
District Map. 
 
Or 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 21, 2007 
 

- 3 - 

(b) Proposed Resolution – Denial of Z-625 B
 
RESOLVED, That the R-2 to O-1 rezoning request, located on the southwest corner of Square 
Lake and Niles, in Section 9, part of parcels 88-20-09-227-011 and 88-20-09-227-004, being 
0.648 acres in size, is described in the following legal description and illustrated on the attached 
Boundary Survey drawing: 
 

T2N, R11E, NE 1/4 of Section 9 
 
Lots 1, 2, 3, 42 and 43, inclusive, of Pleasant View Subdivision (Liber 31, pg. 39 of 
Oakland County Plats).  Containing ±0.648 ac. more or less, and subject to easements 
of record; 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DENIES the rezoning request from 
R-2 to O-1. 
 
Or 
 
(c) Proposed Resolution – Postponement of Z-625 B 
 
RESOLVED, That the R-2 to O-1 rezoning request, located on the southwest corner of Square 
Lake and Niles, in Section 9, part of parcels 88-20-09-227-011 and 88-20-09-227-004, being 
0.648 acres in size, is described in the following legal description and illustrated on the attached 
Boundary Survey drawing: 
 

T2N, R11E, NE 1/4 of Section 9 
 
Lots 1, 2, 3, 42 and 43, inclusive, of Pleasant View Subdivision (Liber 31, pg. 39 of 
Oakland County Plats).  Containing ±0.648 ac. more or less, and subject to easements 
of record; 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES the request to 
provide the petitioner with the opportunity to pursue a conditional rezoning application. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Hooters v. Troy – Proposed Consent Judgment 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-05- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
(a)  Proposed Resolution – Approval of Proposed Consent Judgment: May 21, 2007 

Proposal  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 21, 2007 
 

- 4 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the May 21, 2007 consent judgment 
between Hooters of Troy, Inc. and the City of Troy, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED to execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED,  That upon the execution of the consent judgment by the Court, 
Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from Hooters of Troy, Inc., (a Georgia 
Corporation) to transfer ownership of a 2005 Class C licensed business with new Entertainment 
Permit located at 2950 Rochester Road Troy, MI 48083 Oakland County from Sign of the 
Beefcarver, Inc.; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement with 
Hooters of Troy, Inc., (a Georgia Corporation) to transfer ownership of a 2005 Class C licensed 
business with new Entertainment Permit located at 2950 Rochester, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland 
County from Sign of the Beefcarver, Inc., and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby 
AUTHORIZED to execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Or 
 
(b)  Proposed Resolution – Approval of Consent Judgment: May 14, 2007 Proposal
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the May 14, 2007 consent judgment 
between Hooters of Troy, Inc. and the City of Troy, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED to execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That upon the execution of the consent judgment by the Court, 
Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from Hooters of Troy, Inc., (a Georgia 
Corporation) to transfer ownership of a 2005 Class C licensed business with new Entertainment 
Permit located at 2950 Rochester Road Troy, MI 48083 Oakland County from Sign of the 
Beefcarver, Inc.; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement with 
Hooters of Troy, Inc., (a Georgia Corporation) to transfer ownership of a 2005 Class C licensed 
business with new Entertainment Permit located at 2950 Rochester, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland 
County from Sign of the Beefcarver, Inc., and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby 
AUTHORIZED to execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 21, 2007 
 

- 5 - 

and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2007-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-05-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of May 14, 2007 be 
APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-05- 
 
RESOLVED, That the following City of Troy Proclamations be APPROVED: 
 
a) Service Commendation – Homes for Our Troops  
b) Service Commendation – Linda Thielfoldt  
c) Proclamation in Recognition of Falun Dafa Day – May 21, 2007 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – State of Michigan Cooperative 

Purchasing Agreement MiDEAL – Toro Lawn Maintenance Equipment                   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-05- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 21, 2007 
 

- 6 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase Toro lawn 
maintenance equipment from Spartan Distributors of Auburn Hills, MI, through the State of 
Michigan Cooperative Purchasing Agreement, MiDEAL, at an estimated total cost of 
$93,281.62. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – State of Michigan Cooperative 

Purchasing Agreement MiDEAL – John Deere                   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-05- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase one (1) John 
Deere zero turn commercial riding mower with 72” deck from John Deere Company of Cary, 
NC, through the State of Michigan Cooperative Purchasing Agreement, MiDEAL, at an 
estimated total cost of $12,448.04. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend 

Funds for Council Member Dave Lambert’s Travel Expenses – National League of 
Cities (NLC) Community and Economic Development Steering Committee Meeting                  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-05- 
 
RESOLVED, That Council Member Dave Lambert is AUTHORIZED to attend the NLC 
Community and Economic Development Steering Committee meeting in New Haven, CT from 
June 14 - 16, 2007 in accordance with accounting procedures of the City of Troy. 
 
E-5 Morrell v Troy, et al  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-05- 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED and DIRECTED to represent the 
City of Troy and Officer Meghan Broderick in any and all claims for damages in the matter of 
Kenneth Morrell v. R.H.A.R., Inc., d/b/a/ Maple & John R. Amoco, Armada Oil Company, Mike 
Ankowi, City of Troy, and Officer Broderick; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is AUTHORIZED to pay necessary costs 
and expenses and to retain any necessary expert witnesses to adequately represent the City.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 21, 2007 
 

- 7 - 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 11 “F”.  

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Historic District Commission; Municipal Building 
Authority; and Youth Council  

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled  
 
(b)  City Council Appointments
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2007-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 21, 2007 
 

- 8 - 

Appointed by Council (9-Regular; 3-Alternate) – 3 Year Terms 
 

(Alternate) Term Expires 11/01/09 
 
Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 03/01/10 
 
Municipal Building Authority 
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 01/31/09 
 
Youth Council
Appointed by Council  (13)  – 1 Year Term 
 
 Term Expires (Student) 06/01/08 
 
 Term Expires (Student) 06/01/08 
 
 Term Expires (Student) 06/01/08 
 
 Term Expires (Student) 06/01/08 
 
 Term Expires (Student) 06/01/08 
 
 Term Expires (Student) 06/01/08 
 
 Term Expires (Student) 06/01/08 
 
 Term Expires (Student) 06/01/08 
 
 Term Expires (Student) 06/01/08 
 
 Term Expires (Student) 06/01/08 
 
 Term Expires (Student) 06/01/08 
 
 Term Expires (Student) 06/01/08 
 
 Term Expires (Student) 06/01/08 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 21, 2007 
 

- 9 - 

F-2 Standard Resolutions 1, 2 and 3 for Paving of the East ½ of Eckford – Section 15, 
SAD #06.202.1 

 
(a) Standard Resolution #1
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-05- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS Standard Resolution #1 to direct the 
preparation of plans and cost estimates for the Special Assessment to pay all or part of the cost 
of Asphalt Paving of the easterly ½ of Eckford in Section 15, Project No. 06.202.1, all pursuant 
to Sections 1.1 and 1.2 of Chapter 5 of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(b) Standard Resolution #2
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-05- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS Standard Resolution #2 to approve plans 
and cost estimates for a Special Assessment to pay all or part of the cost of Asphalt Paving of 
the easterly ½ of Eckford, in Section 15, Project No. 06.202.1, all pursuant to Sections 1.1 and 
1.2 of Chapter 5 of the Code of the City of Troy 
 

Total Estimated Cost $428,100.00 
Assessment       75,800.00 
City's Share      352,300.00 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Assessor is hereby ORDERED and DIRECTED to 
prepare a Special Assessment Roll in accordance with Chapter 5 of the Code of the City of 
Troy. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(c) Standard Resolution #3
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-05- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 21, 2007 
 

- 10 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS Standard Resolution #3 to set a Public 
Hearing date on the Special Assessment roll for Asphalt Paving of the easterly ½ of Eckford, in 
Section 15, Project No. 06.202.1, all pursuant to Chapter 5 of the Code of the City of Troy, with 
said Public Hearing to be established for June 18, 2007. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-3 Approval of Project Plan for Expansion and Improvements at the Bharatiya 

Temple, 6850 N. Adams, and Waiver of Jurisdiction of the Troy Economic 
Development Corporation for the Issuance of Bonds 

 
(a) Proposed Resolution – Approval of Project Plan for Expansion and Improvements 

at the Bharatiya Temple, 6850 N. Adams
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-05- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, There exists in the County of Oakland the need for programs to alleviate and 
prevent conditions of unemployment, to assist and retain local industrial and commercial 
enterprises, and to encourage the location and expansion of such enterprises in order to 
strengthen and revitalize the County's economy and to provide needed services and facilities to 
the County, the City of Troy, and their residents;  
 
WHEREAS, The Economic Development Corporations Act, Act No. 338 of the Michigan Public 
Acts of 1974, as amended (the "Act"), provides a means for the encouragement and assistance 
of industrial and commercial enterprises in locating, purchasing, constructing, reconstructing, 
modernizing, improving, maintaining, repairing, furnishing, equipping and expanding in the City 
and the County;  
 
WHEREAS, The Economic Development Corporation of the County of Oakland (the "EDC") has 
commenced proceedings for the assistance, pursuant to the provisions of the Act and through 
the issuance of its limited obligation economic development revenue bonds, of The Bharatiya 
Temple Project (the "Project") which is located in this City;  
 
WHEREAS, The EDC has determined that the Project is reasonable and necessary to 
effectuate the purposes of the Act, that the Project Plan prepared in connection with the Project 
satisfies all of the requirements of Section 8 of the Act regarding project plans, that the persons 
who will be active in the management of the Project for at least one (1) year after the projected 
date of the County Board of Commissioners' approval of the Project Plan will have sufficient 
ability and experience to manage the Plan properly, that the proposed method of financing the 
Project is feasible, and the EDC has approved the Project Plan in the form attached hereto as 
Exhibit A;  
 
WHEREAS, Before this Project can proceed under the Act, this City Council must approve the 
Project Plan; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 21, 2007 
 

- 11 - 

WHEREAS, This City Council has reviewed the subject Project Plan and concurs in the 
determinations of the EDC with respect thereto; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  That in accordance with the Act, this City Council hereby 
APPROVES the Project Plan attached as Exhibit A; and 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Clerk is hereby INSTRUCTED to 
communicate this approval of the Project Plan to the Board of Directors of the EDC by 
delivering to said Board of Directors a certified copy of this resolution. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(b) Proposed Resolution – Waiver of Jurisdiction of the Troy Economic Development 

Corporation for the Issuance of Bonds
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-05- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The Bharatiya Temple, a Michigan nonprofit corporation (the "Company"), desires 
to expand and improve its facilities in the City of Troy (the "Project");   
 
WHEREAS, The Company is interested in pursuing the issuance of tax-exempt revenue bonds 
("Bonds") through The Economic Development Corporation of the County of Oakland ("Oakland 
County EDC") as a means of financing its proposed Project;   
 
WHEREAS, The Oakland County EDC is currently active in assisting qualifying non-
governmental organizations through the entire process of issuing Bonds; and  
 
WHEREAS, Act 338 of the Michigan Public Acts of 1974, as amended ("EDC Act"), requires a 
waiver of jurisdiction by the governing body of any municipality in which a project to be financed 
under the EDC Act is located if that municipality has an economic development corporation and 
the financing is to be undertaken by a different economic development corporation;   
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That pursuant to the EDC Act, the Troy City Council hereby 
APPROVES the aforementioned waiver of jurisdiction with respect to the Company's Project to 
allow the Oakland County EDC jurisdiction to issue Bonds therefore.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-4 Bid Waiver – Sanitary Sewer Televising Inspection Equipment Upgrade 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-05- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 21, 2007 
 

- 12 - 

 
WHEREAS, The Public Works Department of the City of Troy routinely performs maintenance 
activities on sanitary sewer pipes;  
 
WHEREAS, The current camera equipment is nine years old and has become obsolete with 
limited repair services available; and 
 
WHEREAS, An informal bid process was performed with Pearpoint, Inc. of Thousand Palms, 
CA and Jack Doheny of Novi, MI, the only two known authorized suppliers for the Michigan 
area; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 
procedures and a contract to purchase the Sanitary Sewer Televising Inspection Equipment 
upgrade from the manufacturer, Pearpoint, Inc. of Thousand Palms, CA, is hereby APPROVED 
for an estimated total cost of $45,866.00, at unit prices as detailed in Appendix I; a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-5 Scheduling a Joint Meeting with the Chamber of Commerce 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-05- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That a joint meeting between the Troy City Council and the Troy Chamber of 
Commerce for the purpose of discussing various topics is SCHEDULED for:  
 

Monday, July 30, 2007 at 7:30 PM at the Troy Police/Fire Training Center 
 located at 4850 John R, Troy, Michigan: 

 
Or 
 
Tuesday, July 31, 2007 at 7:30 PM at the Troy Police/Fire Training Center 

 located at 4850 John R, Troy, Michigan: 
 
Or 
 
Tuesday, July 31, 2007 at 7:30 PM in Room 304 at the Troy Community Center, 
3179 Livernois, Troy, Michigan: 
 
Or 
 
Wednesday, August 1, 2007 at 7:30 PM at the Troy Police/Fire Training Center 

 located at 4850 John R, Troy, Michigan: 
 
Or 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 21, 2007 
 

- 13 - 

 
Wednesday, August 1, 2007 at 7:30 PM in Room 305 at the Troy Community 
Center, 3179 Livernois, Troy, Michigan. 

 
Yes: 
No: 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Rezoning Application (File Number Z-722) – Northwest Corner of Maple and Thorncroft, 

East of Maplelawn, Section 29 – R-C to B-3 – June 4, 2007  
    
G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced    
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1 No Council Comments Advanced    
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – January 18, 2007  
b) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – February 15, 2007  
c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – April 4, 2007 
d) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – April 4, 2007  
e) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – April 5, 2007 
f) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – April 11, 2007 
g) Library Advisory Board/Final – April 12, 2007  
h) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final- April 17, 2007  
i) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – May 3, 2007 
j) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – May 8, 2007 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 21, 2007 
 

- 14 - 

J-2 Department Reports:   
a) City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – April 30, 2007 
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Thanks to Jeff Biegler, Ed Carpus and the Troy Parks and Recreation 

Department from March of Dimes WalkAmerica    
b) Letter of Thanks to the Troy Police Department from Bambi Mansfield Regarding the 

Evanswood Threat  
c) Letter to Chief Craft from the FBI National Academy Associates Michigan Chapter 

Commending the Performance of Lynn McDaniel  
d) Letter to Chief Craft from the FBI National Academy Associates Michigan Chapter 

Commending the Performance of Sergeant Bjork and Officers Fitzpatrick and Kaptur     
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted   
 
J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  Law Day 2007 
 
J-7  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission – Notice of 

Hearing for the Customers of the Detroit Edison Company – Case No. U-15244 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:   
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2007-05- 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 21, 2007 
 

- 15 - 

Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by 
MCL 15.268 (a), Performance Evaluation of City Attorney, Lori Grigg Bluhm.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
RECESSED 
 
RECONVENED 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

Monday, June 4, 2007 
1. Troy Downtown Development Authority’s (TDDA’s) Development Plan and the Big 

Beaver Corridor Study  
2. Kostal of America, Inc. - 350 Stephenson - Request for Industrial Development 

District (IDD)  
3. Kostal of America, Inc. - 350 Stephenson - Industrial Facilities Exemption 

Certificate (IFEC)  
4. Rezoning Application (File Number Z-722) – Northwest Corner of Maple and 

Thorncroft, East of Maplelawn, Section 29 – R-C to B-3 – June 4, 2007  
 

 
SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 

 
Monday, June 4, 2007............................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, June 18, 2007............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, July 9, 2007 ................................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, July 23, 2007 .............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, August 6, 2007 ........................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, August 20, 2007 ......................................................... Regular City Council 

 



Service Commendation 
ANN TYRRELL 

 
WHEREAS, Ann started her career with the City of Troy when she was hired on May 20, 1991 as a Clerk Typist in 
the Water Division in the Public Works Department, and on July 7, 2001 Ann was promoted to Office Coordinator in 
the Water Division.   
 
WHEREAS, Ann will retire from the City of Troy on May 31, 2007 after 16 years of dedicated service; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ann’s retirement is a loss for the Public Works Department.  Not only is she friendly and helpful to her 
co-workers, she is very courteous and enjoys helping the general public that she encounters during her job.  Ann 
has received letters of commendation from her supervisor as well as many notes of appreciation from citizens; and 
 
WHEREAS, A mentor to many, Ann has earned the respect from all of the Public Works employees.  She is to be 
commended for her excellent work ethics and fair treatment of employees and citizens; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ann is highly respected by those she supervises and is a most patient teacher training the clerical staff 
coming into the Public Works Department.  She has an amazing memory, is very thorough and pays attention to 
small details.  She is conscientiousness, even-tempered and hardworking, but still has a great sense of humor and 
likes to have fun; and  
 
WHEREAS, In her retirement, Ann looks forward to spending more time with her husband, Don; son Todd and 
daughter-in-law Kerry; stepson Mark; and daughter Danielle and son-in-law Sean, and grandson Johnathan.  She 
plans to travel to Virginia, where her daughter and family have moved to enjoy more time with her grandson; and  
 
WHEREAS, Ann will continue to enjoy her favorite pastimes including reading, and watching her son’s band play at 
different music venues and riding motorcycles with husband Don;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT KNOWN, That the City Council of the City of Troy takes this opportunity to express its 
appreciation to Ann Tyrrell for her many contributions to the betterment of the City; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER KNOWN That the City Council of the City of Troy, on behalf of themselves, City management, and 
the citizens of the City of Troy, extends wishes of prosperity, good health and happiness to Ann during her 
retirement years. 
 
Presented the 21st day of May 2007. 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01b



Service Commendation 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Troy wish to express  

on behalf of the City, their appreciation to 
 

MIKE BRADY 
 

In recognition of outstanding service to the community, and 
 
 
WHEREAS, As a member of the SeniorNet Computer Lab Steering Committee, Mike has put in 
countless hours maintaining the state-of-the-art computer lab, updating lesson plans, training and 
scheduling instructors and coaches, and also teaching classes.  
 
WHEREAS, Mike has at all times furthered those ideals that contribute to a better community. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council, being the duly elected 
voice of the citizens of Troy, express the City’s appreciation and recognition for this distinguished 
citizen’s service since the SeniorNet Computer Lab opened in the summer of 2003 as a member 
of the  
 

TROY SENIORNET COMPUTER LAB STEERING COMMITTEE 
 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution be presented as a lasting expression 
of the City’s gratitude and appreciation for his contribution to the betterment of the City of Troy, 
Michigan. 
 
Presented this 21st  Day of May  2007. 
 
 
 

_______________________________________ 
Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 

 
 
____________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Cristina Broomfield, Mayor Pro Tem Robin E. Beltramini, Councilwoman 
 
 
____________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Wade Fleming, Councilman         Martin F. Howrylak, Councilman 
 
 
____________________________________ _______________________________________ 
David A. Lambert, Councilman Jeanne M. Stine, Councilwoman 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01c



Service Commendation 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Troy wish to express  

on behalf of the City, their appreciation to 
 

PAM BRADY 
 

In recognition of outstanding service to the community, and 
 
 
WHEREAS, As a member of the SeniorNet Computer Lab Steering Committee, Pam has put in 
countless hours maintaining the state-of-the-art computer lab, updating lesson plans, training and 
scheduling instructors and coaches, and also teaching classes.  
 
WHEREAS, Pam has at all times furthered those ideals that contribute to a better community. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council, being the duly elected 
voice of the citizens of Troy, express the City’s appreciation and recognition for this distinguished 
citizen’s service since the SeniorNet Computer Lab opened in the summer of 2003 as a member 
of the  
 

TROY SENIORNET COMPUTER LAB STEERING COMMITTEE 
 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution be presented as a lasting expression 
of the City’s gratitude and appreciation for her contribution to the betterment of the City of Troy, 
Michigan. 
 
Presented this 21st  Day of May  2007. 
 
 
 

_______________________________________ 
Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 

 
 
____________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Cristina Broomfield, Mayor Pro Tem Robin E. Beltramini, Councilwoman 
 
 
____________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Wade Fleming, Councilman         Martin F. Howrylak, Councilman 
 
 
____________________________________ _______________________________________ 
David A. Lambert, Councilman Jeanne M. Stine, Councilwoman 



Service Commendation 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Troy wish to express  

on behalf of the City, their appreciation to 
 

BETTE GAY 
 

In recognition of outstanding service to the community, and 
 
 
WHEREAS, As a member of the SeniorNet Computer Lab Steering Committee, Bette has put in 
countless hours maintaining the state-of-the-art computer lab, updating lesson plans, training and 
scheduling instructors and coaches, and also teaching classes.  
 
WHEREAS, Bette has at all times furthered those ideals that contribute to a better community. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council, being the duly elected 
voice of the citizens of Troy, express the City’s appreciation and recognition for this distinguished 
citizen’s service since the SeniorNet Computer Lab opened in the summer of 2003 as a member 
of the  
 

TROY SENIORNET COMPUTER LAB STEERING COMMITTEE 
 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution be presented as a lasting expression 
of the City’s gratitude and appreciation for her contribution to the betterment of the City of Troy, 
Michigan. 
 
Presented this 21st  Day of May  2007. 
 
 
 

_______________________________________ 
Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 

 
 
____________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Cristina Broomfield, Mayor Pro Tem Robin E. Beltramini, Councilwoman 
 
 
____________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Wade Fleming, Councilman         Martin F. Howrylak, Councilman 
 
 
____________________________________ _______________________________________ 
David A. Lambert, Councilman Jeanne M. Stine, Councilwoman 



Service Commendation 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Troy wish to express  

on behalf of the City, their appreciation to 
 

ZORA HARGRAVE 
 

In recognition of outstanding service to the community, and 
 
 
WHEREAS, As a member of the SeniorNet Computer Lab Steering Committee, Zora has put in 
countless hours maintaining the state-of-the-art computer lab, updating lesson plans, training and 
scheduling instructors and coaches, and also teaching classes.  
 
WHEREAS, Zora has at all times furthered those ideals that contribute to a better community. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council, being the duly elected 
voice of the citizens of Troy, express the City’s appreciation and recognition for this distinguished 
citizen’s service since the SeniorNet Computer Lab opened in the summer of 2003 as a member 
of the  
 

TROY SENIORNET COMPUTER LAB STEERING COMMITTEE 
 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution be presented as a lasting expression 
of the City’s gratitude and appreciation for her contribution to the betterment of the City of Troy, 
Michigan. 
 
Presented this 21st  Day of May  2007. 
 
 
 

_______________________________________ 
Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 

 
 
____________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Cristina Broomfield, Mayor Pro Tem Robin E. Beltramini, Councilwoman 
 
 
____________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Wade Fleming, Councilman         Martin F. Howrylak, Councilman 
 
 
____________________________________ _______________________________________ 
David A. Lambert, Councilman Jeanne M. Stine, Councilwoman 



Service Commendation 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Troy wish to express  

on behalf of the City, their appreciation to 
 

JIM SAUTER 
 

In recognition of outstanding service to the community, and 
 
 
WHEREAS, As a member of the SeniorNet Computer Lab Steering Committee, Jim has put in 
countless hours maintaining the state-of-the-art computer lab, updating lesson plans, training and 
scheduling instructors and coaches, and also teaching classes.  
 
WHEREAS, Jim has at all times furthered those ideals that contribute to a better community. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council, being the duly elected 
voice of the citizens of Troy, express the City’s appreciation and recognition for this distinguished 
citizen’s service since the SeniorNet Computer Lab opened in the summer of 2003 as a member 
of the  
 

TROY SENIORNET COMPUTER LAB STEERING COMMITTEE 
 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution be presented as a lasting expression 
of the City’s gratitude and appreciation for his contribution to the betterment of the City of Troy, 
Michigan. 
 
Presented this 21st  Day of May  2007. 
 
 
 

_______________________________________ 
Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 

 
 
____________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Cristina Broomfield, Mayor Pro Tem Robin E. Beltramini, Councilwoman 
 
 
____________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Wade Fleming, Councilman         Martin F. Howrylak, Councilman 
 
 
____________________________________ _______________________________________ 
David A. Lambert, Councilman Jeanne M. Stine, Councilwoman 



Service Commendation 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Troy wish to express  

on behalf of the City, their appreciation to 
 

BOB TREHARNE 
 

In recognition of outstanding service to the community, and 
 
 
WHEREAS, As a member of the SeniorNet Computer Lab Steering Committee, Bob has put in 
countless hours maintaining the state-of-the-art computer lab, updating lesson plans, training and 
scheduling instructors and coaches, and also teaching classes.  
 
WHEREAS, Bob has at all times furthered those ideals that contribute to a better community. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council, being the duly elected 
voice of the citizens of Troy, express the City’s appreciation and recognition for this distinguished 
citizen’s service since the SeniorNet Computer Lab opened in the summer of 2003 as a member 
of the  
 

TROY SENIORNET COMPUTER LAB STEERING COMMITTEE 
 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution be presented as a lasting expression 
of the City’s gratitude and appreciation for his contribution to the betterment of the City of Troy, 
Michigan. 
 
Presented this 21st  Day of May  2007. 
 
 
 

_______________________________________ 
Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 

 
 
____________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Cristina Broomfield, Mayor Pro Tem Robin E. Beltramini, Councilwoman 
 
 
____________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Wade Fleming, Councilman         Martin F. Howrylak, Councilman 
 
 
____________________________________ _______________________________________ 
David A. Lambert, Councilman Jeanne M. Stine, Councilwoman 



Service Commendation 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Troy wish to express  

on behalf of the City, their appreciation to 
 

LEE WATKINS 
 

In recognition of outstanding service to the community, and 
 
 
WHEREAS, As a member of the SeniorNet Computer Lab Steering Committee, Lee has put in 
countless hours maintaining the state-of-the-art computer lab, updating lesson plans, training and 
scheduling instructors and coaches, and also teaching classes.  
 
WHEREAS, Lee has at all times furthered those ideals that contribute to a better community. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council, being the duly elected 
voice of the citizens of Troy, express the City’s appreciation and recognition for this distinguished 
citizen’s service since the SeniorNet Computer Lab opened in the summer of 2003 as a member 
of the  
 

TROY SENIORNET COMPUTER LAB STEERING COMMITTEE 
 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution be presented as a lasting expression 
of the City’s gratitude and appreciation for her contribution to the betterment of the City of Troy, 
Michigan. 
 
Presented this 21st  Day of May  2007. 
 
 
 

_______________________________________ 
Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 

 
 
____________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Cristina Broomfield, Mayor Pro Tem Robin E. Beltramini, Councilwoman 
 
 
____________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Wade Fleming, Councilman         Martin F. Howrylak, Councilman 
 
 
____________________________________ _______________________________________ 
David A. Lambert, Councilman Jeanne M. Stine, Councilwoman  



 



 
PROCLAMATION IN RECOGNITION OF  

FALUN DAFA DAY 
HONORING TRUTHFULNESS-COMPASSION-FORBEARANCE 

  
 
WHEREAS, Falun Dafa also known as Falun Gong, is a peaceful and healthy self-
improvement practice rooted in ancient Chinese culture that consists of five gentle 
exercises, including meditation and centers around the universal principal of 
Truthfulness, Compassion, and Forbearance; 
 
WHEREAS, the teachings of Falun Dafa, through meditation and spiritual cultivation, 
are perceived as effective means of improving overall mental and physical health, as 
well as reducing stress; and 
 
WHEREAS, Master Li Hongzhi, the founder of Falun Dafa, has helped hundreds of 
millions across the world improve their health and moral standards, as well as deepen 
their understanding of life, humanity, and the universe, through the practice of Falun 
Dafa; and 
 
WHEREAS, Transcending culture and racial boundaries, Falun Dafa has touched the 
lives of more than 100 million people in over 60 countries, including many people in 
New York, of different ages, professions, and racial backgrounds; and 
 
WHEREAS, All Falun Dafa activities, including classes and practices, are offered by 
volunteers and are open to the public and free of charge; and 
 
WHEREAS, The persecution of the practitioners of Falun Dafa in China is an attack on 
basic human rights and should not be tolerated anywhere in the world; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council does hereby 
declare May 21, 2007, FALUN DAFA DAY in the City of Troy and urge all citizens to 
join in the celebration. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01d



 1

 
 
DATE: May 15, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing – Conditional Rezoning Application (File No: CR-002) – Proposed Grand 

Troy Villas, west side of Rochester Road, north of Wattles Road, Section 15 – CR-1 to 
R-1T (CR-002) 

 
 
Background: 
 

• The Planning Commission recommended approval of the request to conditionally rezone the 
parcel to R-1T at the April 10, 2007 Regular meeting.   

 
• This area is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Medium Density Residential, which 

correlates with the R-1T One Family Attached Residential Zoning District.  The application is 
therefore consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan.  The parcel has been planned 
as Medium Density Residential since 1999. 

 
• Conditions were offered by the applicant to reduce the potential impacts of the development on 

the residential neighborhood to the west and north.  These conditions are listed on the site 
plan. 

 
• The rezoning application is compatible with adjacent uses and zoning districts.   

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 

• There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

• City Council has the authority to act on this application.  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL    AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



 2

Policy Considerations: 
 

• Approval of the rezoning request would be consistent with City Council Goal I (Enhance the 
livability and safety of the community) and Goal III (Retain and attract investment while 
encouraging redevelopment). 

 
 
Options: 
 

• City Council can approve or deny the Conditional Rezoning Application. 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form and legality:  _____________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Conditional Rezoning Agreement. 
3. Minutes from April 10, 2007 Planning Commission meeting. 
4. Public comment. 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File /CR-002 
 
G:\Conditional Rezoning\CR-002 Grand Troy Villas Sec 13\CC Public Hearing 05 21 07.doc 
 
 







R
O

C
H

E
STE

R

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

KS
MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

AD
A

M
S



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

SUBJECT PROPERTY



RANDALL

BRAHMS

LAMB

MAYA

BARCLAY 
CT

LORENZO CT

R
EN

E
E

BARCLAY

R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

CONDITIONAL REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED GRAND TROY VILLAS
FROM CR-1 TO R-1T
W SIDE OF ROCHESTER RD., N OF WATTLES
SEC. 15 (CR-002)

0 100 20050
Feet ³

SUBJECT PROPERTY



R
ENEE

BR
IS

TO
L

RANDALL

YA
N

IC
H

W
IL

LO
W

C
R

EE
K

BRAHMS

MAYA

W
O

R
TH

IN
G

TO
N

GARWOOD

LAMB

HOLL
Y

BARCLAY 

CT

LORENZO
CT

BARCLAY

REILL
Y

CT

RA
ND

AL
L

CT

E WATTLES

G
AT

W
IC

K

R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

LONGFELLOW
REILLY

CONDITIONAL REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED GRAND TROY VILLAS
FROM CR-1 TO R-1T
W SIDE OF ROCHESTER RD., N OF WATTLES
SEC. 15 (CR-002)

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet ³

SUBJECT PROPERTY



R
ENEE

BR
IS

TO
L

RANDALL

YA
N

IC
H

W
IL

LO
W

C
R

EE
K

BRAHMS

MAYA

W
O

R
TH

IN
G

TO
N

GARWOOD

LAMB

HOLL
Y

BARCLAY 

CT

LORENZO
CT

BARCLAY

REILL
Y

CT

RA
ND

AL
L

CT

E WATTLES

G
AT

W
IC

K

R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

LONGFELLOW
REILLY

R-1T

CR-1

B-2 P-1

B-1

R-1C

H-S

O-1

CONDITIONAL REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED GRAND TROY VILLAS
FROM CR-1 TO R-1T
W SIDE OF ROCHESTER RD., N OF WATTLES
SEC. 15 (CR-002)

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet ³

SUBJECT PROPERTY













































 1

 
 
DATE: May 15, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing – Rezoning Application – Southwest corner of Square Lake and Niles, 

Section 9 – R-2 to O-1 (File Number Z-625 B) 
 
 
Background: 
 

• The Planning Commission recommended denial of the request to rezone the parcel to O-1 at 
the April 10, 2007 Regular meeting.   

 
• On the Future Land Use Plan, the subject parcel is located within the transition area between 

Local Service Area and Medium Density Residential.  Local Service Area has a primary 
correlation with B-1 and a secondary correlation with O-1.  The application therefore is consistent 
with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan.  These classifications have been in place since 2002. 

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 

• There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

• City Council has the authority to act on this application.  
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

• Approval of the rezoning application would be consistent with City Council Goal III (Retain and 
attract investment while encouraging redevelopment). 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-02



 2

Options: 
 

• City Council can approve, deny or postpone the rezoning application. 
 

 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Minutes from the April 10, 2007 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
3. Letters of opposition (3). 
 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File /Z 625-B 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-625-B Medical and Dental Office Sec 9\CC Public Hearing 05 21 07.doc 
 
 





R
O

C
H

E
STE

R

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

KS
MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

AD
A

M
S



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

SUBJECT PROPERTY



JA
M

ES
P

LA
C

E

BL
AC

K
W

A
LL

HALDANE

C
AN

H
A

M

N
IL

ES

LI
VE

R
N

O
IS

CUTTING

E
SQUARE

LAKEW SQUARE LAKE

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED MEDICAL / DENTAL OFFICE
SW CORNER NILES & SQUARE LAKE RD.
SEC. 9 (Z-625 B)  

0 100 20050
Feet ³

SUBJECT PROPERTY



JA
M

ES
P

LA
C

E

BL
AC

K
W

A
LL

HALDANE

C
AN

H
A

M

N
IL

ES

LI
VE

R
N

O
IS

CUTTING

E
SQUARE

LAKEW SQUARE LAKE

R-1B R-2

O-1 H-S

B-1

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED MEDICAL / DENTAL OFFICE
SW CORNER NILES & SQUARE LAKE RD.
SEC. 9 (Z-625 B)  

0 100 20050
Feet ³

SUBJECT PROPERTY





PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL APRIL 10, 2007 
  
 
 
 
7. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST (Z 625-B) – Proposed 

Medical/Dental Office Building, Southwest corner of Niles and Square Lake 
Road, Section 9 – From R-2 (Two Family Residential) to O-1 (Low Rise Office) 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed rezoning request and addressed the transition area.  He provided 
reasons why the subject parcel would be appropriate for O-1 zoning and potential 
negative impacts associated with the proposed rezoning.  Mr. Savidant said the 
applicant might want to consider pursuing a conditional rezoning so site plan 
issues could be addressed concurrent with consideration of the rezoning request.   
 
A discrepancy in the size of the subject parcel was brought to the attention of the 
Planning Department staff.  It was confirmed that the parcel size is 0.648 acres. 
 
The petitioner, Donald R. Kacy, DDS, of 77 W. Square Lake Road, Troy, was 
present.  Dr. Kacy owns several parcels along Square Lake Road.  He provided 
a history of the subject property as relates to the zoning and uses.  He said the 
original factor of the property was for it to be zoned O-1 for a small office.  Dr. 
Kacy said the area appears to attract the small medical uses.  He said his office 
does not put out more dust, dirt, or noise than any other use in the area.  He said 
he is trying to build what is needed in the area; a use similar in nature to his 
dental office.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Jean Heiss of 5857 Niles Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Heiss addressed 
comments from the association secretary who could not attend tonight’s meeting, 
and provided a copy of the comments for the record.  The comments are in 
opposition to the proposed request and relate to safety, traffic, parking, noise, 
property value and existing medical uses in the area.  It was confirmed that the 
Planning Commission received an email message from Yin Chu, association 
secretary, relaying the same comments.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Hutson expressed concerns with building height restrictions and screening, 
as relates to the proposed O-1 zoning.  He indicated a conditional rezoning might 
offer assurances in that respect.   
 
Mr. Vleck concurred.  He expressed concern with the screen wall that would be 
required under O-1, and indicated a conditional rezoning would set limitations.   
 
Mr. Strat concurred.  He said this is a problem site, and he would be in favor of a 
conditional rezoning. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL APRIL 10, 2007 
  
 

Ms. Kerwin expressed health, safety and welfare concerns, as well as the 
potential to create a cut-through in the area.  She agreed it is a difficult piece of 
property. 
 
Chair Schultz stated the cut-through currently exists.   
 
Mr. Strat said the cut-through potential would be another reason to consider a 
conditional rezoning on this property. 
 
Ms. Troshynski asked the petitioner if there was consideration given to adding 
landscaping in the greenbelt near the building.   
 
Dr. Kacy replied in the affirmative.  He addressed the landscaping, the driveway 
onto Square Lake Road, the retaining wall and height of the building.  
 
Chair Schultz stated the only item before the Commission tonight is the rezoning 
request, and no consideration should be given to the proposed site plan or 
sketch submitted with the application.   
 
Resolution # PC-2007-04-079 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-2 to O-1 rezoning request, located at the southwest corner of 
Niles and Square Lake, within Section 9, being approximately 0.648 acres in 
size, be denied, for the following reasons:  
 
1. Concern for the screen wall requirements and building height concerns.   
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Schultz stated it appears the Planning Commission would be willing to 
entertain a conditional rezoning on this property, and informed the petitioner to 
contact the Planning Department for information.  
 

 









TO: Mayor and Members of City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Christopher J. Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: May 16, 2007 

  
  

SUBJECT: Hooters v. Troy – Proposed Consent Judgment 
 

    
 
 At the City Council meeting of May 14, 2007, Council was provided with a proposed Consent 
Judgment that could resolve the pending cases between the parties.  In this May consent judgment, 
Hooters agreed to provide some concessions, in exchange for Council’s agreement to transfer the 
liquor license.  One of the concessions was to close the access from Hooters parking lot to Henrietta 
Avenue.   Hooters did not specify how this closure would occur, and the consent judgment proposal 
required only that the closure be completed to provide some additional protections to the 
neighboring residential properties on Henrietta Avenue.   
 

As you can see in the attached aerial photograph, the parking for the Ram’s Horn Restaurant 
is sandwiched in between the parking lot for Hooters and Henrietta Avenue.  At the May 14, 2007 
meeting, the operator of the Ram’s Horn Restaurant indicated that the proposed closure may violate 
the provisions of his lease with the Sign of the Beefcarver, which also owns the Hooters Restaurant 
property at Big Beaver and Rochester Road.  Due to the short turn around time for this item, City 
Administration has not yet been provided with a copy of these lease provisions, and there are no 
access or parking restrictions or easements on file at the Oakland County Register of Deeds.  
However, even though the lease provisions have not yet been verified, we presume that there are 
shared parking provisions that benefit the Ram’s Horn Restaurant.  As such, Council may wish to 
reconsider the closure requirement.    
 
 The proposed closure was designed to provide some protections to the neighboring 
residential properties on Henrietta Avenue.   With these concerns in mind, Hooters has agreed to an 
alternative proposal, which has been incorporated into the attached May 21, 2007 proposed consent 
judgment.     
       

In addition to the other concessions contained in the consent judgment, such as removing 
the two pole signs and removing the outdoor seating, Hooters has also agreed to pay the City to re-
grade and asphalt pave a portion of Henrietta Avenue near the entrance to Ram’s Horn’s parking lot.  
Hooters would also agree to pay the City for installation of appropriate signage directing traffic away 
from the residential housing located on Henrietta.  By requiring Hooters to pay for paving this section 
of Henrietta, this protects the interests of the residents by eliminating the noise and dust that would 
have been generated by increased traffic on a gravel road. This concession also protects the 
interests of Ram’s Horn in that its customers will continue to access its rear parking.   

 
The attached May 21, 2007 consent judgment is attached for your consideration.  It includes 

the site plan (depicting location of pole signs and outdoor seating) and aerial photography of the 
portion of Henrietta to be paved. The site plan and aerial photography will be incorporated by 
reference.   The May 14, 2007 proposal is also included for your consideration.  

 
 If you have any questions concerning the proposed consent judgment please let us know. 

campbellld
Text Box
D-01





May 21, 2007 Proposed Consent Judgment: Paving of Henrietta Avenue 

 
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF MICHIGAN 

SOUTHERN DIVISION 
 

HOOTERS OF TROY INC.,  
       CASE NUMBER 06-CV- 14945 
  Plaintiff,     HON. JULIAN A. COOK 
v.       MAGIST. R. STEVEN WHALEN 
 
CITY OF TROY,  
 
  Defendant. 
________________________________/ 
EDWARD G. LENNON PLLC 
Edward G. Lennon (P42278) 
Attorney for Plaintiff 
HYMAN LIPPITT, P.C. 
Stephen McKenney  (P65673) 
Co-Counsel for Plaintiff 
322 N. Old Woodward 
Birmingham, MI 48009 
248.723.1276 
 
City of Troy – City Attorney’s Office 
Lori Grigg Bluhm (P46908) 
Christopher J. Forsyth  (P63025) 
Attorney for Defendant 
500 W. Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI 48084 
(248) 524-3320 
_________________________________/ 
 

JUDGMENT BY CONSENT 
 

   At a session of said Court, held in the City of Detroit, 
   Eastern District of Michigan on ______________. 
 
   PRESENT:  Hon.       
      DISTRICT COURT JUDGE 
 

HOOTERS OF TROY INC. and the CITY OF TROY consent to the entry 

of this Consent Judgment.   

 



 

RECITALS 

1. Plaintiff, Hooters of Troy Inc. (“Hooters”), is a Georgia corporation 

and a wholly owned subsidiary of Hooters of America Inc., a Georgia corporation.  

2. Plaintiff operated a Hooters restaurant located at 1686 John R 

Road in the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan. Plaintiff also currently holds 

a Class C liquor license for this restaurant.   

3. On January 6, 2006, Plaintiff entered into an agreement with Sign 

of the Beefcarver, Inc. (“Beefcarver”) to purchase Beefcarver’s Class C and SDM 

Liquor Licenses and the requested Sunday Sales, Entertainment, and Outdoor 

Service permits,  (collectively the “Liquor License”) which Beefcarver was using 

at a restaurant named the Wagon Wheel Saloon and which it operated at 2946-

2950 Rochester Road in Troy.  The Wagon Wheel Saloon closed on or about 

May 31, 2006. 

4. In addition to the agreement to purchase the Liquor License, 

Plaintiff also agreed to the lease the property at 2946-2950 Rochester Road in 

which the Wagon Wheel Restaurant was located.  

5. As required by the Michigan Liquor Control Code, MCL 436.1101 

et. seq., Plaintiff submitted an application to the Michigan Liquor Control 

Commission, seeking a transfer of said Liquor License from Beefcarver to 

Hooters.   

6. Pursuant to MCL 436.1501(2), such an application requires 

approval from the Troy City Council, the legislative body of the City of Troy.  At 

 2



the June 19, 2006 regular City Council meeting, the Troy City Council denied 

Hooter’s request to transfer the Liquor License from Beefcarver.      

7. On June 27, 2006, Plaintiff filed a lawsuit in Oakland County Circuit 

Court.  Plaintiff sought an order of superintending control approving the transfer 

of the Liquor License to Hooters.  This case was dismissed by Oakland County 

Circuit Court Judge John McDonald.  Plaintiff has appealed Judge McDonald’s 

dismissal, and the case is pending oral argument in the Michigan Court of 

Appeals (Docket no. 272155). 

8. On November 2, 2006, Plaintiff initiated this 42 U.S.C. § 1983 

lawsuit against Defendant.   

9. After extensive negotiation, the parties have reached a settlement 

of this §1983 lawsuit and the state court action.  The parties agree that Troy City 

Council shall approve Plaintiff’s application to transfer the Liquor License 

provided that Plaintiff complies with certain conditions that are further defined in 

this Consent Judgment.  The parties also agree that this Consent Judgment shall 

be binding upon the parties, their successors and assigns.   

10. The Court has reviewed the proposed Consent Judgment, and has 

verified that it currently possesses jurisdiction over this action, and has approved 

the form and substance of this Consent Judgment. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED as follows: 

1. This Consent Judgment shall constitute the final judgment of the 

Federal District Court, Eastern District of Michigan, and resolves all 

claims between the parties. 

 3



2. With the entry of this Consent Judgment by the Court, the Troy City 

Council approves Plaintiff’s application to transfer the Liquor License 

from the Beefcarver to Hooters.  After such time, the Troy City Clerk 

shall immediately forward a resolution of approval of the transfer to the 

Michigan Liquor Control Commission.   

3. The City of Troy will reasonably cooperate and file such other 

additional or revised documents that reflect the above referenced 

approval, and as required by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission 

to complete or expedite the Liquor License transfer. 

4. In consideration of the approval of the transfer of the Liquor License by 

the City of Troy, Plaintiff agrees to the following: 

a. Plaintiff relinquishes any claim of damages against Defendant. 

b. Plaintiff will dismiss with prejudice its claim of appeal filed with the 

Michigan Court of Appeals in the state court action, which is entitled 

In Re Hooters of Troy Inc., Oakland County Circuit Court No. 06-

75618 AS, Michigan Court of Appeals No. 272155. 

c. Plaintiff will continue to cease its operation of a Hooters Restaurant 

at 1686 John R Road, and place its Class C liquor license for that 

location into escrow with the Michigan Liquor Control Commission.  

This Consent Judgment does not address any future transfer or 

sale of the John R. escrowed license, and any sale or transfer of 

said liquor license shall comply with the Michigan Liquor Control 

Code.     

 4



d. Plaintiff shall be permitted to operate only one Hooters restaurant in 

Troy. 

e. Within thirty (30) days after the entry of this Consent Judgment, 

Plaintiff shall remove the two pole signs (collectively, “Pylon Signs 

F & G”), which were erected at this location.  More specifically, the 

first pole sign Plaintiff shall remove is located a short distance from 

the restaurant, is in close proximity to the intersection of Rochester 

and Big Beaver Roads, and is the larger of the two pole signs.  The 

second pole sign Plaintiff shall remove is located in close proximity 

to the northeast parking entrance to the restaurant, which also curb 

cuts on Big Beaver Road, and is the smaller of the two pole signs. 

These two pole signs are further described as F, SF Pylon, and G, 

DF Pylon, in the attached plan (Exh. A., incorporated by reference). 

f. Plaintiff shall be permitted to construct up to two directional signs 

from Big Beaver Road, which shall not exceed 2 square feet each, 

and which shall not contain any logos or other commercial 

message, and shall be limited to identifying the Entrance and Exit 

for the parking lot.  These signs, if constructed, shall be located at 

the existing north easternmost curb cut of the parking lot.   

g. With the exception of the pole signs, which Plaintiff agrees to 

remove, and the directional signs, as referenced in Paragraph f, the 

amount and type of signage Plaintiff can maintain at 2946-2950 

Rochester Road, is limited to that depicted in Exhibit A.     

 5



h. Within thirty (30) days after the entry of this Consent Judgment, 

Plaintiff shall also remove the wood patio deck and all the outdoor 

seating located at the Hooters at 2946-2950 Rochester Road. The 

outdoor seating is located at the southeast corner of the restaurant 

and is described as “covered wood patio deck” in Exhibit A.  

i. Within thirty (30) days after the entry of this Consent Judgment, 

Plaintiff shall place in escrow the amount of $5000, which shall be 

used to pay for the City’s cost of re-grading and asphalt paving a 

portion of Henrietta Avenue, and also to pay for the installation of 

appropriate signage directing traffic away from the residential 

homes on Henrietta Avenue.    Specifically, Plaintiff shall pay the 

cost to re-grade and asphalt pave the portion of Henrietta Avenue 

that begins at the current eastern end of the existing asphalt paving 

on Henrietta Avenue, and extends approximately 80 feet to the 

east, at the easternmost edge of the eastern driveway entrance to 

the Ram’s Horn Restaurant parking lot (described in Exhibit B, 

which is incorporated by reference). The amount to be paid by 

Plaintiff under this paragraph shall not exceed the $5,000 that is 

placed in escrow, and shall be based on the actual cost, as 

submitted by Troy.    

j. Plaintiff is permanently barred from seeking permission or any 

variances from the City of Troy to construct or erect additional 

signage at 2946-2950 Rochester Road, including but not limited to 

 6



any special event signs as set forth in Chapter 85 of the City of 

Troy Ordinances.  

k. Plaintiff is also permanently barred from seeking permission or any 

variance from the City of Troy to construct or erect any outdoor 

seating at 2946-2950 Rochester Road. This does not preclude 

Plaintiff from applying for one (1) outdoor special event permit 

within a twelve (12) month period as set forth in Chapter 39, 

Section 41.16.00 of the City of Troy Ordinances.  

l. Plaintiff is further permanently barred from requesting an outdoor 

service permit from the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 

allows for any outdoor seating at 2946-2950 Rochester Road. This 

does not preclude Plaintiff from applying for a temporary outdoor 

service permit with the Michigan Liquor Control Commission as set 

forth in MI ADC R 436.1419 in conjunction with an outdoor special 

event permit as set forth in above paragraph k.   

m. In the event Plaintiff fails to remove above described pole signs, 

and remove the above described outdoor seating at 2946-2950 

Rochester Road, Defendant shall have the right to remove said 

pole signs, or remove said outdoor seating, and charge all costs 

and expenses to Plaintiff.  This does not preclude the parties from 

pursuing any other available relief under state or federal law for any 

violation of the terms of this Consent Judgment.    

 7



n. In the event Plaintiff fails to pay for the re-grading, asphalt paving, 

and sign installation as described in Paragraph i, the City of Troy 

shall have the right to present to the escrow agent the cost incurred 

by the City for re-grading, asphalt paving, and sign installation for 

payment.  

5. The parties agree to waive all costs and attorney fees incurred as 

result of the case. 

6. By entry of this Consent Judgment, the parties, their agents, 

successors, assignees waive and discharge any and all claims that 

they may have against the other party, including its officials and 

employees, relating to the subject of this lawsuit. 

7. In order to effectuate the intent of this Consent Judgment and to 

reconcile any differences of the parties that may arise in connection 

with the performance of this Consent Judgment, this Court shall retain 

jurisdiction of this action.   

__________________________ 
DISTRICT COURT JUDGE 

Approved for entry: 
 
HOOTERS OF TROY INC.  
 
By:        

Coby G. Brooks, President  
 
 

CITY OF TROY, a Michigan Municipal Corporation 
 
 
By:   _______________________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 

 8



 
By:  _______________________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk  
 
Approved as to form:   
 
_______________________  ___________________________ 
CITY OF TROY     EDWARD G. LENNON PLLC 
CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE  EDWARD G. LENNON (P42278) 
By:  LORI GRIGG BLUHM (P46908)  Attorney for Plaintiff 
CHRISTOPHER FORSYTH (P63025)  HYMAN LIPPITT, P.C.  
Christopher J. Forsyth (P63025)  Stephen McKenney (P65673) 
500 W. Big Beaver Road   Co-Counsel for Plaintiff 
Troy, MI 48084    322 N. Old Woodward 
(248) 524-3320    Birmingham, MI 48009 
       
Prepared by: 
 
CITY OF TROY 
CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 
By: s/Christopher J. Forsyth  
Lori Grigg Bluhm (P46908)  
Christopher J. Forsyth (P63025)        
500 W. Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI 48084 
(248) 524-3320 
c.forsyth@ci.troy.mi.us 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 9



EXHIBIT A 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 10



EXHIBIT B 
 
 

 

Portion of Henrietta Ave 
to be re-graded and 
asphalt paved 

 
 

 11



May 14, 2007 Proposed Consent Judgment: Close Access to Henrietta Avenue 

 
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF MICHIGAN 

SOUTHERN DIVISION 
 

HOOTERS OF TROY INC.,  
       CASE NUMBER 06-CV- 14945 
  Plaintiff,     HON. JULIAN A. COOK 
v.       MAGIST. R. STEVEN WHALEN 
 
CITY OF TROY,  
 
  Defendant. 
________________________________/ 
EDWARD G. LENNON PLLC 
Edward G. Lennon (P42278) 
Attorney for Plaintiff 
HYMAN LIPPITT, P.C. 
Stephen McKenney  (P65673) 
Co-Counsel for Plaintiff 
322 N. Old Woodward 
Birmingham, MI 48009 
248.723.1276 
 
City of Troy – City Attorney’s Office 
Lori Grigg Bluhm (P46908) 
Christopher J. Forsyth  (P63025) 
Attorney for Defendant 
500 W. Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI 48084 
(248) 524-3320 
_________________________________/ 
 

JUDGMENT BY CONSENT 
 

   At a session of said Court, held in the City of Detroit, 
   Eastern District of Michigan on ______________. 
 
   PRESENT:  Hon.       
      DISTRICT COURT JUDGE 
 

HOOTERS OF TROY INC. and the CITY OF TROY consent to the entry 

of this Consent Judgment.   

 



 

RECITALS 

1. Plaintiff, Hooters of Troy Inc. (“Hooters”), is a Georgia corporation 

and a wholly owned subsidiary of Hooters of America Inc., a Georgia corporation.  

2. Plaintiff operated a Hooters restaurant located at 1686 John R 

Road in the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan. Plaintiff also currently holds 

a Class C liquor license for this restaurant.   

3. On January 6, 2006, Plaintiff entered into an agreement with Sign 

of the Beefcarver, Inc. (“Beefcarver”) to purchase Beefcarver’s Class C and SDM 

Liquor Licenses and the requested Sunday Sales, Entertainment, and Outdoor 

Service permits,  (collectively the “Liquor License”) which Beefcarver was using 

at a restaurant named the Wagon Wheel Saloon and which it operated at 2946-

2950 Rochester Road in Troy.  The Wagon Wheel Saloon closed on or about 

May 31, 2006. 

4. In addition to the agreement to purchase the Liquor License, 

Plaintiff also agreed to the lease the property at 2946-2950 Rochester Road in 

which the Wagon Wheel Restaurant was located.  

5. As required by the Michigan Liquor Control Code, MCL 436.1101 

et. seq., Plaintiff submitted an application to the Michigan Liquor Control 

Commission, seeking a transfer of said Liquor License from Beefcarver to 

Hooters.   

6. Pursuant to MCL 436.1501(2), such an application requires 

approval from the Troy City Council, the legislative body of the City of Troy.  At 

 2



the June 19, 2006 regular City Council meeting, the Troy City Council denied 

Hooter’s request to transfer the Liquor License from Beefcarver.      

7. On June 27, 2006, Plaintiff filed a lawsuit in Oakland County Circuit 

Court.  Plaintiff sought an order of superintending control approving the transfer 

of the Liquor License to Hooters.  This case was dismissed by Oakland County 

Circuit Court Judge John McDonald.  Plaintiff has appealed Judge McDonald’s 

dismissal, and the case is pending oral argument in the Michigan Court of 

Appeals (Docket no. 272155). 

8. On November 2, 2006, Plaintiff initiated this 42 U.S.C. § 1983 

lawsuit against Defendant.   

9. After extensive negotiation, the parties have reached a settlement 

of this §1983 lawsuit and the state court action.  The parties agree that Troy City 

Council shall approve Plaintiff’s application to transfer the Liquor License 

provided that Plaintiff complies with certain conditions that are further defined in 

this Consent Judgment.  The parties also agree that this Consent Judgment shall 

be binding upon the parties, their successors and assigns.   

10. The Court has reviewed the proposed Consent Judgment, and has 

verified that it currently possesses jurisdiction over this action, and has approved 

the form and substance of this Consent Judgment. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED as follows: 

1. This Consent Judgment shall constitute the final judgment of the 

Federal District Court, Eastern District of Michigan, and resolves all 

claims between the parties. 

 3



2. With the entry of this Consent Judgment by the Court, the Troy City 

Council approves Plaintiff’s application to transfer the Liquor License 

from the Beefcarver to Hooters.  After such time, the Troy City Clerk 

shall immediately forward a resolution of approval of the transfer to the 

Michigan Liquor Control Commission.   

3. The City of Troy will reasonably cooperate and file such other 

additional or revised documents that reflect the above referenced 

approval, and as required by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission 

to complete or expedite the Liquor License transfer. 

4. In consideration of the approval of the transfer of the Liquor License by 

the City of Troy, Plaintiff agrees to the following: 

a. Plaintiff relinquishes any claim of damages against Defendant. 

b. Plaintiff will dismiss with prejudice its claim of appeal filed with the 

Michigan Court of Appeals in the state court action, which is entitled 

In Re Hooters of Troy Inc., Oakland County Circuit Court No. 06-

75618 AS, Michigan Court of Appeals No. 272155. 

c. Plaintiff will continue to cease its operation of a Hooters Restaurant 

at 1686 John R Road, and place its Class C liquor license for that 

location into escrow with the Michigan Liquor Control Commission.  

This Consent Judgment does not address any future transfer or 

sale of the John R. escrowed license, and any sale or transfer of 

said liquor license shall comply with the Michigan Liquor Control 

Code.     

 4



d. Plaintiff shall be permitted to operate only one Hooters restaurant in 

Troy. 

e. Within thirty (30) days after the entry of this Consent Judgment, 

Plaintiff shall remove the two pole signs (collectively, “Pylon Signs 

F & G”), which were erected at this location.  More specifically, the 

first pole sign Plaintiff shall remove is located a short distance from 

the restaurant, is in close proximity to the intersection of Rochester 

and Big Beaver Roads, and is the larger of the two pole signs.  The 

second pole sign Plaintiff shall remove is located in close proximity 

to the northeast parking entrance to the restaurant, which also curb 

cuts on Big Beaver Road, and is the smaller of the two pole signs. 

These two pole signs are further described as F, SF Pylon, and G, 

DF Pylon, in the attached plan (Exh. A., incorporated by reference). 

f. Plaintiff shall be permitted to construct up to two directional signs 

from Big Beaver Road, which shall not exceed 2 square feet each, 

and which shall not contain any logos or other commercial 

message, and shall be limited to identifying the Entrance and Exit 

for the parking lot.  These signs, if constructed, shall be located at 

the existing north easternmost curb cut of the parking lot.   

g. With the exception of the pole signs, which Plaintiff agrees to 

remove, and the directional signs, as referenced in Paragraph f, the 

amount and type of signage Plaintiff can maintain at 2946-2950 

Rochester Road, is limited to that depicted in Exhibit A.     

 5



h. Within thirty (30) days after the entry of this Consent Judgment, 

Plaintiff shall also remove the wood patio deck and all the outdoor 

seating located at the Hooters at 2946-2950 Rochester Road. The 

outdoor seating is located at the southeast corner of the restaurant 

and is described as “covered wood patio deck” in Exhibit A.  

i. Within thirty (30) days after the entry of this Consent Judgment, 

Plaintiff shall close access to its parking lot located at 2946-2950 

Rochester Road address from Henrietta Avenue in a manner that is 

consistent with City of Troy ordinances and regulations.  

j. Plaintiff is permanently barred from seeking permission or any 

variances from the City of Troy to construct or erect additional 

signage at 2946-2950 Rochester Road, including but not limited to 

any special event signs as set forth in Chapter 85 of the City of 

Troy Ordinances.  

k. Plaintiff is also permanently barred from seeking permission or any 

variance from the City of Troy to construct or erect any outdoor 

seating at 2946-2950 Rochester Road. This does not preclude 

Plaintiff from applying for one (1) outdoor special event permit 

within a twelve (12) month period as set forth in Chapter 39, 

Section 41.16.00 of the City of Troy Ordinances.  

l. Plaintiff is further permanently barred from requesting an outdoor 

service permit from the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 

allows for any outdoor seating at 2946-2950 Rochester Road. This 

 6



does not preclude Plaintiff from applying for a temporary outdoor 

service permit with the Michigan Liquor Control Commission as set 

forth in MI ADC R 436.1419 in conjunction with an outdoor special 

event permit as set forth in above paragraph k.   

m. In the event Plaintiff fails to remove above described pole signs, 

remove the above described outdoor seating, or close access to its 

parking lot from Henrietta Avenue in manner consistent with City of 

Troy ordinances and regulations, at 2946-2950 Rochester Road, 

Defendant shall have the right to remove said pole signs, or remove 

said outdoor seating, or close said access, and charge all costs and 

expenses to Plaintiff.  This does not preclude the parties from 

pursuing any other available relief under state or federal law for any 

violation of the terms of this Consent Judgment.    

5. The parties agree to waive all costs and attorney fees incurred as 

result of the case. 

6. By entry of this Consent Judgment, the parties, their agents, 

successors, assignees waive and discharge any and all claims that 

they may have against the other party, including its officials and 

employees, relating to the subject of this lawsuit. 

7. In order to effectuate the intent of this Consent Judgment and to 

reconcile any differences of the parties that may arise in connection 

with the performance of this Consent Judgment, this Court shall retain 

jurisdiction of this action.   

 7



__________________________ 
DISTRICT COURT JUDGE 

Approved for entry: 
 
HOOTERS OF TROY INC.  
 
By:        

Coby G. Brooks, President  
 
 

CITY OF TROY, a Michigan Municipal Corporation 
 
 
By:   _______________________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
By:  _______________________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk  
 
Approved as to form:   
 
_______________________  ___________________________ 
CITY OF TROY     EDWARD G. LENNON PLLC 
CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE  EDWARD G. LENNON (P42278) 
By:  LORI GRIGG BLUHM (P46908)  Attorney for Plaintiff 
CHRISTOPHER FORSYTH (P63025)  HYMAN LIPPITT, P.C.  
Christopher J. Forsyth (P63025)  Stephen McKenney (P65673) 
500 W. Big Beaver Road   Co-Counsel for Plaintiff 
Troy, MI 48084    322 N. Old Woodward 
(248) 524-3320    Birmingham, MI 48009 
       
Prepared by: 
 
CITY OF TROY 
CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 
By: s/Christopher J. Forsyth  
Lori Grigg Bluhm (P46908)  
Christopher J. Forsyth (P63025)        
500 W. Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI 48084 
(248) 524-3320 
c.forsyth@ci.troy.mi.us 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 8



EXHIBIT A 
 

 

 
 
 

 9









CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 14, 2007 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, May 14, 2007, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:32 PM. 
 
Mr. Mark Nowak of First Baptist Church of Troy gave the Invocation and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling  
Robin Beltramini  
Mayor Pro Tem Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming  
Martin F. Howrylak (Arrived 7:35 PM) 
David A. Lambert  
Jeanne M. Stine  

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  
a) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Schilling presented Rick Sinclair a Service 

Commendation recognizing his 36 years of dedicated service with the City of Troy’s 
Police and Fire Departments. 

b) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Schilling presented Service Commendations to 
Tanner Lumma, Stephen Castiglione, Erik Rieland, Timmy Grieme, and Parent 
Volunteers Helen Rieland, Dave Rieland, Darlene Lumma, Dawn Castiglione of Cub 
Scout Pack 1703 in recognition of their contribution to a better community by 
participating in the spring clean-up of the vacant lot across from the Troy Public Library. 

c) On behalf of City Staff, Mayor Schilling accepted a plaque from the American Society of 
Civil Engineers in recognition of the Sylvan Glen Golf Course Streambank Restoration.  

d) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Schilling presented a Welcome Home Proclamation 
honoring Sergeant Michael Ullmann.  

e) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Schilling presented a Welcome Home Proclamation 
honoring Lance Corporal Thomas Stenger. 

f) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Schilling presented a Welcome Home Proclamation 
honoring Lance Corporal Cameron Mattox.  

g) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Schilling presented a Welcome Home Proclamation 
honoring Lance Corporal Brock Brani.            

 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Rezoning Application (File Number: Z-726) – 190 East Maple, South Side of Maple, 
East of Livernois, Section 34 – B-2 to M-1 

The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 

pallottaba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 14, 2007 
 

- 2 - 

The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the architect representing 
the petitioner; there was no public comment. 
 
Resolution #2007-05-137 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That the B-2 to M-1 rezoning request, located on the south side of Maple, east of 
Livernois, in Section 34, part of parcel 88-20-34-101-025, being 1.5717 acres in size, is 
described in the following legal description and illustrated on the ATTACHED boundary survey 
drawing: 
 

T2N, R11E, NW 1/4 of Section 34 
 
Beginning at a Point being N 89°59’30” E, 930.00 ft. and S 00°02’15” W, 
288.24 ft. from the northwest corner of said section 34; thence continuing S 
00°02’15” W, 187.76 ft.; thence N 89°59’30” E, 363.55 ft.; thence N 00°12’48” 
E, 188.97 ft.; thence N 89°57’45” W, 134.64 ft.; thence S 00°02’15” W, 1.50 ft.; 
thence N 89°57’45” W, 229.49 ft.; to the Point of beginning.  Containing 1.5717 
acres more or less, subject to all easements and restrictions of record; 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, The rezoning is RECOMMENDED by the Planning Commission; 
and  
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the City of Troy Zoning 
District Map. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
C-2 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 229) – Article XXVIII – 

Automobile Rental Establishments in the M-1 Light Industrial District 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the petitioner. 
 
Resolution #2007-05-138 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Article XXVIII (M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL 
DISTRICT) of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance to read as written in the proposed Zoning 
Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 229), City Council Public Hearing Draft, as recommended 
by the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes:   All-7 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 14, 2007 
 

- 3 - 

C-3 Conditional Rezoning Application (File Number: CR-001) – Proposed Troy Medical 
 Office Building, West Side of Livernois, North of Big Beaver, Section 21 – R-1B to 
 O-1 (CR-001) 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the petitioner and the 
public. 
 
Resolution #2007-05-139 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, The City is in receipt of a proposed Conditional Rezoning Agreement and related 
Site Plan documents, as per Section 03.24.00 of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance; 
 
WHEREAS, The R-1B to O-1 conditional rezoning request, located on the west side of 
Livernois, north of Big Beaver, in Section 21, part of parcel 88-20-21-426-012, being 1.26 acres 
in size, is described in the following legal description and illustrated on the attached boundary 
survey drawing: 
 

T2N, R11E, E 1/2 of Section 21 
 
The east 443 ft. of Lot 3 of Supervisor's Plat No. 26, according to the plat 
thereof as recorded in Liber 57, Page 59 of Plats, Oakland County Records; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, The conditional rezoning was recommended for approval by the Planning 
Commission;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the R-1B to O-1 
Conditional Rezoning Agreement and related Site Plan documents; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk 
to sign the Conditional Rezoning Agreement on behalf of the City of Troy; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, The City of Troy Zoning District Map is hereby AMENDED. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
C-4 Adoption of the 2007/08 City Budget 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the public. 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Lambert   
Seconded by Howrylak   
 
WHEREAS, Section 8.3 of the City Charter directs the City Council to adopt a budget for the 
ensuing year, beginning July 1, 2007; 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 14, 2007 
 

- 4 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the following listed re-appropriations, operating 
transfers-in, and operating revenues of the General Operating Fund are anticipated: 
 

Taxes      $ 36,308,690 
Licenses and Permits          1,747,500 
Federal Grants                      55,900 
State Grants         6,784,000     
Contributions - Local                   180,000 
Charges for Services                6,598,700 
Fines and Forfeits                 1,027,000 
Interest and Rents                 2,081,600 
Other Revenue                    510,550 
Operating Transfers - In                4,951,200 
Re-appropriation                 3,210,280 

                        
Total               $          63,455,420; 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the General Operating Fund shall be six 
and fifty one-hundredths (6.50) mills on the 2007 taxable valuation; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, In order to meet anticipated expenses, amounts from the 
following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the General Operating Fund: 
 
  Building Inspection    $    2,243,190 
  Council/Executive Administration               2,033,040 
  Engineering                  3,136,960 
  Finance                  5,054,990 
  Fire                   4,317,390 
  Library /Museum                 5,066,530 
  Other General Government               2,700,750 
  Police                 24,060,510 
  Parks and Recreation                9,225,600 
  Streets                                               5,606,460 
  Operating Transfer Out                     10,000 
 
        $         63,455,420; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed re-appropriations and revenues of the 
Capital Fund are anticipated: 
 
  Taxes      $  8,440,000    
  State Grants      4,219,000 
  Contributions Local                             245,000    
  Charges for Services                   75,000 
  Fines & Forfeitures                                               246,180         
  Interest and Rents                  807,200         
  Operating Transfer In                                          3,783,000      
  Re-appropriation              11,926,560 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 14, 2007 
 

- 5 - 

                Total      $        29,741,940; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Capital Fund shall be one and sixty one-
hundredths (1.60) mills on the 2007 taxable valuation; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, In order to meet anticipated expenses, amounts from the 
following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the Capital Fund: 
 
  Executive Administration                          $               20,000 
  Building Inspection            10,000  
  Drains                   1,260,930 
  Finance                       35,000 
  Fire                      536,200             
  Library                     325,000 
  Museum                     256,000 
  Other General Government                         4,457,600 
  Police                    1,129,210 
  Parks and Recreation                7,255,000 
  Streets                12,650,000 
  Public Works                  1,058,000 
  Operating Transfer Out                                            749,000 
 
  Total                                                         $         29,741,940;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed revenues of the Refuse Fund are 
anticipated: 
 
  Taxes      $     3,572,670 
  Charges for Services                        1,500 
  Interest and Rents                     175,000 
            
    Total      $            3,749,170;    
    
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Refuse Fund shall be sixty-eight one-
hundredths (.68) mills on the 2007 taxable valuation; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Refuse Fund shall be appropriated $3,749,170; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the General Debt Service Fund shall be appropriated 
$3,042,730; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That there shall be a tax levy of fifty one-hundredths (.50) mills 
on the 2007 taxable valuation for the General Debt Service Fund; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following budgets 
as shown in the 2007/08 budget document: 
   
  Major Road Fund     $   3,851,090 
  Local Road Fund     $   1,626,310 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 14, 2007 
 

- 6 - 

  Community Development Block Grant Fund $         166,320 
  Troy Community Fair Fund    $            187,660 
  Budget Stabilization Fund    $            100,000 
  2000 MTF Debt Fund    $            247,890 
  Proposal A Debt Fund    $            837,000 
  Proposal B Debt Fund    $         1,383,630 
  Proposal C Debt Fund    $            756,000 
  Special Assessment Fund    $         2,063,000 
  Water Supply System    $       15,224,790 
  Sanitary Sewer Fund    $       11,276,040 
  Aquatic Center Fund    $            628,670 
  Sylvan Glen Golf Course Fund   $         1,088,180 
  Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Fund  $         2,050,670 
  Building Operations     $         1,968,590 
  Information Technology Fund   $         1,606,900 
  Fleet Maintenance Fund    $         4,396,990 
  Workers’ Compensation Fund   $            365,000 
  Compensated Absences Fund   $         4,635,400 
  Unemployment Insurance Fund   $              95,000 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2007-05-140 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Resolution for the Adoption of the 
2007/08 City Budget to add .05 mills to the Capital Fund rather than deduct $262,000.00 from 
Building Improvements to Roads. 
 
Yes: Stine, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Broomfield, Fleming, Howrylak, Lambert  
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Vote on Resolution for the Adoption of the 2007/08 City Budget 
 
Resolution #2007-05-141 
Moved by Lambert   
Seconded by Howrylak   
 
WHEREAS, Section 8.3 of the City Charter directs the City Council to adopt a budget for the 
ensuing year, beginning July 1, 2007; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the following listed re-appropriations, operating 
transfers-in, and operating revenues of the General Operating Fund are anticipated: 
 

Taxes      $ 36,308,690 
Licenses and Permits          1,747,500 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 14, 2007 
 

- 7 - 

Federal Grants                      55,900 
State Grants         6,784,000     
Contributions - Local                   180,000 
Charges for Services                6,598,700 
Fines and Forfeits                 1,027,000 
Interest and Rents                 2,081,600 
Other Revenue                    510,550 
Operating Transfers - In                4,951,200 
Re-appropriation                 3,210,280 

                        
Total               $          63,455,420; 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the General Operating Fund shall be six 
and fifty one-hundredths (6.50) mills on the 2007 taxable valuation; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, In order to meet anticipated expenses, amounts from the 
following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the General Operating Fund: 
 
  Building Inspection    $    2,243,190 
  Council/Executive Administration               2,033,040 
  Engineering                  3,136,960 
  Finance                  5,054,990 
  Fire                   4,317,390 
  Library /Museum                 5,066,530 
  Other General Government               2,700,750 
  Police                 24,060,510 
  Parks and Recreation                9,225,600 
  Streets                                               5,606,460 
  Operating Transfer Out                     10,000 
 
        $         63,455,420; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed re-appropriations and revenues of the 
Capital Fund are anticipated: 
 
  Taxes      $  8,440,000    
  State Grants      4,219,000 
  Contributions Local                             245,000    
  Charges for Services                   75,000 
  Fines & Forfeitures                                               246,180         
  Interest and Rents                  807,200         
  Operating Transfer In                                          3,783,000      
  Re-appropriation              11,926,560 
 
                Total      $        29,741,940; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Capital Fund shall be one and sixty one-
hundredths (1.60) mills on the 2007 taxable valuation; 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 14, 2007 
 

- 8 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, In order to meet anticipated expenses, amounts from the 
following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the Capital Fund: 
 
  Executive Administration                          $               20,000 
  Building Inspection            10,000  
  Drains                   1,260,930 
  Finance                       35,000 
  Fire                      536,200             
  Library                     325,000 
  Museum                     256,000 
  Other General Government                         4,457,600 
  Police                    1,129,210 
  Parks and Recreation                7,255,000 
  Streets                12,650,000 
  Public Works                  1,058,000 
  Operating Transfer Out                                            749,000 
 
  Total                                                         $         29,741,940;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed revenues of the Refuse Fund are 
anticipated: 
 
  Taxes      $     3,572,670 
  Charges for Services                        1,500 
  Interest and Rents                     175,000 
            
    Total      $            3,749,170;    
    
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Refuse Fund shall be sixty-eight one-
hundredths (.68) mills on the 2007 taxable valuation; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Refuse Fund shall be appropriated $3,749,170; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the General Debt Service Fund shall be appropriated 
$3,042,730; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That there shall be a tax levy of fifty one-hundredths (.50) mills 
on the 2007 taxable valuation for the General Debt Service Fund; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following budgets 
as shown in the 2007/08 budget document: 
   
  Major Road Fund     $   3,851,090 
  Local Road Fund     $   1,626,310 
  Community Development Block Grant Fund $         166,320 
  Troy Community Fair Fund    $            187,660 
  Budget Stabilization Fund    $            100,000 
  2000 MTF Debt Fund    $            247,890 
  Proposal A Debt Fund    $            837,000 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 14, 2007 
 

- 9 - 

  Proposal B Debt Fund    $         1,383,630 
  Proposal C Debt Fund    $            756,000 
  Special Assessment Fund    $         2,063,000 
  Water Supply System    $       15,224,790 
  Sanitary Sewer Fund    $       11,276,040 
  Aquatic Center Fund    $            628,670 
  Sylvan Glen Golf Course Fund   $         1,088,180 
  Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Fund  $         2,050,670 
  Building Operations     $         1,968,590 
  Information Technology Fund   $         1,606,900 
  Fleet Maintenance Fund    $         4,396,990 
  Workers’ Compensation Fund   $            365,000 
  Compensated Absences Fund   $         4,635,400 
  Unemployment Insurance Fund   $              95,000 
 
Yes: Howrylak, Lambert, Schilling, Broomfield, Fleming  
No: Stine, Beltramini                     
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 9:18 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:31 PM. 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 No Postponed Items 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2007-05-142 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2007-05-142-E-2  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 14, 2007 
 

- 10 - 

RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of April 16, 2007; 
the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Special City Council Meeting of April 23, 2007; the Minutes of the 
7:30 PM Special Meeting of April 30, 2007; and the Minutes of the 10:02 PM Special Meeting of 
April 30, 2007 be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Approval of City of Troy Proclamations:   
 
Resolution #2007-05-142-E-3 
 
RESOLVED, That the following City of Troy Proclamations be APPROVED: 
 
a) National Transportation Week – May 13-19, 2007 
b) Welcome Home Proclamation – Sergeant Michael Ullmann  
c) Welcome Home Proclamation – Lance Corporal Thomas Stenger  
d) Welcome Home Proclamation – Lance Corporal Cameron Mattox 
e) Welcome Home Proclamation – Lance Corporal Brock Brani 
f) Mental Health Month – May, 2007 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Vehicle Wash Services                  
 
Resolution #2007-05-142-E-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to furnish two (2) year 
requirements of City Vehicle Wash Services with an option to renew for two (2) additional years 
to the following bidders:  Tunnel O’Suds Car Wash, Your Car Wash, Pro Enterprise, Inc. and 
Jax Kar Wash as a result of a best value process, which the Troy City Council determines to be 
in the public interest, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened January 23, 2007, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting with the contracts 
expiring December 31, 2008; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed proposal and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.   
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Rebuild Electro-

Mechanical Axle Scale                  
 
Resolution #2007-05-142-E-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to furnish all labor, materials, 
and equipment to rebuild the City of Troy’s electro-mechanical axle scale to the low bidder, 
NuWeigh, Inc. of Davisburg, MI, for an estimated total cost of $17,575.00; and 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractor 
submission of proper contract and bid documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 14, 2007 
 

- 11 - 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Purchase of Self-
contained Breathing Apparatus Equipment                  

 
Resolution #2007-05-142-E-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to purchase Item #1A) 
Survivair Panther SCBA units with two air cylinders each, Item #2) additional equipment and 
Item #3) Survivair SCBA CBRNE upgrade kits from grant monies plus a 20% local match made 
available in the budgets for 2006/07 and 2007/08 to the low bidder, Southeast Equipment 
Company of Troy, MI, at unit prices as contained on the bid tabulation opened April 11, 2007, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with a contract 
expiration of November 1, 2007; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REJECTS Item #1) Survivair 
Panther Units with one carbon cylinder. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Home Chore Snow 

Removal Services                  
 
Resolution #2007-05-142-E-4d 
 
WHEREAS, On September 11, 2006, a contract for seasonal requirements of snow removal 
services for Troy residents using the Home Chore Program with an option to renew for one (1) 
additional year was awarded to the low bidders, O’Neal Father & Sons of Clinton Township, as 
primary contractor, and Redburn’s Snow Plowing and Lawn Maintenance, Inc. of Rochester 
Hills, as secondary contractor at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened August 23, 
2006 (Resolution #2006-09-356-E-4f); and 
 
WHEREAS, O’Neal Father & Sons and Redburn’s Snow Plowing and Lawn Maintenance, Inc. 
have agreed to exercise the one-year option to renew their respective contracts under the same 
pricing, terms and conditions; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the options to 
renew the contracts with O’Neal Father & Sons and Redburn’s Snow Plowing and Lawn 
Maintenance, Inc. to provide seasonal requirements of snow removal services for Troy 
residents using the Home Chore Program under the same prices, terms and conditions expiring 
April 30, 2008.    
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Streets Department, 

Rough Weed Mowing Services                  
 
Resolution #2007-05-142-E-4e 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to furnish three year 
requirements of all labor, tools, equipment and transportation for the Streets department rough 
weed mowing services with an option to renew for two additional years to the low bidder, 
Rasins Landscape and Associates, Inc. of Troy, MI, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation 
opened on April 23, 2007, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 14, 2007 
 

- 12 - 

meeting, which includes Proposal B – Optional Service of line trimming as needed, with the 
contract expiring December 31, 2009; and 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 
 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 07-1 – Section 

26 and 30 Bituminous Overlays Project No. 03.503.5                  
 
Resolution #2007-05-142-E-4f 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS Contract No. 07-1, Section 26 and 30 – 
Bituminous Overlays to Asix Asphalt Paving, LLC, 53162 Pontiac Trail, Suite C, Milford, MI 
48381 at an estimated total cost of $417,251.40; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost. 
 
E-5 Private Agreement for Marathon Gas Station – Project No. 06.930.3  
 
Resolution #2007-05-142-E-5 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and Andraos G. 
Kattouah for the installation of water main, approaches, sidewalks and soil erosion, and the 
Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-6 Resolution to Excuse Mayor Pro Tem Broomfield and Council Members Howrylak 

and Stine from Special City Council Meeting of Monday, April 23, 2007 
 
Resolution #2007-05-142-E-6 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Mayor Pro Tem 
Broomfield due to being out of the county, Council Member Howrylak due to being out of the 
county and Council Member Stine due to illness at the Special City Council meeting of April 23, 
2007.  
 
E-7 Temporary Waiver of Parking Restrictions in the Area of 1026 Maplelawn  
 
Resolution #2007-05-142-E-7 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES the no parking restrictions on the non-
hydrant side of Maplelawn, in the area of 1026 Maplelawn, on June 21, 2007, between the 
hours of 3:30 PM – 9:30 PM.  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 14, 2007 
 

- 13 - 

E-8 Resolution to Excuse Council Members Beltramini and Stine from Special City 
Council Meetings of Monday, April 30, 2007 

 
Resolution #2007-05-142-E-8 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Council Member 
Beltramini due to being out of the county and Council Member Stine due to illness at the 7:30 
PM Special City Council meeting of April 30, 2007 and the 10:02 PM Special City Council 
Meeting of April 30, 2007.  
 
E-9 Temporary Waiver of Parking Restrictions – Northfield Parkway 
 
Resolution #2007-05-142-E-9 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES the no parking restrictions on the east 
side of Northfield Parkway from the parking lot entrance to Congregation Shir Tikvah to the 
entrance to Boulan Park, on May 19, 2007.  
 
E-10 Casualty and Property Insurance Renewal – Request to Negotiate with the 

Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority (MMRMA) 
 
Resolution #2007-05-142-E-10 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Manager is hereby AUTHORIZED to negotiate a new agreement 
with the Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority (MMRMA) for the Casualty and 
Property Insurance needs of the City. 
 
E-11 Approval of Private Agreement for Troy School District (Martell & Wattles 

Elementary Schools) – Project No. 06.907.03 
 
Resolution #2007-05-142-E-11 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and Troy School District 
for the installation of water main, asphalt approach, aggregate base and concrete walkway at 
Martell and Wattles Elementary Schools and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and 
City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-12 Authorization to Assess Delinquent Accounts 
 
Resolution #2007-05-142-E-12 
 
WHEREAS, Section 1.167 of Chapter 5 and Section 6 of Chapter 20 of the Ordinance Code of 
the City of Troy require that delinquent payments and invoices, as of April 1st of each year, shall 
be reported and the City Council shall certify the same to the City Assessor who shall assess 
the same on the next annual City Tax Roll, to be collected as provided for collection of City 
Taxes;  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 14, 2007 
 

- 14 - 

WHEREAS, Section 10.8 of the Troy City Charter provides for the collection of delinquent 
invoices through property tax collection procedures; and 
 
WHEREAS, A list of individual properties is on file in the Office of the Treasurer and comprises 
a summation of totals as follows: 
  General Fund Invoices 
   Including Penalties    $   28,316.65 
  Special Assessments  
   Including Penalties & Interest         4,872.47 
  Water & Sewer Accounts 
   Including Penalties       710,536.85 
 
  Total                 $ 743,725.97; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Assessor is hereby AUTHORIZED to assess 
these delinquent accounts on the annual City Tax Roll. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-2 Hooters v. Troy – Proposed Consent Judgment  
  
Vote on Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2007-05-143 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES Hooters v. Troy – Proposed Consent 
Judgment until the Regular City Council meeting scheduled for Monday, May 21, 2007. 
 
Yes  All-7 
 
F-3 Approval of Consent Judgment Amendment for Property at NW Corner of Crooks 

and Big Beaver Road 
  
Resolution #2007-05-144 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Lambert  
  
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Stipulated Amendment to the 
Consent Judgment in the matter of In Re: The Petition of the City of Troy v. Lauren Ford, 
Elizabeth G. Ford, Winnifred Brockway, Alfred M. Davock, and Shell Oil Company (Oakland 
County Circuit Court Case No. 77-151482-CC) a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original minutes of this meeting; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 14, 2007 
 

- 15 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Assistant City Attorney is AUTHORIZED to sign the 
Stipulated Amendment to the Consent Judgment for entry with the court. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
F-4 Woodside Bible Church Request for Authorization to Install a Traffic Signal  
  
Resolution #2007-05-145 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby GRANTS Woodside Bible Church, located at 6600 
Rochester Road, the authority to install a privately funded traffic signal on Rochester Road, the 
specific location of which shall be determined by the City of Troy Traffic Engineer. 
 
Yes: All-7 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Local 
Development Finance Authority (LDFA); b) City Council Appointments: Advisory 
Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; 
Board of Zoning Appeals; and South Oakland County Resource Recovery 
Authority (SOCRRA)    

 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments  
 
Resolution #2007-05-146 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to serve on 
the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) 
Appointed by Mayor (5) – 4 Year Terms 
 
Michael J. Kidder Term Expires 06/30/11  
 
Brian Murphy Term Expires 06/30/11  
 
Yes: Broomfield, Fleming, Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 14, 2007 
 

- 16 - 

(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Resolution #2007-05-147 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities  
Appointed by Council (9-Regular; 3-Alternate) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Kristen Mayer (Alternate) Term Expires 11/01/09 
  
Kelly Clark Unexpired Term 11/01/08 
 
Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens  
Appointed by City Council (9) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Burdette L. Black, Jr. Term Expires 04/30/10 
 
Board of Zoning Appeals  
Appointed by City Council (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Kenneth L. Courtney Term Expires 04/30/10 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
Vote on Appointment to South Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority (SOCRRA) 
 
Resolution #2007-05-148 
Moved by Lambert   
Seconded by Beltramini   
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
South Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority (SOCRRA) 
Appointed by Council  (1-Delegate; 1-Alt. Delegate) – 1 Year Term 
 
Brian Murphy (Delegate) Term Expires 06/30/08 
 
Tim Richnak (Alt. Delegate) Term Expires 06/30/08 
 
Yes: All-7  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 14, 2007 
 

- 17 - 

F-10 Traffic Committee Recommendations – April 18, 2007  
 
Resolution #2007-05-149 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
(a) Installation of Signs – Three-Way Stop Signs at Castleton and Adonis 
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. 07-04-SS be ISSUED for the installation of three-
way stop signs at Castleton and Adonis. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
F-5 Approval of the Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority’s 2007/08 Budget  
 
Resolution #2007-05-150 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority has adopted and recommends that 
City Council approve its 2007/08 budget;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Troy 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority’s annual budget for fiscal year July 1, 2007 through June 
30, 2008. 
  
Yes: All-7 
 
F-6 Approval of the Troy Local Development Finance Authority’s 2007/08 Budget  
  
Resolution #2007-05-151 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Local Development Finance Authority has adopted and recommends that 
City Council approve its 2007/08 budget; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Troy Local 
Development Finance Authority’s annual budget for fiscal year July 1, 2007 through June 30, 
2008. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Lambert, Stine 
No: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 14, 2007 
 

- 18 - 

F-7  Approval of the Troy Downtown Development Authority’s 2007/08 Budget 
  
Resolution #2007-05-152 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Downtown Development Authority has adopted and recommends that 
City Council approve its 2007/08 budget;  
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Troy 
Downtown Development Authority’s annual budget for fiscal year July 1, 2007 through June 30, 
2008. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Lambert, Stine, Schilling  
No: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
F-8 Information Technology/Finance Renovations  
  
Resolution #2007-05-153 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Broomfield   
 
RESOLVED, That City staff is hereby AUTHORIZED to renovate office space for the 
Information Technology/Finance departments, as described in Attachment A, Proposed Floor 
Plan; and to expend an estimated $237,000.00, in accordance with Attachment B, Detailed 
Pricing, utilizing in-house personnel, approved contracts, and standard purchasing procedures. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Fleming, Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
F-9 City Code Chapter 60, Fees and Bonds – Vital Certificates  
  
Resolution #2007-05-154 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Troy City Code, Chapter 60 – Fees 
and Bonds Required, to provide for a fee structure for Vital Certificates- Birth and Death 
Certificates that would mirror the fees charged by the Oakland County Clerk/Register of Deeds, 
as presented.  
 
Yes: All-7 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 14, 2007 
 

- 19 - 

F-11 Final Site Condominium Review – Stone Haven Park Site Condominium, South of 
Wattles, West of Crooks, Section 20 – R-1B  

 
Resolution #2007-05-155 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Final Plan, as submitted under 
Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family Residential Development) for 
the development of a One-Family Residential Site Condominium known as Stone Haven Park 
Site Condominium, located south of Wattles and west of Crooks, in Section 20, including 9 
home sites, within the R-1B zoning district, being 4.285 acres in size. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
F-12 Bid Waiver – Professional Services – Fire Department Promotional Testing 

Services 
 
Resolution #2007-05-156 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Stine  
 
WHEREAS, EMPCO, Inc. has been providing testing and hiring services for the City’s Fire 
Department for 13 years; and  
 
WHEREAS, EMPCO meets departmental needs, complies with Act 78 Commission 
requirements, purchased all the Michigan Municipal League’s testing services and has proven 
to be fair and impartial;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 
procedures and a contract to provide fire division assistant fire chief and fire staff technician 
promotional testing be AWARDED to EMPCO, Inc., at a cost of $2,100.00 for preparing, 
administering and scoring the fire staff technician written examination, plus $21.00 per 
candidate, $3,800.00 for conducting the fire staff technician interview for the first nine 
candidates, and $3,600.00 for each additional assessment day to interview additional 
candidates; $4,500.00 per assessment center for the division assistant fire chief, plus $1,800.00 
per day and $250.00 per candidate fee; and mileage to be reimbursed at the rate of $.485 per 
mile; and  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, The City Manager and Human Resources Director 
are hereby AUTHORIZED to execute the agreement with EMPCO, Inc. when in acceptable 
form.  
 
Yes: All-7 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 14, 2007 
 

- 20 - 

F-13 Amendment to Chapter 20 of the Troy City Code (Water and Sewer Rates)  
 
Resolution #2007-05-157 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an amendment to Chapter 20 of the 
Troy City Code (Water and Sewer Rates), a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
F-14 Reconsideration of Approval of the Sale of City-Owned Surplus Remnant Parcel to 

RPS, Troy, LLC, Fronting on Big Beaver between Troy and Louis Streets, Section 
22 – Sidwell #88-20-22-356-031 – No Action Taken by City Council 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Troy Downtown Development Authority’s (TDDA’s) Development Plan and the Big 

Beaver Corridor Study – June 4, 2007 
b) Standard Resolutions 1, 2 and 3 – Special Assessment for Paving on Eckford in Section 

15 – May 21, 2007  
c) Rezoning Application (File Number Z-625 B) – Southwest Corner of Square Lake and 

Niles, Section 9 – R-2 to O-1 – May 21, 2007  
d) Conditional Rezoning Application (File No. CR-002) – Proposed Grand Troy Villas, West 

Side of Rochester Road, North of Wattles Road, Section 15 – CR-1 to R-1T (CR-002) – 
May 21, 2007  

e) Kostal of America, Inc. - 350 Stephenson - Request for Industrial Development District 
(IDD) and the Issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) – June 4, 
2007    

Noted and Filed 
    
G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced   
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1 No Council Comments Advanced    
 
Council Member Beltramini requested information from staff in regard to what the options and 
plans are for addressing the deep population problem. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 14, 2007 
 

- 21 - 

In response to Council Member Lambert’s question regarding the work being done in the 
parking lot area next to the skate park on Town Center, Assistant City Manager John Lamerato 
advised that some streambank work is being conducted in addition to adding a picnic area that 
would include tables. 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees Amended/Final – November 8, 2006  
b) Library Advisory Board/Final – January 11, 2007  
c) Joint Local Development Finance Authority/Final – January 29, 2007 
d) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – March 1, 2007 
e) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – March 7, 2007 
f) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – March 7, 2007  
g) Library Advisory Board/Final – March 8, 2007  
h) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – March 14, 2007  
i) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – March 20, 2007  
j) Downtown Development Authority/Final – March 21, 2007  
k) Planning Commission Special/Study Final – March 27, 2007  
l) Troy Daze Festival Committee/Draft – March 27, 2007  
m) Youth Council/Final – March 28, 2007 
n) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – April 3, 2007  
o) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – April 3, 2007  
p) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – April 4, 2007  
q) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – April 4, 2007 
r) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – April 5, 2007  
s) Planning Commission/Draft – April 10, 2007  
t) Planning Commission/Final – April 10, 2007  
u) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – April 17, 2007  
v) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – April 24, 2007  
w) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – April 24, 2007  
x) Youth Council/Draft – April 25, 2007 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-2 Department Reports:   
a) City of Troy Quarterly Financial Report – March 31, 2007  
b) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction – March 2007 and 

November 2006  
c) Police Department – 2007 Year-To-Date Calls for Police Service Report   
d) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of April, 2007 

Noted and Filed 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 14, 2007 
 

- 22 - 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter to Chief Craft from State Senator John Pappageorge Commending the Troy Police 

Department on Earning First Place at the Michigan Police Shoot  
b) Letter of Thanks from Resident Katherine Weiss Regarding the Efforts and 

Professionalism of Officer Linton   
c) Letter of Appreciation from Brittney Hall Regarding Recycling Program  
d) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from William McNabb Jr. Regarding Internship 

Program  
e) Letter of Thanks to Detective Reynolds from Joseph Marchetti and Bruce Wade, Oakland 

Police Academy, for Participating in the Basic Detective/Investigator Program 
f) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from David Andrea Regarding the Professionalism 

and Valor of Captain Murphy and the Troy Police Department during the Long Lake 
Crossing Building Incident  

g) Letter to Chief Craft from Bonnie Woodworth Commending the Troy Police Department 
on the Handling of the Incident on Monday, April 9, 2007  

h) Letter to Chief Craft from Oakland County Prosecuting Attorney David Gorcyca 
Commending the Efforts of Officer Stansbury  

i) Letter to Chief Craft from Gary Smith in Appreciation of the Efforts of Officer Kaptur    
j) Letter to Chief Craft from Dave Papandrea Commending Officer Dungjen for his Service 

and Professionalism  
k) Letter to Chief Craft from John Ballantine Commending Officer McLaughlin  
l) Letter of Thanks to the Troy Police Department from Pastor Paul Monson, St. Augustine 

Ev. Lutheran Church  
m) Letter of Appreciation to the Troy Police Department from Wanda Anderson  
n) Letter of Appreciation to City Manager Phillip Nelson from Troy Historical Society 

Regarding the Support and Assistance of Cindy Stewart and Loraine Campbell     
Noted and Filed 

 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:   

a) Waterford Township – Resolution for Cost Recovery  
b) City of Ferndale – Resolution Regarding State of Michigan Budget Deficit   

Noted and Filed 
 

J-5  Calendar 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-6  Communication from Senator John Pappageorge Regarding the City of Troy Being 

Named an Entrepreneurial Friendly City by the University of Michigan-Dearborn 
School of Management 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-7  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Notice of 
Hearing for the Electric Customers of the Detroit Edison Company – Case No. U-
14702-R, Case No. U-15259 

Noted and Filed 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 14, 2007 
 

- 23 - 

J-8  Communication from Police Chief Craft Regarding the “Keep Kids Alive Drive 25” 
Campaign 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-9  Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority (SOCRRA) – 
Quarterly Report for April, 2007 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-10  Communication from Senator John Pappageorge Regarding Sylvan Glen Golf 
Course Streambank Restoration Being Named Project of the Year by the Michigan 
Chapter of the American Public Works Association 

Noted and Filed 
 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 Continuation of March 22, 2007 Discussion on Strategic Planning Initiatives 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:  No action taken by City Council. 
 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 11:33 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



 
 

Service Commendation 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Troy wish to express  

on behalf of the City, their appreciation to 
 
 

HOMES FOR OUR TROOPS 
 
 

In recognition of outstanding service to the community, and 
 

 
WHEREAS, As a non-profit organization, “Homes for Our Troops” works to build handicap 
accessible homes to help our injured service men and women, striving to welcome them home 
with honor and respect; and   
 
WHEREAS, Through these efforts “Homes for Our Troops” has furthered those ideals that 
contribute to a better community; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council, being the duly elected 
voice of the citizens of Troy, express the City’s appreciation and recognition for the service of this 
distinguished organization.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution be presented as a lasting expression 
of the City’s gratitude and appreciation for its contribution to the betterment of the City of Troy, 
Michigan. 
 
Presented this 18th  day of May  2007. 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03a



 
Service Commendation 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Troy wish to express  
on behalf of the City, their appreciation to 

 
 

LINDA THIELFOLDT 
 
 

In recognition of outstanding service to the community, and 
 

 
WHEREAS, As a member of the non-profit organization, “Homes for Our Troops,” Linda works to 
build handicap accessible homes to help our injured service men and women, striving to 
welcome them home with honor and respect; and   
 
WHEREAS, Through these efforts “Homes for Our Troops” has furthered those ideals that 
contribute to a better community; and 
 
WHEREAS, Linda also presents a handmade quilt to a returning hero to show her gratitude and 
support; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council, being the duly elected 
voice of the citizens of Troy, express the City’s appreciation and recognition for the work of this 
this distinguished citizen.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution be presented as a lasting expression 
of the City’s gratitude and appreciation for her contribution to the betterment of the City of Troy, 
Michigan. 
 
Presented this 18th  Day of May  2007. 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03b



 
PROCLAMATION IN RECOGNITION OF  

FALUN DAFA DAY 
HONORING TRUTHFULNESS-COMPASSION-FORBEARANCE 

  
 
WHEREAS, Falun Dafa also known as Falun Gong, is a peaceful and healthy self-
improvement practice rooted in ancient Chinese culture that consists of five gentle 
exercises, including meditation and centers around the universal principal of 
Truthfulness, Compassion, and Forbearance; 
 
WHEREAS, the teachings of Falun Dafa, through meditation and spiritual cultivation, 
are perceived as effective means of improving overall mental and physical health, as 
well as reducing stress; and 
 
WHEREAS, Master Li Hongzhi, the founder of Falun Dafa, has helped hundreds of 
millions across the world improve their health and moral standards, as well as deepen 
their understanding of life, humanity, and the universe, through the practice of Falun 
Dafa; and 
 
WHEREAS, Transcending culture and racial boundaries, Falun Dafa has touched the 
lives of more than 100 million people in over 60 countries, including many people in 
New York, of different ages, professions, and racial backgrounds; and 
 
WHEREAS, All Falun Dafa activities, including classes and practices, are offered by 
volunteers and are open to the public and free of charge; and 
 
WHEREAS, The persecution of the practitioners of Falun Dafa in China is an attack on 
basic human rights and should not be tolerated anywhere in the world; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council does hereby 
declare May 21, 2007, FALUN DAFA DAY in the City of Troy and urge all citizens to 
join in the celebration. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03c



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
    May 11, 2007 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
       Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – State of Michigan Cooperative 

Purchasing Agreement MiDEAL – Toro Lawn Maintenance Equipment 
 
Background 
 
� The State of Michigan MiDEAL Program awarded a contract for the complete line of Toro lawn 

maintenance equipment to Spartan Distributors, Inc. of Auburn Hills, MI (Contract #071B7200194) 
� The equipment being purchased is either replacing equipment due to come out of service, 

supplementary, or will be shared between the two golf facilities. 
� Equipment to be replaced will be auctioned on the MITN system, after delivery of the new 

equipment. 
� Spartan Distributors will purchase and install the Jodale Perry ROPS Enclosed Cab, which is not 

available at the state discounted prices, but provides added protection to the operator from 
pesticide applications and the elements at a cost of $5,355.00.  

� Discounts on this equipment are available up to 28% from manufacturer’s suggested retail prices. 
 
Financial Considerations 
 
� Funds are available in the Sylvan Glen capital account # 788.7978.010 
                  
       BUDGET  UNIT COST          TOTAL 
 
(1) Toro Workman 3200 2WD Sprayer          $ 25,000.00  $ 24,915.14        $ 24,915.14 
 
(1) Jodale Perry Boxer ROPS Cab                   $   6,000.00               $   5,355.00        $   5,355.00 
 
(1) Toro SandPro 5040            $ 17,500.00               $ 17,338.56        $ 17,338.56 
 
(1) Toro ProCore 648                                    $ 18,000.00               $ 18,356.11        $ 18,356.11 
 
(1) Toro Groundsmaster 3500                          $ 30,000.00  $ 27,316.81        $ 27,316.81 
                                                                         $ 96,500.00                                          $ 93,281.62 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04a



Page 2 of 2 

 
May 11, 2007 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Cooperative Award – Toro Lawn Maintenance Equipment 
 
 
Legal Considerations 
 
� There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
� This purchase will replace equipment due to come out of service, or supplement existing 

equipment for faster more efficient operations. (Goal II & V) 
� The specialized equipment can be shared between the two golf facilities minimizing the need to 

duplicate additional cost of operations. (Goal II) 
 
Options 
 
� City management and the golf division recommend awarding a contract to provide Toro lawn 

maintenance equipment to Spartan Distributors of Auburn Hills, MI through the terms of the State 
of Michigan Cooperative Purchasing Agreement, MiDEAL – contract #071B7200194 for an 
estimated total cost of $ 93,281.62. 

 
 
 
 
dtm  G:\Bid Award 06-07 NewFormat/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 4 – GolfCourseMaintEquip 04.07.doc  

 



 
 
  May 14, 2007 
 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 

 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – State Of Michigan Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement MiDEAL - John Deere 
 
  
Background 
• The State of Michigan MiDEAL Program awarded a contract for John Deere brand lawn and 

garden commercial and agricultural equipment to John Deere Company (Contract # 
071B6200191).  

• The mower being purchased will replace a mower to be sold at auction. 
• Discounts on this equipment are available up to 24% from manufacturer’s suggested retail prices.   
 

Financial Considerations 
• Funds are available in the Public Works Fleet Division capital account # 565.7981. 

 
      BUDGET            UNIT COST      TOTAL 

 
    (1) John Deere 997 – Zero Turn W\72” deck  $35,000.00         $ 12,448.04 $  12,448.04 
            $35,000.00    $  12,448.04  
 
Legal Considerations  
• There are no legal considerations associated with this item.  
 
Policy Considerations 
• The mower is used on a daily basis to assure proper and proactive turf management. (Goal I) 

 
 Options 
• City management and the Public Works Fleet Division recommend the purchase of (1) one John 

Deere zero turn commercial riding mower with 72” deck to John Deere Company of Cary, NC 
through the terms of the State of Michigan Cooperative Purchasing Agreement, MiDEAL – 
contract #071B6200191 for an estimated total cost of $12,448.04. 
 
 
 
 
SPL\ S:\Murphy’s Review/Agenda 05.21.07 – SR4 – Mower – MI 
 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04b



 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT
 

 
May 16, 2007 
 
 
TO:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Mary Redden, Administrative Assistant to the City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: Travel Authorization and Approval to 

Expend Funds for Council Member Dave Lambert’s Travel Expenses -  
 National League of Cities (NLC) Community and Economic Development 

Steering Committee Meeting 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
 Council Member Dave Lambert has requested authorization and approval to attend the NLC 

Community and Economic Development Steering Committee meeting from June 14 - 16, 2007 in 
New Haven, CT. 

 
 In an effort to save tax dollars, Council Member Lambert will be combining this trip with a business 

trip to Virginia. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
 Funds are available in Council’s education and training account. 

 
LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 

 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
 There are no policy considerations associated with this item. 

 
OPTIONS 
 
 It is recommended that City Council authorize the expenditure of funds for travel expenses for 

Council Member Dave Lambert’s attendance of the NLC Community and Economic Development 
Steering Committee meeting. 

 
 
 
MR/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2007\05.21.07 - Standard Purchasing Resolution 10 - NLC Community and Economic Development Steering Committee  

campbellld
Text Box
E-04c







TO: MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF TROY CITY COUNCIL 
FROM: LORI GRIGG BLUHM, CITY ATTORNEY 

ALLAN T. MOTZNY, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 
DATE: May 16, 2007 

  
  

SUBJECT: MORRELL v TROY, ET AL 
 

 
 
 

 Plaintiff Kenneth Morrell filed the attached lawsuit against the City of Troy and Troy Police 
Officer Meghan Broderick.  In the complaint, Mr. Morrell alleges a count of assault, gross 
negligence, a violation of Michigan’s Persons with Disabilities Civil Rights Act (PWDCRA), 
Constitutional violations, false imprisonment, and racial discrimination.  The lawsuit was filed in 
Oakland County Circuit Court and assigned to Judge Steven N. Andrews. 

According to the complaint, the Plaintiff is a disabled person who is African-American.  He 
contends that the PWDCRA entitles him to have employees of self-service gas stations pump 
gasoline into his car on demand.  He alleges that on April 28, 2006 he drove to the BP gas station at 
Maple and John R., seeking some gasoline for his car.  Plaintiff claims that his request for gasoline 
was denied, and that the gas station owner/ operator instead contacted the Troy Police, who sent 
Officer Broderick to the scene.  In his complaint, he alleges that Officer Broderick aided and abetted 
the gas station employees in violating his rights under the PWDCRA.  He also complains that Officer 
Broderick drew a weapon (a handgun) on the Plaintiff without justification.  Officer Broderick denies 
that she drew a handgun, although the circumstances may have justified it. She did take her 
department issued taser out of the holster, but did not use it. Plaintiff also complains that another 
unidentified Troy police sergeant told him he was permanently barred from the BP gas station, and 
that he would be arrested for trespassing if he returned.  He claims the incident resulted in emotional 
agitation, forcing him to seek medical help, including medication for his nerves. He is seeking over 
$25,000 in damages, plus attorney fees and costs. Plaintiff has also named the gas station owners 
and its manager as co-defendants in this lawsuit.   

 Absent any objection from City Council, our office will proceed with aggressive defense of the 
City and Officer Broderick in this case.  If you have any questions concerning the above, please let 
us know. 

campbellld
Text Box
E-05































 

 
 
May 15, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Regular Business for Standard Resolutions 1, 2, & 3 for paving of the east 

½ of Eckford, in section 15, SAD #06.202.1 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Residents of Eckford Street expressed interest in an informational meeting to determine their 

interest in paving all or part of the street under Special Assessment guidelines.  The Engineering 
Department poll specified an interest by the residents of the east half of the street to have the 
meeting proceed.  Staff met with the residents on February 1, 2007, and explained the procedure 
to the residents. 

 
On February 9 and March 9, 2007, petitions were submitted to the City Clerk’s Office detailing 
those residents approving of the establishment of a Special Assessment District to pay the cost of 
asphalt paving from 785 and 810 Eckford east to Rochester Road (approximately 1,155 lineal 
feet).  A home outside the district boundaries, at 689 Eckford, also signed the petition. 
 
Fifteen (15) of twenty-two (22) of the owners signed in favor of the project, or 68.18%.  Also, 
60.84% of the frontage on the roadway signed in favor of the project.   
 
Council is asked at this point to approve Standard Resolutions 1 (preparations of plans and cost 
estimates), Standard Resolution 2 (approval of the plans and cost estimates), and Standard 
Resolution 3 (setting a Public Hearing for final approval/disapproval of the project).   
 
Of special note in this project are the six houses at the eastern, Rochester Road, end of Eckford 
(3 on the north side, and 3 on the south side).  These homes were built by a developer, to City 
standards for drainage, culverts, and drive approaches.  Therefore, the cost of these items is 
excluded from their portion of the Special Assessment. 
 
The Engineering Department has also prepared a cost estimate for paving the entire length of 
Eckford, from Tallman east to Rochester Road.  A breakdown of the potential Special Assessment 
costs for the entire road is included, as Council has the authority to initiate a Special Assessment 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-02



district of their own volition, and without a petition from the owners involved.  If Council were to 
take this path, a new Public Hearing for Standard Resolutions, 1, 2, & 3 would be required, along 
with the final action of a Public Hearing for Standard Resolution #4.  
 
It should be noted that Resolutions 1, 2, and 3 were announced as a Public Hearing, when they 
are actually Regular Business items.  My apologies for the error. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The total project cost is $428,100, of which the City share is $352,300.  This amount is budgeted 

in the Local Roads fund. 
 

The Special Assessment share of $75,800 will be transferred out of the Local Roads fund, into a 
Special Assessment account.  The owners will then have a ten (10) year payment plan, at 6% 
interest to reimburse the City for the up front portion that the City pays.  There is no pre payment 
penalty, and the Special Assessment can be paid in full at any point.  It is, however, a lien on the 
property from the moment City Council approves Standard Resolution #4.  Any owner wishing to 
sell their property after the lien is placed, must reimburse the entire Special Assessment amount 
to receive clear title to the property.  

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations with this item. 

 
Policy Considerations:  
 

This paving project is in keeping with City Council Goal I; ‘Enhance the livability and safety of the 
community’ by helping to protect residents vehicles, cutting down on air-born dust and dirt, 
providing a safer walking surface, and updating the drainage in the area. 
 
This paving project is in keeping with City Council Goal II; ‘Minimize the cost and increase the 
efficiency and effectiveness of City government’ by reducing the costs of repeated maintenance of 
gravel and dirt roads. 

 
This paving project is in keeping with City Council Goal V; ‘Maintain relevance of public 
infrastructure to meet changing public needs’ in that three (3) other requests for paving this area 
have failed for lack of owner support.  At this time there is a changed public need meeting the 
requirements for a Special Assessment District in this area. 

 
Options: 
 
 Council may move forward with the project by approving Standard resolutions 1, 2, & 3, or stop 

the project at this point by not acting on the resolutions. 
 
 
NL/nl H:\SpecialAssess\Eckford\Memo 123.03.26.07 





































Parcel ID # Street Frontage % Total SAD Cost % of Bal. Owners Signed Y/N % Signed
88-20-15-251-008 785 Eckford 225.00 9.74 7,900.00 12.50 2 1 N 0
88-20-15-251-018 873 Eckford 90.00 3.90 3,160.00 5.00 2 2 Y 3.90
88-20-15-251-019 901 Eckford 90.00 3.90 3,160.00 5.00 1 1 Y 3.90
88-20-15-251-020 927 Eckford 90.00 3.90 3,160.00 5.00 2 2 Y 3.90
88-20-15-251-021 955 Eckford 90.00 3.90 3,160.00 5.00 2 2 Y 3.90
88-20-15-251-022 959 Eckford 90.00 3.90 3,160.00 5.00 2 2 Y 3.90
88-20-15-251-023 841 Eckford 112.50 4.87 3,950.00 6.25 2 2 Y 4.87
88-20-15-251-024 845 Eckford 112.50 4.87 3,950.00 6.25 2 2 Y 4.87
88-20-15-251-033 971 Eckford 85.00 3.68 2,100.00 1 1 Y 3.68
88-20-15-251-034 983 Eckford 85.00 3.68 2,100.00 2 2 Y 3.68
88-20-15-251-035 995 Eckford 85.00 3.68 2,100.00 2 2 Y 3.68
88-20-15-252-010 870 Eckford 112.50 4.87 3,950.00 6.25 2 0 N 0
88-20-15-252-011 876 Eckford 112.50 4.87 3,950.00 6.25 2 0 N 0
88-20-15-252-019 882 Eckford 112.50 4.87 3,950.00 6.25 2 0 N 0
88-20-15-252-020 914 Eckford 112.50 4.87 3,950.00 6.25 2 2 Y 4.87
88-20-15-252-022 810 Eckford 95.00 4.11 3,335.56 5.28 2 2 Y 4.11
88-20-15-252-023 850 Eckford 130.00 5.63 4,564.44 7.22 1 0 N 0
88-20-15-252-024 944 Eckford 98.00 4.24 3,440.89 5.44 1 1 Y 4.24
88-20-15-252-025 960 Eckford 127.00 5.50 4,459.11 7.06 2 0 N 0
88-20-15-252-043 972 Eckford 85.00 3.68 2,100.00 1 1 Y 3.68
88-20-15-252-044 984 Eckford 85.00 3.68 2,100.00 2 2 Y 3.68
88-20-15-252-045 996 Eckford 85.00 3.68 2,100.00 2 1 N 0.00

SAD Cost -6  1,800.00 100.00 63,200.00 63,200.00 39 26 15 60.84
SAD Cost +6 510.00 12,600.00
Total SAD Cost 2,310.00 75,800.00  

Total Owners 22 Total Frontage 2,310.00 Total % of Project 100.00%
Owners Signed 15 Frontage Signed 1,405.50 % of Project Signe 60.84%
% Owners Signed 68.18% % Frontage Signed 60.84%

Petition Analysis

City of Troy - Assessing Department
SAD #06.202.1 Eckford Street Paving

785 - 996 Eckford



47
6.

17
'

2330.58'

32
0.

00
'

270.09'

15
6.

17
'

15
1.

92
'

255.09'

29
4.

28
'

2320.98'

44
6.

20
'

Eckford

R
oc

he
st

er

Ta
llm

an

124.0'181.58' 675.0' 90.0' 135.0' 225.0' 225.0' 112.5' 112.5' 90.0' 90.0' 90.0' 90.0' 90.0' 85.0' 85.0' 100.09'

100.98 90.0' 100.0' 225.0' 225.0' 135.0' 95.0' 85.0' 140.0' 225.0' 95.0' 130.0' 112.5' 112.5' 112.5' 112.5' 98.0' 127.0' 85.0' 85.0' 85.09'

29
6.

2'

44
6.

2'

88-20-15-251

88-20-15-252

-025 -026 -017 -027 -028 -031 -008 -023 -024 -018 -019 -020 -021 -022
-033 -034 -035

NOT
IN

DISTRICT

-028 -002 -037 -004 -005 -038 -039 -040 -033 -008 -022 -023 -010 -011 -019 -020 -024 -025 -043 -044 -045

501 Vacant 525 689 749 759 785 841 845 873 901 927 955 959

971 983 995

500 510

530 600 650 670 682 718 750 770 810 850 870 876 882 914 944 960

972 984 996 13.04% 1.74% 2.61% 4.35% 4.35% 2.17% 2.17% 1.74% 1.74%1.74%

1.64%1.64% 1.93%

2.61% 1.84% 1.64% 2.70%

4.35% 1.84% 2.51% 2.17% 2.17% 2.17% 2.17% 1.89% 2.45%

1.64%1.64% 1.64%

Eckford Paving Special Assessment District
T2N, R11E, Section 15

5,176.74 Total Front Footage

21
5.

0'

22
5.

0'

23
1.

2'

22
1.

2'

44
6.

2'

44
6.

2'

licarila
Text Box
Eckford Paving SAD Option "B"  785 - 996 Eckford

licarila
Text Box
SAD Cost $75,800.00.   8 different unit sizes and SAD Costs, 971 - 996 Eckford costs at $2,100.00 ea.

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box
Option "B" Area

licarila
Text Box
      All @  $3,160.00     873 Eckford  $3,160.00 901 Eckford  $3,160.00 927 Eckford  $3,160.00 955 Eckford  $3,160.00 959 Eckford  $3,160.00

licarila
Text Box
       All @  $3,950.00     841 Eckford  $3,950.00 845 Eckford  $3,950.00 870 Eckford  $3,950.00 876 Eckford  $3,950.00 882 Eckford  $3,950.00 914 Eckford  $3,950.00

licarila
Text Box
   Each One Different   810 Eckford  $3,335.56 944 Eckford  $3,440.89 960 Eckford  $4,459.11 850 Eckford  $4,564.44 785 Eckford  $7,900.00

licarila
Text Box
       All @  $2,100.00     971 Eckford  $2,100.00 983 Eckford  $2,100.00 995 Eckford  $2,100.00 972 Eckford  $2,100.00 984 Eckford  $2,100.00 996 Eckford  $2,100.00

licarila
Text Box
Y

licarila
Text Box
Y

licarila
Text Box
Y

licarila
Text Box
Y

licarila
Text Box
Y

licarila
Text Box
Y

licarila
Text Box
Y

licarila
Text Box
Y

licarila
Text Box
Y

licarila
Text Box
Y

licarila
Text Box
Y

licarila
Text Box
Y

licarila
Text Box
Y

licarila
Text Box
Y

licarila
Text Box
Y



     Preliminary Cost Estimate January 16, 2007
(OPTION "B")

Project Location: Eckford Street (Rochester Rd. to address #785)
Project No.: ___06.202.1       
Proposed Improvement: 1,170 LF, 24' wide Bituminous Asphalt Pavement with Edgedrain

Item      Quantity Description Unit Cost Total Cost
SAD Share - Asphalt Section (1,170')

1. 567 Tons Bit. Mix No. 500, 20C - 3" 60.00         34,020.00       
2. 284 Tons Bit. Mix No. 1100T, 20AA - 1 1/2" 70.00         19,880.00       
3. 146 Tons Bit. Mix No. 1100T, 36B - 4" Driveway 100.00       14,600.00       
4. 32 SY 6" Non-Reinforced Conc. Driveway 70.00         2,240.00         
5. 71 Tons 21AA Aggregate for Shoulders 20.00         1,420.00         

Sub-Total 72,160.00      

Engineering, Admin. And Contingencies, 30% 21,648.00      
Sub-Total 93,808.00      

Maintenance Savings (18,000.00)     
Total Special Assessment Share - Asphalt 75,800.00      

City Share
6. 674 SY Rem. Pavement (including Driveways) 10.00         6,740.00         
7. 17 Each Remove 12" CMP Culvert 150.00       2,550.00         
8. 2 Each Remove Tree 500.00       1,000.00         
9. 572 CY Earth Excavation 10.00         5,720.00         

10. 520 CY Subgrade Undercut, w/ crush. Conc. 40.00         20,800.00       
11. 3120 SY Grading 3.00           9,360.00         
12. 1030 Tons Aggregate Base, 21AA (For Road) 20.00         20,600.00       
13. 209 Tons Agg. Base, 21AA (For Driveways) 20.00         4,180.00         
14. 1100 LF 12" RCP Storm Sewer 40.00         44,000.00       
15. 1800 LF 8" Edge Drain 20.00         36,000.00       
16. 19 Each 2' Dia. Catch Basin 1,000.00    19,000.00       
17. 5 Each 4' Dia. Manhole 1,500.00    7,500.00         
18. 22 Each Relocate Mailbox Post 100.00       2,200.00         
19. 15 Each Reconstruct/Adjust Structure 500.00       7,500.00         
20. 2340 LF Ditching 5.00           11,700.00       
21. 4680 SY Turf Restoration Incidental

Sub-Total 198,850.00    

Engineering, Admin. And Contingencies, 30% 59,655.00      
Sub-Total 258,505.00    

Maintenance Savings 18,000.00      
Total City Share 276,500.00    

TOTAL PROJECT COST 352,300.00    

Prepared by:  Antonio Cicchetti
\\G\Projects\Projects - 2006\06.202.1 - Eckford SAD\SS\Preliminary Cost Estimate - 2006.xls



Project Name

Project # 06.202.1 Option B

 
Assessment

int. @.06 2,100.00

Year Principal Interest Payment Balance
1 210.00$         210.00$         1,890.00$     
2 210.00$         113.40$       323.40$         1,680.00$     
3 210.00$         100.80$       310.80$         1,470.00$     
4 210.00$         88.20$         298.20$         1,260.00$     
5 210.00$         75.60$         285.60$         1,050.00$     
6 210.00$         63.00$         273.00$         840.00$         
7 210.00$         50.40$         260.40$         630.00$         
8 210.00$         37.80$         247.80$         420.00$         
9 210.00$         25.20$         235.20$         210.00$         
10 210.00$         210.00$         -$              

TOTAL 2,100.00$      554.40$       2,654.40$      

971 Eckford
983 Eckford
995 Eckford
972 Eckford
984 Eckford
996 Eckford

88-20-15-251-035
88-20-15-252-043
88-20-15-252-044
88-20-15-252-045

City of Troy
Assessing Department

Eckford Bituminous Asphalt Paving

Amortization Table
10 Year

88-20-15-251-033
88-20-15-251-034



Project Name

Project # 06.202.1 Option B

 
Assessment

int. @.06 3,160.00

Year Principal Interest Payment Balance
1 316.00$         316.00$         2,844.00$     
2 316.00$         170.64$       486.64$         2,528.00$     
3 316.00$         151.68$       467.68$         2,212.00$     
4 316.00$         132.72$       448.72$         1,896.00$     
5 316.00$         113.76$       429.76$         1,580.00$     
6 316.00$         94.80$         410.80$         1,264.00$     
7 316.00$         75.84$         391.84$         948.00$         
8 316.00$         56.88$         372.88$         632.00$         
9 316.00$         37.92$         353.92$         316.00$         
10 316.00$         316.00$         -$              

TOTAL 3,160.00$      834.24$       3,994.24$      

873 Eckford
901 Eckford
927 Eckford
955 Eckford
959 Eckford

Assessing Department

Eckford Bituminous Asphalt Paving

Amortization Table

City of Troy

88-20-15-251-019
88-20-15-251-020

10 Year

88-20-15-251-022
88-20-15-251-021

88-20-15-251-018



Project Name

Project # 06.202.1 Option B

 
Assessment

int. @.06 3,335.56

Year Principal Interest Payment Balance
1 333.56$         333.56$         3,002.00$     
2 333.56$         180.12$       513.68$         2,668.45$     
3 333.56$         160.11$       493.66$         2,334.89$     
4 333.56$         140.09$       473.65$         2,001.34$     
5 333.56$         120.08$       453.64$         1,667.78$     
6 333.56$         100.07$       433.62$         1,334.22$     
7 333.56$         80.05$         413.61$         1,000.67$     
8 333.56$         60.04$         393.60$         667.11$         
9 333.56$         40.03$         373.58$         333.56$         
10 333.56$         333.56$         (0.00)$           

TOTAL 3,335.56$      880.59$       4,216.15$      

810 Eckford

Amortization Table
10 Year

88-20-15-252-022

City of Troy
Assessing Department

Eckford Bituminous Asphalt Paving



Project Name

Project # 06.202.1 Option B

 
Assessment

int. @.06 3,440.89

Year Principal Interest Payment Balance
1 344.09$         344.09$         3,096.80$     
2 344.09$         185.81$       529.90$         2,752.71$     
3 344.09$         165.16$       509.25$         2,408.62$     
4 344.09$         144.52$       488.61$         2,064.53$     
5 344.09$         123.87$       467.96$         1,720.45$     
6 344.09$         103.23$       447.32$         1,376.36$     
7 344.09$         82.58$         426.67$         1,032.27$     
8 344.09$         61.94$         406.03$         688.18$         
9 344.09$         41.29$         385.38$         344.09$         
10 344.09$         344.09$         -$              

TOTAL 3,440.89$      908.39$       4,349.28$      

944 Eckford

10 Year

88-20-15-252-024

City of Troy
Assessing Department

Eckford Bituminous Asphalt Paving

Amortization Table



Project Name

Project # 06.202.1 Option B

 
Assessment

int. @.06 3,950.00

Year Principal Interest Payment Balance
1 395.00$         395.00$         3,555.00$     
2 395.00$         213.30$       608.30$         3,160.00$     
3 395.00$         189.60$       584.60$         2,765.00$     
4 395.00$         165.90$       560.90$         2,370.00$     
5 395.00$         142.20$       537.20$         1,975.00$     
6 395.00$         118.50$       513.50$         1,580.00$     
7 395.00$         94.80$         489.80$         1,185.00$     
8 395.00$         71.10$         466.10$         790.00$         
9 395.00$         47.40$         442.40$         395.00$         
10 395.00$         395.00$         -$              

TOTAL 3,950.00$      1,042.80$    4,992.80$      

841 Eckford
845 Eckford
870 Eckford
876 Eckford
882 Eckford
914 Eckford

88-20-15-251-023

88-20-15-252-020

88-20-15-251-024
88-20-15-252-010
88-20-15-252-011
88-20-15-252-019

Assessing Department

Eckford Bituminous Asphalt Paving

Amortization Table
10 Year

City of Troy



Project Name

Project # 06.202.1 Option B

 
Assessment

int. @.06 4,459.11

Year Principal Interest Payment Balance
1 445.91$         445.91$         4,013.20$     
2 445.91$         240.79$       686.70$         3,567.29$     
3 445.91$         214.04$       659.95$         3,121.38$     
4 445.91$         187.28$       633.19$         2,675.47$     
5 445.91$         160.53$       606.44$         2,229.56$     
6 445.91$         133.77$       579.68$         1,783.64$     
7 445.91$         107.02$       552.93$         1,337.73$     
8 445.91$         80.26$         526.17$         891.82$         
9 445.91$         53.51$         499.42$         445.91$         
10 445.91$         445.91$         (0.00)$           

TOTAL 4,459.11$      1,177.21$    5,636.32$      

960 Eckford

Amortization Table
10 Year

88-20-15-252-025

City of Troy
Assessing Department

Eckford Bituminous Asphalt Paving



Project Name

Project # 06.202.1 Option B

 
Assessment

int. @.06 4,564.44

Year Principal Interest Payment Balance
1 456.44$         456.44$         4,108.00$     
2 456.44$         246.48$       702.92$         3,651.55$     
3 456.44$         219.09$       675.54$         3,195.11$     
4 456.44$         191.71$       648.15$         2,738.66$     
5 456.44$         164.32$       620.76$         2,282.22$     
6 456.44$         136.93$       593.38$         1,825.78$     
7 456.44$         109.55$       565.99$         1,369.33$     
8 456.44$         82.16$         538.60$         912.89$         
9 456.44$         54.77$         511.22$         456.44$         
10 456.44$         456.44$         (0.00)$           

TOTAL 4,564.44$      1,205.01$    5,769.45$      

850 Eckford88-20-15-252-023

Amortization Table
10 Year

City of Troy
Assessing Department

Eckford Bituminous Asphalt Paving



Project Name

Project # 06.202.1 Option B

 
Assessment

int. @.06 7,900.00

Year Principal Interest Payment Balance
1 790.00$         790.00$         7,110.00$     
2 790.00$         426.60$       1,216.60$      6,320.00$     
3 790.00$         379.20$       1,169.20$      5,530.00$     
4 790.00$         331.80$       1,121.80$      4,740.00$     
5 790.00$         284.40$       1,074.40$      3,950.00$     
6 790.00$         237.00$       1,027.00$      3,160.00$     
7 790.00$         189.60$       979.60$         2,370.00$     
8 790.00$         142.20$       932.20$         1,580.00$     
9 790.00$         94.80$         884.80$         790.00$         
10 790.00$         790.00$         -$              

TOTAL 7,900.00$      2,085.60$    9,985.60$      

785 Eckford

Amortization Table
10 Year

88-20-15-251-008

City of Troy
Assessing Department

Eckford Bituminous Asphalt Paving



RAYES, YOUKHANNA & MARIAM

785 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085-4860

HUBER, JOHN & JANICE

810 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085-4848

FELICIDARIO, CHARITO & IRENIO

841 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085-4847

FOBAR, JAMES & KAREN

845 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085-4847

KOWALAK, MARJORIE L

850 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085-4848

DOEPKE, MITCHELL & LORI

870 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085-4848

DUDA, DAVID A & CAROL J

873 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085-4847

ZAWALSKI, MICHAEL & SARAH

876 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085-4848

MUDALIGE, UPALI PRYANTHA
MUDALIGE, MANORI PRIYANKA
882 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085-4848

BUTCHKO, BARBARA

901 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085-4858

PEEPLES, RAYMOND & GEORGIA

914 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085-4859

KOEHLER, ROBERT & LINDA

927 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085-4858

JALON, BONITA S

944 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085-4859

BATTISTI, DENNIS & LINDA

955 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085-4858

RIFFENBURG, ALAN & JANET

959 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085-4858

DAVIS, JONATHAN & TAMMY

960 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085-4859

VIJAYASEGAR, VIJAYARATNAM

971 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085

YOUSEF, HELPIS M

972 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085

KAKOS, KAMAL & TALAL

983 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085

REDDI, VELAMPUDI A
VELAMPUDIA, JYOTHIRMAI
984 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085

MEMON, ASHRAF H & SHAHZADI A

995 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085

MANSOUR, ALEXANDER & TANYA

996 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
MEETING TO REVIEW THE NECESSITY FOR THE INSTALLATION OF ASPHALT 
PAVING ON THE EASTERLY ½ OF ECKFORD STREET IN SECTION 15, AND TO 
HEAR ANY AND ALL OBJECTIONS TO THE NECESSITY OF THE PUBLIC 
IMPROVEMENT AND SAID SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ASSESSED AGAINST SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 06.202.1 IN THE CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN: 
 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Council will meet at City Hall on the 18th day of June, 
2007 at 7:30 o'clock p.m., for the purpose of reviewing the necessity for the installation of 
Asphalt Paving on the easterly ½  of Eckford Street in Section 15, Project No. 06.202.1, 
and of hearing any and all objections to the necessity of the public improvement and 
Special Assessment made in the matter of construction of the following described 
improvement: 
 
Installation of Asphalt Paving on the easterly ½ of Eckford Street. 
 
The Assessment Roll is on file in the office of the City Clerk for public examination.  The 
Special Assessments therein contained have been assessed according to law against the 
parcels of land constituting Special Assessment District No. 06.202.1, which District is 
described as follows: 
 
T2N, RllE, Section 15 
 
88-20-15-251-033  The special assessment for your property is $ 2,100.00, 
88-20-15-251-034  The special assessment for your property is $ 2,100.00, 
88-20-15-251-035  The special assessment for your property is $ 2,100.00, 
88-20-15-252-043  The special assessment for your property is $ 2,100.00, 
88-20-15-252-044  The special assessment for your property is $ 2,100.00, 
88-20-15-252-045  The special assessment for your property is $ 2,100.00, 
88-20-15-251-018  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,160.00, 
88-20-15-251-019  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,160.00, 
88-20-15-251-020  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,160.00, 
88-20-15-251-021  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,160.00, 
88-20-15-251-022  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,160.00, 
88-20-15-252-022  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,335.56, 
88-20-15-252-024  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,440.89, 
88-20-15-251-023  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,950.00, 
88-20-15-251-024  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,950.00, 
88-20-15-252-010  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,950.00, 
88-20-15-252-011  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,950.00, 
88-20-15-252-019  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,950.00, 
88-20-15-252-020  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,950.00. 
88-20-15-252-025  The special assessment for your property is $ 4,459.11, 
88-20-15-252-023  The special assessment for your property is $ 4,564.44, 
88-20-15-251-008  The special assessment for your property is $ 7,900.00. 
 
The above assessments and all proceedings upon which they are based shall not be 
contestable, unless suit to contest the validity thereof is instituted within thirty (30) days 
after the date of confirmation of said Special Assessment Roll No. 05.202.1 



 
The owner or any person having an interest in the real property may file a written appeal of 
the special assessment with the state tax tribunal within 30 days after the confirmation of 
the special assessment roll if that special assessment was protested at the hearing held for 
the purpose of confirming the roll. 
 

 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
 City Clerk 
 

NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3317 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 



Parcel ID # Street Frontage % Total SAD Cost Match
88-20-15-251-008 785 Eckford 225.00 4.84 7,337.86 15
88-20-15-251-017 525 Eckford 675.00 14.51 22,013.58 16
88-20-15-251-018 873 Eckford 90.00 1.93 2,935.14 3
88-20-15-251-019 901 Eckford 90.00 1.93 2,935.14 3
88-20-15-251-020 927 Eckford 90.00 1.93 2,935.14 3
88-20-15-251-021 955 Eckford 90.00 1.93 2,935.14 3
88-20-15-251-022 959 Eckford 90.00 1.93 2,935.14 3
88-20-15-251-023 841 Eckford 112.50 2.42 3,668.93 8
88-20-15-251-024 845 Eckford 112.50 2.42 3,668.93 8
88-20-15-251-025 504 Eckford 181.58 3.90 5,921.82 14
88-20-15-251-026 Vac Eckford 124.00 2.67 4,043.98 9
88-20-15-251-027 689 Eckford 90.00 1.93 2,935.14 3
88-20-15-251-028 749 Eckford 135.00 2.90 4,402.72 12
88-20-15-251-031 759 Eckford 225.00 4.84 7,337.86 15
88-20-15-251-033 971 Eckford 85.00 0.00 2,100.00 1
88-20-15-251-034 983 Eckford 85.00 0.00 2,100.00 1
88-20-15-251-035 995 Eckford 85.00 0.00 2,100.00 1
88-20-15-252-002 90 Eckford 90.00 1.93 2,935.14 3
88-20-15-252-004 600 Eckford 225.00 4.84 7,337.86 15
88-20-15-252-005 650 Eckford 225.00 4.84 7,337.86 15
88-20-15-252-008 770 Eckford 225.00 4.84 7,337.86 15
88-20-15-252-010 870 Eckford 112.50 2.42 3,668.93 8
88-20-15-252-011 876 Eckford 112.50 2.42 3,668.93 8
88-20-15-252-019 882 Eckford 112.50 2.42 3,668.93 8
88-20-15-252-020 914 Eckford 112.50 2.42 3,668.93 8
88-20-15-252-022 810 Eckford 95.00 2.04 3,098.21 4
88-20-15-252-023 850 Eckford 130.00 2.79 4,239.65 11
88-20-15-252-024 944 Eckford 98.00 2.11 3,196.05 5
88-20-15-252-025 960 Eckford 127.00 2.73 4,141.81 10
88-20-15-252-028 500 Eckford 100.98 2.17 3,293.23 7
88-20-15-252-033 750 Eckford 140.00 3.01 4,565.78 13
88-20-15-252-037 530 Eckford 100.00 2.15 3,261.27 6
88-20-15-252-038 670 Eckford 135.00 2.90 4,402.72 12
88-20-15-252-039 682 Eckford 95.00 2.04 3,098.21 4
88-20-15-252-040 718 Eckford 85.00 1.83 2,772.08 2
88-20-15-252-043 972 Eckford 85.00 0.00 2,100.00 1
88-20-15-252-044 984 Eckford 85.00 0.00 2,100.00 1
88-20-15-252-045 996 Eckford 85.00 0.00 2,100.00 1

SAD -6 4,651.56 100.00 151,700.00
SAD +6 510.00 100.00 12,600.00
Total SAD Cost  5,161.56 100.00 164,300.00

Entire Street

City of Troy - Assessing Department
SAD #06.202.1 Eckford Street Paving



E 1/2
Parcel ID # Street Frontage % Total SAD Cost Match Cost

88-20-15-251-033 971 Eckford 85.00 0.00 2,100.00 1
88-20-15-251-034 983 Eckford 85.00 0.00 2,100.00 1
88-20-15-251-035 995 Eckford 85.00 0.00 2,100.00 1
88-20-15-252-043 972 Eckford 85.00 0.00 2,100.00 1
88-20-15-252-044 984 Eckford 85.00 0.00 2,100.00 1
88-20-15-252-045 996 Eckford 85.00 0.00 2,100.00 1
88-20-15-252-040 718 Eckford 85.00 1.83 2,772.08 2
88-20-15-251-018 873 Eckford 90.00 1.93 2,935.14 3 3,160.00
88-20-15-251-019 901 Eckford 90.00 1.93 2,935.14 3 3,160.00
88-20-15-251-020 927 Eckford 90.00 1.93 2,935.14 3 3,160.00
88-20-15-251-021 955 Eckford 90.00 1.93 2,935.14 3 3,160.00
88-20-15-251-022 959 Eckford 90.00 1.93 2,935.14 3 3,160.00
88-20-15-251-027 689 Eckford 90.00 1.93 2,935.14 3 3,160.00
88-20-15-252-002 90 Eckford 90.00 1.93 2,935.14 3 3,160.00
88-20-15-252-022 810 Eckford 95.00 2.04 3,098.21 4 3,335.56
88-20-15-252-039 682 Eckford 95.00 2.04 3,098.21 4
88-20-15-252-024 944 Eckford 98.00 2.11 3,196.05 5 3,440.89
88-20-15-252-037 530 Eckford 100.00 2.15 3,261.27 6
88-20-15-252-028 500 Eckford 100.98 2.17 3,293.23 7
88-20-15-251-023 841 Eckford 112.50 2.42 3,668.93 8 3,950.00
88-20-15-251-024 845 Eckford 112.50 2.42 3,668.93 8 3,950.00
88-20-15-252-010 870 Eckford 112.50 2.42 3,668.93 8 3,950.00
88-20-15-252-011 876 Eckford 112.50 2.42 3,668.93 8 3,950.00
88-20-15-252-019 882 Eckford 112.50 2.42 3,668.93 8 3,950.00
88-20-15-252-020 914 Eckford 112.50 2.42 3,668.93 8 3,950.00
88-20-15-251-026 Vac Eckford 124.00 2.67 4,043.98 9
88-20-15-252-025 960 Eckford 127.00 2.73 4,141.81 10 4,459.11
88-20-15-252-023 850 Eckford 130.00 2.79 4,239.65 11 4,564.44
88-20-15-251-028 749 Eckford 135.00 2.90 4,402.72 12
88-20-15-252-038 670 Eckford 135.00 2.90 4,402.72 12
88-20-15-252-033 750 Eckford 140.00 3.01 4,565.78 13
88-20-15-251-025 504 Eckford 181.58 3.90 5,921.82 14
88-20-15-251-008 785 Eckford 225.00 4.84 7,337.86 15 7,900.00
88-20-15-251-031 759 Eckford 225.00 4.84 7,337.86 15
88-20-15-252-004 600 Eckford 225.00 4.84 7,337.86 15
88-20-15-252-005 650 Eckford 225.00 4.84 7,337.86 15
88-20-15-252-008 770 Eckford 225.00 4.84 7,337.86 15
88-20-15-251-017 525 Eckford 675.00 14.51 22,013.58 16

SAD #06.202.1 Eckford Street Paving
Entire Street

City of Troy - Assessing Department



     Preliminary Cost Estimate March 8, 2007
(OPTION "D")

Project Location: Eckford Street (Rochester Rd. to Tallman Road)
Project No.: ___06.202.1       

Item      Quantity Description Unit Cost Total Cost
SAD Share - Asphalt Section (1,170')

1. 1259 Tons Bit. Mix No. 500, 20C - 3" 60.00         75,540.00       
2. 630 Tons Bit. Mix No. 1100T, 20AA - 1 1/2" 70.00         44,100.00       
3. 297 Tons Bit. Mix No. 1100T, 36B - 4" Driveway 100.00       29,700.00       
4. 64 SY 6" Non-Reinforced Conc. Driveway 70.00         4,480.00         
5. 128 Tons 21AA Aggregate for Shoulders 20.00         2,560.00         

Sub-Total 156,380.00   

Engineering, Admin. And Contingencies, 30% 46,914.00     
Sub-Total 203,294.00   

Maintenance Savings (39,000.00)    
Total Special Assessment Share - Asphalt 164,300.00   

City Share
6. 898 SY Rem. Pavement (including Driveways) 10.00         8,980.00         
7. 34 Each Remove 12" CMP Culvert 150.00       5,100.00         
8. 2 Each Remove Tree 500.00       1,000.00         
9. 1272 CY Earth Excavation 10.00         12,720.00       

10. 1156 CY Subgrade Undercut, w/ crush. Conc. 40.00         46,240.00       
11. 6936 SY Grading 3.00           20,808.00       
12. 2290 Tons Aggregate Base, 21AA (For Road) 20.00         45,800.00       
13. 387 Tons Agg. Base, 21AA (For Driveways) 20.00         7,740.00         
14. 2531 LF 12" RCP Storm Sewer 40.00         101,240.00     
15. 4662 LF 8" Edge Drain 20.00         93,240.00       
16. 36 Each 2' Dia. Catch Basin 1,000.00    36,000.00       
17. 10 Each 4' Dia. Manhole 1,500.00    15,000.00       
18. 37 Each Relocate Mailbox Post 100.00       3,700.00         
19. 15 Each Reconstruct/Adjust Structure 500.00       7,500.00         
20. 5202 LF Ditching 5.00           26,010.00       
21. 10404 SY Turf Restoration Incidental

Sub-Total 431,078.00   

Engineering, Admin. And Contingencies, 30% 129,323.40   
Sub-Total 560,401.40   

Maintenance Savings 39,000.00     
Total City Share 599,400.00   

TOTAL PROJECT COST 763,700.00   

Prepared by:  Antonio Cicchetti
\\G\Projects\Projects - 2006\06.202.1 - Eckford SAD\SS\Preliminary Cost Estimate - 2006.xls

Proposed Improvement: 2,601 LF, 24' wide Bituminous Asphalt Pavement with Edgedrain



campbellld
Text Box
F-03





































 

 
 
May 11, 2007 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Bid Waiver - Sanitary Sewer Televising Inspection Equipment Upgrade 
 
Background 
 
 On January 19, 1998, Troy City Council approved the purchase of a Pearpoint P400 Color 

Camera Televising Inspection System for $78,104.00 (Resolution #98-50).  
 Equipment was competitively bid and opened on November 24, 1997, with seven bids received, 

three no bids, and one bid not meeting specifications. 
 Sanitary sewer pipes are routinely inspected for damage caused by roots and debris build-up to 

prevent backups, private property damage and reduce the City’s liability costs. 
 The current camera has been in use in the City of Troy for nine years and has become obsolete 

with limited repair services available.  
 The current 299 hydraulic drum model has become warn and obsolete, and is being replaced with 

the P599 electric drum which operates at a reduced noise level and is oil free allowing for cleaner 
operation.   

 The current explosion proof cable has several splices and a thinned outer jacket that is warn to 
the point that it no longer gives reliable protection to the inner conductors. 

 The P494 replacement camera has new features that include an automatic iris with manual 
override and a pan and rotate function that allows for viewing the interior of the connecting house 
lead. In addition, the upgrade is anticipated to extend the systems usage for another 8-10 years. 

 Informal quotes were received from Pearpoint Inc. of Thousand Palms, CA, and Jack Doheny 
Supplies, of Northville, MI; the only two known authorized suppliers for the Michigan area.  

 In review, to implement a completely new and comparable system today will range from 
$80,000.00 to $97,000.00, which is double the upgrade cost. 

 
Financial Considerations 
 
 Funds are budgeted and available in the Sanitary Sewer Capital Fund account# 535.7978  

 
 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04



May 11, 2007 
 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Bid Waiver – Televising Inspection Equipment Upgrade 
 
 
Legal Considerations 
 
 Formal bidding procedures are waived, as no benefit would be derived from soliciting formal bids. 

 
Policy Considerations 
 
 Enhance the livability and safety of the community by providing advancement of inspection into 

the house lead connections to the sanitary sewer system. (Goal I)  
 Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of City Government by 

maintaining reliable operation of sanitary sewer inspection equipment. (Goal II) 
 
Options 
 
 City management and the Public Works department are requesting a waiver of the formal bid 

process and authorization to purchase a system upgrade for the Pearpoint Sanitary Sewer 
Televising Inspection Equipment from Pearpoint Inc. of Thousand Palms CA, for an estimated 
total cost, including shipping, of $45,866.00, as detailed on the attached Appendix 1.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
EF S:/Murphy’s Review/Agenda 05-08-07 Bid Waiver: Sanitary Sewer Televising System Upgrade 
 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 



Pearpoint, Inc. Jack Doheny Supplies
P494 Camera 22,809.00 22,800.00

HC4949301-1 Flexiview Color Pan and Tilt
HC4949701-1 NTSC Standard CCD Camera assembly

Adapter 625.00 415.00
HC4943301-1 EX to Non EX proolf

P599 Automatic Cable Reel 21,932.00 24,412.00
HK5990001-1B Motorized Cable Reel w/1000 ft of cable
HC0508801 and FM approved Connectors and Footage
HK5995301-1 Counter for use in non-hazardous locations
HK412JJ002
X457216K51
HK412JJ001

Downhole Equipment 0 1,690.00
HK413ENZUSA Top Man hole assembly
HK412JJ001 Downhole Roller w/ 50' rope
0653818T21 Bumper mount
009720150BT Fiber glass poles

Approximate shipping charges 500.00

Grand Total 45,866.00 49,317.00

Appendix 1









 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
May 17, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:   Scheduling a Joint Meeting with the Chamber of Commerce 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Troy Chamber of Commerce President Michele Hodges has requested a joint meeting between 

City Council, City Administration, the Chamber’s Board of Directors and exclusive level members. 
 The first set of dates suggested by Ms. Hodges did not work with Council Members’ schedules. 
 On May 17, 2007 Ms. Hodges offered the additional dates of July 30, July 31 or August 1, 2007. 

 
Options:
 
 If Council’s schedule permits, a joint meeting between the City of Troy and the Troy Chamber of 

Commerce will be scheduled. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PLN/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2007\05.21.07 - Scheduling a Joint Meeting with the Chamber of Commerce 

campbellld
Text Box
F-05



 1

 
 
DATE: May 9, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearing – Rezoning Application – Northwest corner of Maple 

and Thorncroft, East of Maplelawn, Section 29 – R-C to B-3 (File Number Z-722) 
 
 
Background: 
 

• A public hearing is scheduled for this item on June 4, 2007.   
 
• The Planning Commission recommended approval of the request to rezone the parcel to B-3 

at the May 1, 2007 Regular meeting.   
 

• On the Future Land Use Plan, the subject parcel is located within the transition area between 
Light Industrial and Non-Center Commercial.  Non-Center Commercial has a primary correlation 
with B-3 and a secondary correlation with H-S.  The application therefore is consistent with the 
intent of the Future Land Use Plan.  These classifications have been in place since 1999. 

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 

• There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

• City Council has the authority to act on this application.  
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

• Approval of the rezoning application would be consistent with City Council Goal III (Retain and 
attract investment while encouraging redevelopment). 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01a



 2

Options: 
 

• City Council can approve or deny the rezoning application. 
 
• No action is required on this item until the June 4, 2007 Public Hearing. 

 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Minutes from the May 1, 2007 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
 
 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File /Z 722 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-722 Proposed Retail Development Sec 29\Announce CC Public Hearing 05 21 07.doc 
 
 



R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

 R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

K
S

M
A

IN

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S



CITY OF TROY

PR
E

P
AR

E
D

 B
Y 

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
TR

O
Y

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 D
EP

T.

SUBJECT PARCEL



TH
ORNCROFT

PREMIER
BLANEYM

A
P

LE
LAW

N

W MAPLE

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED RETAIL DEVELOPMENT
FROM R-C TO B-3
NW CORNER MAPLE & THORNCROFT
SEC 29  (Z-722)

SUBJECT PROPERTY

0 100 20050
Feet ³



TH
ORNCROFT

PREMIER
BLANEYM

A
P

LE
LAW

N

W MAPLE

(B-3)

(M-1)

(P-1)
(R-C)

(O-1)

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED RETAIL DEVELOPMENT
FROM R-C TO B-3
NW CORNER MAPLE & THORNCROFT
SEC 29  (Z-722)

SUBJECT PROPERTY

0 100 20050
Feet ³





PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST (Z 722) – Proposed Retail 

Development, Northwest corner of Maple Road and Thorncroft, Section 29 – 
From R-C (Research Center) to B-3 (General Business) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed rezoning request, and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the rezoning application.   
 
Chair Schultz asked if the property to the south, zoned M-1 and a Consent 
Judgment, is built out as retail. 
 
Mr. Miller replied in the affirmative 
 
Dave Berry of 40682 Lenox Park Drive, Novi, was present to represent the 
petitioner. 
 
William Fuller, principal of Orland Park Properties, gave a brief history of the site.  
He indicated the site would be more suitable for retail activity.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-05-087 
Moved by: Troshynski 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-C to B-3 rezoning request, located at the northwest corner of 
Maple and Thorncroft, within Section 29, being approximately 3.2 acres in size, 
be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board – FINAL                                              January 18, 2007 
PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD 

 
A regular meeting of the Troy Parks and Recreation Advisory Board was held Thursday, 
January 18, 2007 at the Troy Community Center, room 503.  Chairman, Tom Krent called the 
meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. 
 
Present:  Merrill Dixon, member  Gary Hauff, member 
   Orestes Kaltsounis, member Tom Krent, member 
   Jeff Stewart, member  Kirk Serkh, student representative 
   Janice Zikakis, member  Stuart Redpath, member 
   Stuart Alderman, staff  Jeff Biegler, staff 
   Carol K. Anderson, staff 
 
Absent:  Kathleen Fejes, Tod Gazetti, Meaghan Kovacs 
 
Visitors:   
 
Resolution # PR - 2007 - 01 - 001 
Moved by Stewart 
Seconded by Zikakis 
 
RESOLVED, that the minutes from November 16, 2006 are approved as submitted.   
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution # PR – 2007 – 01 – 002 
Moved by Dixon 
Seconded by Hauff 
 
RESOLVED, that absent members who have provided notification are excused.   
 
Yes:  All 
No  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

A. 2007 Golf Season – No increase in fees for Sylvan Glen golf course is recommended 
for the 2007 season.  For Sanctuary Lake, new rates for specific times/dates will be 
introduced and fees reduced for other categories.   

 
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Master Plan Update – Comments from residents were included in the packet.  Many 
residents are very happy with walking and biking trails.  These pathways offer 
recreational opportunities and mobility through the City.  Dog parks are also becoming 
very popular and there were many positive comments on developing a dog park.   

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board – FINAL                                              January 18, 2007 
 
Staff Reports 

A. Directors Report – Crooks Road cemetery has more than 200 plots for sale.  The cost  
is $525.00 per plot and will be advertised soon.   
 
There is property on Rochester Road between 17 and 18 mile roads that was offered 
to the City for purchase.  It is a 6.3 acre lot that the Real Estate and Development 
department is evaluating.   

 
B. Recreation Report – We are processing and hiring applicants for summer help in the 

department.  If you know of anyone that may be interested in a summer job send them 
along as soon as possible.   
 
Stacey Yankee is the new Nature Center manager.  She came to us from Oakland 
County with much experience.  Look to meeting her at a future Park Board meeting. 
 
The Aquatic Center Report will be available at the next meeting.   
 
The Golden Choraliers were honored at the most recent MRPA meeting.     

 
C. Parks Report – Mark Colombo, a Parks and Recreation employee for 32 years, is 

retiring as of January 19, 2007.  He will be missed very much.  Mark is the recipient of 
the Park Resource Leadership Award given by the MRPA.  He will be presented with 
this award at the MRPA convention in February.   
 
The recent ice storm has had City tree crews working overtime to clear roads of fallen 
branches and trees.   
 
The ball diamond lights at Flynn Park will be replaced with lights that are high 
efficiency and can light up more of the field.   

 
 
ELECTIONS 
Resolution # PR – 2007 – 01 – 003 
Moved by Redpath 
Seconded by Hauff 
 
RESOLVED, that Tom Krent is Chairman of the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board and 
Janice Zikakis is Vice-Chairperson. 
 
Yes:  All 
No:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board – FINAL                                              January 18, 2007 
 
 
Resolution # PR – 2007 – 01 – 004 
Moved by Zikakis 
Seconded by Hauff 
 
RESOLVED, to cancel the February 2007 meeting and hold a meeting March 15, 2007 for 
the purpose of budget review/recommendation.  If the budget is not in final form, the meeting 
will be held April 19, 2007.   
 
Yes:  All 
No:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Park Board members and the public will be notified of the meeting date.   
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:57 p.m. 
 
_________________________________ 
Tom Krent, Chairman 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Mary Williams, Recording Secretary 



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board – FINAL                                             February 15, 2007 
PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD 

 
A special meeting of the Troy Parks and Recreation Advisory Board was held Thursday, 
February 15, 2007 at the Troy Community Center, staff conference room.  The meeting was 
called to order at 6:38 p.m. 
 
Present:  Merrill Dixon, member  Kathleen Fejes, member 
   Orestes Kaltsounis, member Stuart Redpath, member 
   Meaghan Kovacs, member  Janice Zikakis, member 
   Carol K. Anderson, staff 
 
Absent:  Tod Gazetti (excused), Gary Hauff (excused), Jeff Stewart (excused), Tom Krent 
(excused).   
 
Visitors:   
 
New Business 
A.  Remnant Parcels 88-20-22-356-031 and 88-20-23-351-002:  Discussion followed whether 
the City should sell these two remnant parcels or retain them as park land. 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Fejes 
Seconded by Zikakis 
 

RESOLVED, that The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board has reviewed the two parcels 
(88-20-22-356-031 and 88-20-23-351-002) and determined there is no practical use as park 
land and recommends to the City Council that these remnant parcels be sold.   
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 

Resolution # PR - 2007 - 02 - 005 
Moved by Kaltsounis 
Seconded by Zikakis 
 
RESOLVED, that the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board hereby AMENDS the resolution 
by INSERTING, “BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Parks and Recreation Advisory 
Board recommends to City Council that the proceeds from the sale of the two parcels be 
returned to the Parks and Recreation Park Development budget.”   
 
Yes:  All 
No:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution # PR – 2007 – 02 – 006 
Moved by Redpath 
Seconded by Kaltsounis 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board – FINAL                                             February 15, 2007 
 
RESOLVED, That the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board has reviewed the two parcels 
(88-20-22-356-031 and 88-20-23-351-002) and determined there is no practical use as park 
land and recommends to the City Council that these remnant parcels be sold. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board recommends 
to City Council that the proceeds from the sale of the two parcels be returned to the Parks 
and Recreation Park Development budget.   
 
Yes:  All 
No:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:00 p.m. 
 
_________________________________ 
Janice Zikakis, Vice-Chairperson 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
APRIL 4, 2007 

 1

 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, April 4, 2007, in the second floor Conference Room C at City Hall.  
Grusnick called the meeting to order at  7:03 p.m. 
 
 
Present:  C. Buchanan, member K. Clark, alternate   
   A. Done, member  C. Geier, member  
   P. Hammond, member P. Manetta, member 
   S. Murphy, alternate D. Pietron, member 
   S. Werpetinski, member 
        
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
    
 
Absent: M. Freliga, member EA 
   G. Hyun, student EA 
   C. Weidman, student EA 
 
 
Grusnick reported that Chairperson Stewart has resigned from this Committee.  The 
Committee agreed to accept the resignation of Jeff Stewart as Committee Chairperson. 
 
Werpetinski moved to appoint Buchanan as interim Chairperson and Done as interim 
Vice Chairperson for this Committee until a permanent appointment is made.  Done 
seconded.  All were in favor. 
 
Werpetinski thanks Jeff Stewart for his service as Chairperson of this Committee.   
 
ITEM III – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF MARCH 7, 2007 
Werpetinski made a motion that the minutes of March 7, 2007 be approved.  Supported 
by Pietron; all voted in favor. 
 
 
ITEM IV – SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS 
None were scheduled. 
 
 
ITEM V – UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Murphy will contact Stewart to see what progress has been made on the ACPD new 
member packet.  He will notify this Committee on his findings. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
APRIL 4, 2007 

 2

Buchanan reported that the personal emergency preparedness plan has been approved 
by the Police and Fire Depts.  It will be included in the next issue of Troy Today.  
Buchanan would like to thank Werpetinski, Hyun and and Clark for their help. 
 
Done reported that the Troy Library has purchased a 5000 TV monitor, two pens, and  
the machines from Michael Ellis Enterprises for use by the hearing and visually 
impaired. 
 
Werpetinski moved to forward letter regarding changing the terminology for this 
Committee’s member requirements to Mayor ProTem Broomfield.  Done seconded this 
motion and all were in favor. 
 

 
ITEM VI – NEW BUSINESS 
Buchanan requested that before the next meeting, each member share their ideas with 
her on the following: 

1. What would you conceive to be the ideal chairperson for this Committee. 
2. What would be the ideal Committee. 
3. What would be the ideal Committee member. 

She will then compile the findings and present them at the May meeting. 
 
 
ITEM VII – REPORTS 
Werpetinski reported that in his Strategic Planning Initiatives report, Phil Nelson 
suggested that staff  “design criteria for creation of a certified development corporation 
and foster public-private partnerships for housing upgrades and remodeling”.   
 
Werpetinski reported that she attended a presentation of the Troy Futures Vision 2020 
study and it is possible to voice your concerns by responding on their website which is 
TalkofTroy.org. 
 
Hammond reported that there is very little handicap parking available when she attends 
an exercise class at the Community Center. 
 
Done reported that she used Medi-Go-Plus and was very happy with the service.  Done 
will contact Kohl’s at John R to report the poor condition of the handicap ramp to their 
store. 
 
Clark mentioned that the handicap cutouts at the Troy Commons Plaza are not well-
placed. 
 
Werpetinski reported that Jeff and Cindy Stewart were guests on the Disabilities Today 
radio program with Roger McCarville. 
 
     



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
APRIL 4, 2007 

 3

ITEM VIII – PUBLIC COMMENT 
None reported. 
 
 
 
 
ITEM IX – MEMBER COMMENT 
Pietron reported that the Senior Expo was busy, and good contacts were made with 
several vendors with whom she will follow up with and invite to be meeting guests. 
Pietron recommends that this Committee participate again at the next Senior Expo.   
 
Geier continues to do research on home grocery delivery. 
 
Done reported that Meaghan Battle will be leaving the Library.  Meaghan has suggested 
voicing our concerns for the Library renovations to John Lamerato, Assistant City 
Manager.  As of now there is no funding available for this project. 
 
Werpetinski reported that City Manager Phil Nelson suggested using a consultant to 
determine what is needed in Library improvements and the findings will be forwarded to 
City Council.  She suggested that this Committee offer input. 
 
Werpetinski requested that commendation letters be sent to Al Neuman, fitness center 
director at Physical Therapy Specialists, PC, and Julie O’Donovan, the implementer 
of the Disability Awareness Workshop for fourth grade students throughout the Troy 
School District.  All voted in favor. 
 
 
ITEM X – ADJOURNMENT 
Murphy made a motion to adjourn at 8:35 p.m.  Supported by Buchanan.   All voted in 
favor. 
 
 
 
                                                               _______________________________ 
                                  Cynthia Buchanan 
              Interim Chairperson 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
            Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
APRIL 4, 2007 

 1

 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, April 4, 2007, in the second floor Conference Room C at City Hall.  
Grusnick called the meeting to order at  7:03 p.m. 
 
 
Present:  C. Buchanan, member K. Clark, alternate   
   A. Done, member  C. Geier, member  
   P. Hammond, member P. Manetta, member 
   S. Murphy, alternate D. Pietron, member 
   S. Werpetinski, member 
        
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
    
 
Absent: M. Freliga, member EA 
   G. Hyun, student EA 
   C. Weidman, student EA 
 
 
Grusnick reported that Chairperson Stewart has resigned from this Committee.  The 
Committee agreed to accept the resignation of Jeff Stewart as Committee Chairperson. 
 
Werpetinski moved to appoint Buchanan as interim Chairperson and Done as interim 
Vice Chairperson for this Committee until a permanent appointment is made.  Done 
seconded.  All were in favor. 
 
Werpetinski thanks Jeff Stewart for his service as Chairperson of this Committee.   
 
ITEM III – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF MARCH 7, 2007 
Werpetinski made a motion that the minutes of March 7, 2007 be approved.  Supported 
by Pietron; all voted in favor. 
 
 
ITEM IV – SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS 
None were scheduled. 
 
 
ITEM V – UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Murphy will contact Stewart to see what progress has been made on the ACPD new 
member packet.  He will notify this Committee on his findings. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
APRIL 4, 2007 

 2

Buchanan reported that the personal emergency preparedness plan has been approved 
by the Police and Fire Depts.  It will be included in the next issue of Troy Today.  
Buchanan would like to thank Werpetinski, Hyun and and Clark for their help. 
 
Done reported that the Troy Library has purchased a 5000 TV monitor, two pens, and  
the machines from Michael Ellis Enterprises for use by the hearing and visually 
impaired. 
 
Werpetinski moved to forward letter regarding changing the terminology for this 
Committee’s member requirements to Mayor ProTem Broomfield.  Done seconded this 
motion and all were in favor. 
 

 
ITEM VI – NEW BUSINESS 
Buchanan requested that before the next meeting, each member share their ideas with 
her on the following: 

1. What would you conceive to be the ideal chairperson for this Committee. 
2. What would be the ideal Committee. 
3. What would be the ideal Committee member. 

She will then compile the findings and present them at the May meeting. 
 
 
ITEM VII – REPORTS 
Werpetinski reported that in his Strategic Planning Initiatives report, Phil Nelson 
suggested that staff  “design criteria for creation of a certified development corporation 
and foster public-private partnerships for housing upgrades and remodeling”.   
 
Werpetinski reported that she attended a presentation of the Troy Futures Vision 2020 
study and it is possible to voice your concerns by responding on their website which is 
TalkofTroy.org. 
 
Hammond reported that there is very little handicap parking available when she attends 
an exercise class at the Community Center. 
 
Done reported that she used Medi-Go-Plus and was very happy with the service.  Done 
will contact Kohl’s at John R to report the poor condition of the handicap ramp to their 
store. 
 
Clark mentioned that the handicap cutouts at the Troy Commons Plaza are not well-
placed. 
 
Werpetinski reported that Jeff and Cindy Stewart were guests on the Disabilities Today 
radio program with Roger McCarville. 
 
     



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
APRIL 4, 2007 

 3

ITEM VIII – PUBLIC COMMENT 
None reported. 
 
 
 
 
ITEM IX – MEMBER COMMENT 
Pietron reported that the Senior Expo was busy, and good contacts were made with 
several vendors with whom she will follow up with and invite to be meeting guests. 
Pietron recommends that this Committee participate again at the next Senior Expo.   
 
Geier continues to do research on home grocery delivery. 
 
Done reported that Meaghan Battle will be leaving the Library.  Meaghan has suggested 
voicing our concerns for the Library renovations to John Lamerato, Assistant City 
Manager.  As of now there is no funding available for this project. 
 
Werpetinski reported that City Manager Phil Nelson suggested using a consultant to 
determine what is needed in Library improvements and the findings will be forwarded to 
City Council.  She suggested that this Committee offer input. 
 
Werpetinski requested that commendation letters be sent to Al Neuman, fitness center 
director at Physical Therapy Specialists, PC, and Julie O’Donovan, the implementer 
of the Disability Awareness Workshop for fourth grade students throughout the Troy 
School District.  All voted in favor. 
 
 
ITEM X – ADJOURNMENT 
Murphy made a motion to adjourn at 8:35 p.m.  Supported by Buchanan.   All voted in 
favor. 
 
 
 
                                                               _______________________________ 
                                  Cynthia Buchanan 
              Interim Chairperson 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
            Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        April 5, 2007 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday,  
April 5, 2007 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair Bud Black called the meeting to order at  
1:00 PM. 
 
Present: Bud Black, Member Jo Rhoads, Member  
 Pauline Noce, Member James Berar, Member   
 JoAnn Thompson, Member   David Ogg, Member  
 Merrill Dixon, Member Betty Coven, Member  
 Carla Vaughan, Staff   
 
Absent: Frank Shier, Member    
   
Visitors:  Paula Fleming, Mike Josephson, Dave Lovio, Victor Levinov, David Taylor, Dan 

Pace, Todd Miletti 
 
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2007-4-001 
Moved by Jo Rhoads  
Seconded by Pauline Noce  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of March 1, 2007 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes:  8       
No:  0       
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Paula Fleming discussed School District news and introduced Board of Education candidate 
Todd Miletti  
 
Old Business 
  
Shuffleboard and Bocce Ball:  Carla reported that 16 people are signed up for the “learn to 
play” sessions and 9 are signed up for the leagues.   League information will appear in the 
summer issue of Troy Today which is mailed in mid-May.  The equipment will be stored at the 
front desk.  The lines will be painted on the shuffleboard courts as soon as the temperature is 
50 degrees around the clock.  A ribbon cutting ceremony will be planned soon after the lines 
are painted.   
 
Catering Service at the Community Center:  Carla reported that senior groups have been 
notified about the change in the catering policy.   They will be allowed to bring in their own 
food and will not be charged the service fee. In addition, they will only be charged the $30 
cleaning fee if they do not clean up the food or beverages they serve at their events.  The 
kitchen is not available for use by any groups. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        April 5, 2007 

2 

 
Lunch Visits:  JoAnn Thompson reported that there were no additional visits this month.  She 
would like to get contact information for nearby senior centers from Carla. 
 
AEDs:  Committee members received a copy of a memo that Bud Black submitted to Carol 
Anderson, and they will give Carol a chance to respond. 
 
 
New Business 
 
SHARP:  Dan Pace and Dave Taylor from the SHARP steering committee gave a presentation 
about this senior home repair program.   There have been 59 requests for service since the 
January 25 kick-off.   
 
Visiting Angels:  Representatives from the Visiting Angels Senior Home Care Company gave 
a presentation about their company.   
 
Suggestion Box:  Carla reported that there was one comment about retaining exercise 
instructor Ilene Hill, as she is excellent.  There was a question about her teaching here being a 
breech of contract on her part, but she has indicated that she will continue to teach here.   
 
There was also a suggestion that a beginner Internet class be offered as the other beginner 
classes do not devote much time to this.  Carla reported that there is a separate class 
especially for the Internet, but she will pass this suggestion on to the SeniorNet committee. 
 
One person objected to mailing out fashion show flyers – a waste of money.  Carla reported 
that they were only mailed to last year’s participants, not everyone, as the writer implied. 
 
There was one complaint about “whoever the woman is in the dining room” not being very 
nice.  Pauline commented that the new hospitality committee is working on that. 
 
Appointment to Park Board:   
 
Resolution # SC-2007-4-002 
Moved by Jo Rhoads  
Seconded by David Ogg 
 
RESOLVED, That Pauline Noce be recommended for appointment to the Park Board. 
 
Yes: 7       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Election of Officers:   
 
Resolution # SC-2007-4-003 
Moved by Pauline Noce 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        April 5, 2007 

3 

Seconded by James Berar 
 
RESOLVED That Bud Black was re-elected Chair. 
Yes: 8       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution # SC-2007-4-004 
Moved by Bud Black 
Seconded by Merrill Dixon 
 
RESOLVED That Pauline Noce was re-elected as Vice Chair 
 
Yes: 8       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
  
 
Reports 
 
Park Board:  No report.  
 
Senior Program:  Carla shared the results of a survey that was sent out about the newsletter.     
 
Medi-Go:  Jo Rhoads reported that volunteer drivers are being considered.    
 
OLHSA:  Pauline Noce reported that she is glad that the visiting Angels could speak to the 
committee as home care is an important issue. 
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  Jo Rhoads reported that the Board presented the 
project s they would be working on to the county commissioners. 
 
Comments 
 
James Berar reported that copies of the City Council agenda are available at City Hall on 
Fridays. 
 
JoAnn Thompson would like Carla to put something in the newsletter about starting an Eat Out 
Club. 
 
David Ogg noted that visitor comments are limited to five minutes and asked where speakers 
should be listed on the agenda. 
 
Jo Rhoads suggested that the speaker talk after the business meeting. 
 
Merrill Dixon asked about the shuffleboard ribbon cutting ceremony and Carla said the 
committee would be notified as soon as a date is set. 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        April 5, 2007 

4 

 
Betty Coven reported that she had 11 people attend the first Train Your Brain session.  She 
also reported that the hospitality committee discussed theme lunches and decorations. 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 3:08 p.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Bud Black, Chair               
 
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



campbellld
Text Box
J-01f







 
LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD—FINAL APRIL 12, 2007 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Board was held on Thursday, April 12, 2007 in 
the Office of the Library Director.  Lynne Gregory, Chairman, called the meeting to order 
at 7:30 P.M. 
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Heather Eisenbacher 
 Kul B. Gauri 
 Lynne Gregory 
 Nancy Wheeler 
 Audre Zembrzuski 
 
 Arthi Krishna, Student Representative 
 Shruthi Subramanian, Student Representative 
 
 Meaghan Battle, Assistant Library Director 
 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 
Resolution #LB-2007-04-01 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Wheeler 
 
RESOLVED, That Minutes of March 8, 2007,  be approved, with changed proposed 
by Gauri to indicate that the Library Expansion Resolution has not yet been 
passed. 
 
Yes: 5—Eisenbacher, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Reviewed Agenda entries 
Gauri asked that an item be added to the agenda, thanking Brian Stoutenburg and 
Meaghan Battle for their leadership. 
 
Resolution #LB-2007-04-02 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agenda be approved, with the addition proposed by Gauri. 
 
Yes: 5—Eisenbacher, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



 
LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD—FINAL APRIL 12, 2007 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS 
There were no Postponed items. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

A. Library Facility Discussion:  There was discussion about a new Library facility, as 
it relates to the information provided to City Council by City Manager Phil Nelson 
in the City Council Action report of 3/12/2007, subject:  Library Issues.   The 
Library Advisory Board discussed the types of funding addressed in the report, 
and indicated that there may even be more options than thoroughly highlighted in 
the report of the City Manager.  The group also discussed how to handle this City 
Council Action Report.  It was determined that the Library Advisory Board would 
vote to accept and receive the report. 
 

Resolution #LB-2007-04-03 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Gregory 
 
RESOLVED, THAT the Library Advisory Board accepts and receives the City 
Council Action Report of 3/12/2007, Subject:  Library Issues. 
 
Yes: 5—Eisenbacher, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

B. Library Expansion Resolution:  The Library Advisory Board revisited the  
language of a resolution drafted at the March meeting regarding a potential 
expansion of the Troy Public Library.  It was determined that information 
contained in the Friends of the Library report farther down on the agenda would 
bear on this discussion. 

 
Resolution #LB-2007-04-04 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Gregory 
 
RESOLVED, THAT the Friends of the Library report be moved up to this point in 
the agenda, so as to contribute information that will bear on the resolution being 
discussed. 
 
Yes: 5—Eisenbacher, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Friends of the Library Report 
Mary Kerwin of the Friends of the Troy Public Library shared information about a survey 
conducted by the Friends at the Kaleidoscope Program in January.  150 random people 
were asked if it is time for City Council to look into and expansion of the Library or a into 
the building of a new Library.  All 150 responded in the affirmative. 

 2



 
LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD—FINAL APRIL 12, 2007 
 
Ms. Kerwin went on to inform the Library Advisory Board that the Friends will be hiring 
Epic MRA to conduct a telephone survey to determine if the community identifies a new 
or expanded Library as a “compelling need.”   If the response is “yes”, these results will 
be valid for the potential approval of up to 1 mil.  Ms. Kerwin described the survey as 
being demographically accurate and statistically significant, and that results of surveys 
such as this conducted by EPIC MRA are known to be accurate within 1% on Election 
Day. 
 
Ms. Kerwin also asked the Library Advisory Board to communicate to her via phone or 
email any questions/areas of interest that they would like to see included in this survey.  
The survey will likely be conducted in the 2nd or 3rd week of May, 2007. 
 
Ms. Kerwin announced the Friends of the Library Annual Membership Meeting on May 
15, 2007 at 6:30pm, and invited all Library Advisory Board members to attend. 
 

C. Library Expansion Resolution (continued):  The Library Advisory Board further      
discussed language for a resolution supporting a Library Expansion.  The Board 
directed Meaghan Battle to email the draft resolution for their consideration so 
that it could be voted on at the next Library Advisory Board meeting. 

 
 

 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 
Director’s Report. 
The replacement process for a new Library Director is in process.  An offer has been 
made and accepted, with an anticipated start date of June 4, 2007.  This is pending the 
results of the background check and physical examination. 
 
The 2007 Patron Satisfaction Survey has been conducted.  The results indicate 
continued patron satisfaction with programs, staff, and services at the Troy Public 
Library.  The results also indicate increased dissatisfaction with some or all aspects of 
the Library facility. 
 
Board Member Comments. 
Zembruski noted learning that the Novi Public Library only allows Novi Library Card 
holders to use their Wireless network. 
 
Wheeler asked if any other Board members were planning to attend the upcoming 
Legislative Reception in Lansing. 
 
Student Representative Comments 
None. 
 
Suburban Library Cooperative. 
Gregory reported that Tammy Turgeon, Director of the Suburban Library Cooperative, 
has resigned to take the position as Director of the Sterling Heights Public Library.  The 
SLC Board has one action item at their last meeting, which was to discuss the extension 
of the ½ time Interim Director services to TLN.  There has been no Board meeting since 

 3



 
LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD—FINAL APRIL 12, 2007 
 
Ms. Turgeon’s announcement, so the next meeting will include discussions about that.   
 
Gregory also reported that Turgeon attended the SIRSI conference in Colorado.  
 
Friends of the Troy Public Library. 
Julie Sigler, Treasurer of the Friends, informed the Library Advisory Board of an 
upcoming Members Only Event, April 20-22 during regular store hours, at which all 
members of the Friends would receive 20% savings on their purchases. 
 
Gifts. 
None. 
 
Informational Items. 
April TPL Calendar. 
 
Contacts and Correspondence. 
23 written comments from the public were reviewed. 
 
Public Participation. 
There was no public participation. 
 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 8:55 P.M. 
 

 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Lynne Gregory 
Chairman 
 
 
 
Phillip Kwik 
Recording Secretary 

 4



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                APRIL 17, 2007 

The Chairman, Mark Maxwell, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M. on Tuesday, April 17, 2007, in Council Chambers of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Glenn Clark 
   Kenneth Courtney 
   Marcia Gies 
   Matthew Kovacs 
   Mark Maxwell 
   Wayne Wright 
 
ABSENT:  Christopher Fejes 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Clark 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Fejes from tonight’s meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Gies, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Clark, Courtney 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR. FEJES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF MARCH 20, 2007 
 
Motion by Clark 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of March 20, 2007 as written. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Gies, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Clark, Courtney 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – RENEWAL REQUESTED. FATHER MAXIMUS HABIB, ST. MARK COPTIC 
ORTHODOX CHURCH, 3603-3615 LIVERNOIS, for relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a landscaped berm and use existing natural vegetation in lieu of the 4’-6” high masonry 
wall required along the south property line and relief of the 4’-6” high masonry wall on 
the north property line. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief granted by this 
Board for relief to construct a landscaped berm and use existing natural vegetation in  
 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                APRIL 17, 2007 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
lieu of the 4’-6” high masonry wall required along the south property line and relief of the 
4’-6” high masonry wall on the north property line. 
 
This renewal last appeared before this Board at the meeting of April 2004 and was 
granted a three (3) year renewal at that time.  Conditions remain the same and we have 
no complaints or objections on file. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Clark 
 
MOVED, to grant Father Maximus Habib, St. Mark Coptic Church, 3603-3615 Livernois, 
a three (3) year renewal of a variance for relief to construct a landscaped berm and use 
existing natural vegetation in lieu of the 4’-6” high masonry wall required along the south 
property line and relief of the 4’-6” high masonry wall on the north property line. 
 

• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
Yeas:  6 – Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Clark, Courtney, Gies 
 
MOTION TO GRANT RENEWAL FOR THREE YEARS CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – APPROVAL REQUESTED - MS. BULAK-RAMADEN, 1263 WRENWOOD, 
for approval under Section 43.74.00 to park a commercial vehicle outside on residential 
property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting approval under Section 43.74.00 
to park a commercial vehicle outside on residential property.  The cube van described in 
the application does not meet the exceptions found in Section 40.55.00 of Chapter 39 of 
the Troy Zoning Ordinance.  A request for approval to park this vehicle outdoors on the 
site was previously approved for two years by City Council, under the old standards in 
2004. 
 
Mr. Wright asked if it was possible for the petitioner to construct an additional garage on 
this site. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that he did not believe there was enough land area available to 
construct another building, and did not think this vehicle would fit in the existing garage 
because of the door height. 
 
Mr. Clark asked if the existing vehicle would fit into the garage if they raised the existing 
door. 
 
 

 2



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                APRIL 17, 2007 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that he was not sure because he was not aware of the dimensions of 
the garage regarding width and height.   
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if they had attempted to find another location to park this vehicle. 
 
Ms. Bulak-Ramaden was present and stated that they need this truck for work and no 
one in the area objects to parking it in this area.  Ms. Bulak-Ramaden said that there is 
no room in the garage and her husband uses the vehicle for work.  They have not 
looked at storing the vehicle in another area.  They cannot to afford to park the vehicle 
anywhere else and the expense of purchasing another vehicle for her husband to use to 
get to where the truck would be parked would create a hardship. 
 
Mr. Maxwell explained that they need permission to park the vehicle on this property.  
The Board wants people to make an effort to see if there is somewhere else to park the 
vehicle.  Even though the Board looks at what the neighbors say that is not the main 
reason approval is granted. 
 
Ms. Bulak-Ramaden said that she brought in two (2) additional approvals from 
neighbors regarding parking this vehicle on the property. 
 
Mr. Clark asked what length of time was standard when approving these requests. 
 
Mr. Maxwell explained that it could be up to two (2) years. 
 
Mr. Clark stated that being the newest member of the Board he is seeing people that 
are coming back for renewals and asked what the rule of thumb was for these types of 
requests. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that it could turn out that way, but at this time there were no 
renewals coming before the Board as the petitioners went before City Council for 
approval.  New criteria and language has been adopted and the authority to grant 
approvals has been transferred to this Board. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that previously Commercial Vehicle Appeals were heard before 
City Council under a different set of criteria.  City Council changed the criteria and gave 
this Board the authority to act on these requests.  Criteria have changed according to 
Section 43.74.01 of the Ordinance.  The petitioner now has the obligation to meet two 
(2) out of three (3) of the criteria.  Item C has to be found in all cases that are approved,   
“A garage or accessory building on the subject site cannot accommodate, or cannot 
reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate the subject commercial 
vehicle”. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that he thought the existing garage would require the roof to be raised 
and the door height to be increased.  

 3



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                APRIL 17, 2007 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Bulak-Ramaden said that she thought any modification to the garage would make 
the garage roof higher than their home.  Right now the garage is 16’ high and has a 12’ 
door. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that this is a very large vehicle. 
 
Mr. Maxwell opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Charles Leffert, 1302 Wrenwood was present and stated that these are very good 
neighbors and he supports this request.  Mr. Leffert brought in a petition signed by 
approximately twenty (20) people that also support this request.  A lot of people in the 
neighborhood were unaware that there was a commercial vehicle on the property 
because of the location it is parked in. 
 
Dennis Zinchook, 1251 Wrenwood was present and stated that the truck is not as 
visible in person as it looks in the pictures.  When he moved in the truck was there and 
it does not bother him at all.  He does not feel it affect the value of his home as the City 
has raised the assessed value of his home.  Mr. Zinchook said he supports this request. 
 
Virginia Brooks, 1327 Wrenwood was present and supports this request as she believes 
if they are forced to move this truck it will create a real hardship.  Ms. Brooks asked that 
the Board grant this request. 
 
Ann Penumbi, 1262 Wrenwood was present and stated that she lives across the street 
and did not even know that the truck was there.  The truck does not bother anyone and 
she is in support of this request.  These are the nicest neighbors and she would like to 
see the request granted. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are sixteen (16) written approvals on file.  There is one (1) written objection on 
file. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that he is having a problem with the new criteria.  He believes that 
when the petitioner was granted approval before City Council the verbiage was less 
strict.  Regarding this request he believes Item #C and Item #B apply.  Alterations to the 
garage would be extensive and unreasonable. The location on the residential site is 
adequate and will not negatively impact residents or citizens in the area.  The garage or 
accessory building cannot accommodate or be altered to accommodate the vehicle. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that in his opinion Item C does apply. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Gies 

 4



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                APRIL 17, 2007 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to approve the request of Ms. Bulak-Ramaden, 1263 Wrenwood under Section 
43.74.00 to park a commercial vehicle outside on residential property for a period of one 
(1)-year. 
 

• One-year time frame will allow petitioner to seek an alternate solution. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Petitioner met Item B and C of required criteria. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Kovacs, Maxwell, Clark, Courtney, Gies 
Nays:  1 – Wright 
 
MOTION TO GRANT APPROVAL FOR ONE-YEAR CARRIED 
 
Mr. Maxwell urged the petitioner to look at alternatives.  This is only a temporary 
approval and in his opinion is a very large commercial vehicle in a residential area.  
Parking of this vehicle is disturbing the residential Ordinance.  He would like to see 
them come back next year and show the Board that they have researched other 
alternatives. 
 
Mr. Courtney suggested that they look into the feasibility of making the garage larger. 
 
Ms. Bulak-Ramaden asked if the approval of the neighbors bears weight to the Board’s 
decision. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that the rules have changed and there is a proliferation of 
commercial vehicles in the City.  There is a group of citizens that would like to see all 
commercial vehicles eliminated.  Approval of neighbors does have some bearing on 
approvals, but it is not 100%. 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  MR. & MRS. JOHN RENNER, 1888 
MILVERTON, for relief of the Ordinance to maintain a shed constructed without first 
obtaining a Building Permit that exceeds the maximum area of accessory buildings on 
the property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to maintain 
a shed constructed without first obtaining a Building Permit.  The site plan submitted 
indicates a 1,072 square foot detached garage currently located on the property. 
 
The proposed 80 square foot shed would increase the total area of all accessory 
buildings to 1,152 square feet.  Section 40.56.02 limits the total square footage of all 
accessory buildings on this property to 858 square feet.  This is based upon a 
calculation of 2% of the lot plus 450 square feet.  A previous variance granted in 1987 to 
a previous owner allowed it to be increased to 1,064 square feet. 
 

 5



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                APRIL 17, 2007 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Renner was present and stated that there was an existing shed on the property. All 
of their garden tools are stored in this shed.  The original shed was in a state of 
disrepair and they decided to replace it with a nicer shed. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the previous shed had been approved. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the previous owner asked for a variance in 1987 to increase the 
size of the detached garage and at that time there was no indication of a shed on the 
property.  Mr. Stimac believes that the original shed was also constructed without a 
permit. 
 
Mr. Clark asked if beside the fact that a Permit was not obtained, the issue was actually 
the size of the shed. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that in 1987 the shed was not there.  Action by the Board at that 
time allowed a detached garage to be constructed that is larger than what the 
Ordinance allows for.  The critical issue is the amount of square footage for a detached 
structure. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are five (5) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that in his opinion this was a very small structure and he did not see a 
problem with it. 
 
Mr. Clark stated that he lives about fifteen houses north of this site.  The yard and 
property are well cared for and this is a very nice building.  Shed does provide value to 
the neighborhood because everything is kept very orderly. 
 
Motion by Clark 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant Mr. & Mrs. John Renner, 1888 Milverton, relief of the Ordinance to 
maintain a shed that exceeds the maximum area of accessory buildings on the property. 
 

• Shed will aid the petitioner in keeping the property orderly and well organized. 
• Not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will have no adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Maxwell, Clark, Courtney, Gies, Kovacs 
Nays:  1 – Wright 
 

 6



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                APRIL 17, 2007 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  MASOUD SESI, 1553 E. MAPLE (PROPOSED 
ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new hotel on a 2.5 acre site where 
3 acres are required by Paragraph B of Section 22.30.03; the proposed building is four 
stores and appears to be 45’ tall where Section 30.20.06 limits buildings to no more 
than three stores and 40’ in height; to have a front setback of 34’-6” to the Porte  
Cochere where Section 30.20.06 requires a 40’ front setback; and, to have parking 
spaces that are 9’ wide where Section 40.25.03 requires a minimum parking space 
width of 9’-6”. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new hotel.  The property in question is located in the B-3 (General Business) Zoning 
District.  Paragraph B of Section 22.30.03 requires a minimum 3 acre parcel size for 
hotels in the B-3 Zoning District.  This parcel is only 2.5 acres in size. 
 
In addition, Section 30.20.06 limits buildings to no more than three stories and 40’ in 
height.  The proposed building is four stories and appears to be 45’ tall as measured by 
the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Furthermore Section 30.20.06 requires a 40’ front setback in the B-3 District.  The site 
plan submitted indicates 34’-6” to the Porte Cochere.  Also, Section 40.25.03 requires 
that parking spaces be a minimum of 9’-6” in width.  The site plan shows the spaces to 
be only 9’ wide. 
 
Mr. Stimac went on to say that the Building Department had received revised drawings 
late today and the petitioner has addressed the 40’ front setback and the size of the 
parking spaces.  Variances would be required for the 45’ height, the number of floors 
and the 2.5-acre size of the parcel. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked how this request was different from the original request. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that one of the main differences is that this is a four (4)-story structure.  
Originally there was a portion of the building that exceeded the 40’ height but the 
petitioner had withdrawn that request.  The only variance granted previously was the 
2.5-acre site. 
 
Haiem Hannawa, representing Mr. Sesi was present and stated that the reason they are 
asking for a four-story structure is because they wish to put in one hundred (100) 
rooms.  They want to attract people by keeping the space vertical and have added extra 
landscaping.  They would like to have people that would like to stay for an extended 
period of time. 
 
 

 7



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                APRIL 17, 2007 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Clark asked about the three-acre requirement and said that overall there is ½ acre 
that won’t be there and wondered if there was an issue regarding the parking lot and 
driveways. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the revised layout of the site does comply with all the other 
requirements.  In terms of minimum setbacks and landscape area, the revised plans are 
in compliance.  The driveway and parking layout are also in compliance with the 
Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked about the parking requirements. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the revised plans meet the parking requirements of the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if a variance was required if they dropped the fourth story. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that if they eliminated the fourth floor and lowered the building 
height by 5’ they would meet the requirements. 
 
Mr. Kovacs questioned the height of the building as shown on the drawings. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the overall height of the building is 51’-5”, but when measured 
at the average of the eve and the peak the height is 45’. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked to see an area map. 
 
Mr. Stimac put up the aerial map and stated that north of this site is the Troy Mobile 
Home Park, but the majority of the surrounding property is commercial. 
 
Mr. Clark stated that a hotel would suit this area, as residential property is not adjacent 
to this site.  There would not be an encroachment to other areas and he would be in 
support of this request.  Troy is trying to create a hotel, entertainment, and restaurant 
area and as this is very close to the Big Beaver Corridor it would fit right in. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
No one wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Wright stated that he did not have a problem with the 45’ height as the building 
would sit right next to I-75 and traffic would be looking down on it. 
 
 
 

 8



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                APRIL 17, 2007 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to grant Masoud Sesi, 1553 E. Maple relief of the Ordinance to construct a 
new four-story hotel on a 2.5-acre site, resulting in a height of 45’ where Section 
30.20.06 limits building to no more than three stories and 40’ in height and Paragraph B 
of Section 22.30.03 requires 3 acres for a hotel. 
 

• Hotel is very close to I-75 Highway which is elevated above this site. 
• Literal enforcement of the Ordinance is unnecessarily burdensome. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have a negative effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance applies only to the property described in this petition. 

 
Yeas:  6 – Wright, Clark, Courtney, Gies, Kovacs, Maxwell 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  MICHAEL AGNETTI, 1113-1115 BIRCHWOOD 
(PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a duplex on a parcel 
of land that is 9,600 square feet in area, where 10,000 square feet is required by 
Section 30.10.09. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance construct a 
duplex.  The site plan submitted indicates the demolition of a single-family residence at 
1117 Birchwood, and construction of two-family dwelling (duplex) on the 9,600 square 
foot parcel of land.  Section 30.10.09 requires a 10,000 square foot minimum lot area 
for two-family dwellings in R-2 Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Agnetti was present and stated that he had tried to purchase additional property but 
has been unable to do so.  There are other duplexes that have been built on a 80’ x 
120’ lot.  Mr. Agnetti believes this duplex with improve the area. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that he thought there were two other lots on this street that appeared 
to be the same size. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that originally this subdivision was platted with 40’ x 120’ lots and 
some residents have combined two lots to make them a single lot. There are a number 
of single-family homes that have been constructed on the 40’ lots.  There are other 
duplexes on the south side of the street.  Mr. Stimac did not have an exact breakdown 
of these lot sizes.   
 
 
 

 9



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                APRIL 17, 2007 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Agnetti said that there is also another duplex on the north side of the street and 
passed pictures to the Board members.  Mr. Agnetti also passed around a picture of the 
building he would like to put on this parcel. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.   
 
Jack Bertoia, was present and said that he is a property owner in Troy and is in support 
of this request. There are other duplexes in this area and he believes that it will improve 
the area and help strengthen an area of Troy that is in need of help. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if Mr. Bertoia lives on this street.  Mr. Bertoia said that he lives in 
Troy and owns one of the duplexes on this street. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are nine (9) written approvals on file.  There is one (1) written objection on file. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant Michael Agnetti, 1113-1115 Birchwood, relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a duplex on a parcel of land that is 9,600 square feet in area, where 10,000 
square feet is required by Section 30.10.09. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use in a Zoning 

District. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Literal conformance to the Ordinance is unnecessarily burdensome. 

 
Mr. Clark asked if a single-family home could be constructed on this property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that a single-family home requires a parcel that is 7,500 square 
feet in area and could be constructed on this parcel without a variance.  A duplex 
requires 10,000 square feet and because this parcel is only 9,600 square feet in area a 
variance is required. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that his motion is for a duplex to be constructed on this site. 
 
Mr. Clark asked if other duplexes in the area had variances. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that he did a search and the other parcels in the area that have 
duplexes on them are equivalent in size.  Mr. Stimac did not have the opportunity to 
review the files to find out if they had also required a variance. 

 10



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                APRIL 17, 2007 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Clark, Gies, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright 
Nays:  1 - Courtney 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #7 – APPROVAL REQUESTED.  STEVE ROWE, 6771 WESTAWAY, for 
approval under Section 43.74.00 to park a commercial vehicle outside on residential 
property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting approval under Section 43.74.00 
to park a commercial vehicle outside on residential property.  The cube van described in 
the application does not meet the exceptions found in Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of 
the Troy City Ordinance.  A request for approval to park this vehicle outdoors on the site 
was previously approved for two years by City Council, under the old standards in 2005. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked the petitioner if he had looked anywhere else to park this vehicle. 
 
Mr. Rowe stated that he has lived in the area forty-one (41) years and has never had 
any problems.  Mr. Rowe also said that if he had to move his vehicle, it would need to 
be parked somewhere under lock and key so his equipment was not stolen.  Mr. Rowe 
also said that he had not looked into storing his truck anywhere else.  Modification to the 
garage is not feasible. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked how large the lot was and Mr. Stimac stated it was approximately 
176’ wide and 310’ deep. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked how large the garage was.   
 
Mr. Rowe stated that is a three-car (3) garage and he would not be able to raise the roof 
enough to get the vehicle inside.  
 
Mr. Clark said that the previous petitioner had planted extra trees in the area and 
another person had a fence to conceal his vehicle.  According to the picture presented it 
appears as though this driveway is gravel.  
 
Mr. Rowe said that the truck is only visible to traffic heading north on Westaway.  The 
truck is back behind the house.  One of his neighbors has large evergreen trees along 
his drive and therefore the truck is not visible to him.  The other neighbor is very close, 
has a fence, which conceals the truck on the north side. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are four (4) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 

 11



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                APRIL 17, 2007 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that the language has changed and he does not believe the petitioner 
understands that this is only a temporary approval.  This is a very big lot and Mr. 
Kovacs thinks that the vehicle is very well concealed. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if Mr. Kovacs thought additional screening would be necessary and 
Mr. Kovacs said that in his opinion no additional screening would be required. 
 
Mr. Maxwell advised the petitioner that he needs to look into alternative parking for this 
vehicle. 
 
Mr. Rowe said that his tools are inside this truck and this is his livelihood.  He would 
need to find a place that the truck could be stored under lock and key and he would 
need to have someone on the site. 
 
Mr. Maxwell suggested he contact the Building Department for a list of available areas. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant Steve Rowe, 6771 Westaway approval under Section 43.74.00 to 
park a commercial vehicle outside on residential property for a period of one-year. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Garage cannot be reasonably modified to accommodate this truck. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• One-year time limit will allow petitioner time to seek an alternate parking area. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Clark, Courtney, Gies, Kovacs, Maxwell 
Nays:  1 – Wright 
 
MOTION TO GRANT APPROVAL FOR ONE-YEAR CARRIED 
 
ITEM #8 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  RANDALL A. WHINNERY, 2078 TUSCANY, for 
relief of the Ordinance to construct an addition on the rear of an existing residence that 
will result in a 29’ rear yard setback where Section 30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum 
rear yard setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
an addition on the rear of his existing home.  The site plan submitted indicates the 
addition will result in a 29’ rear yard setback.  Section 30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum 
rear yard setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 
Sharon Sarotte and Randall Whinnery were present.  Ms. Sarotte said that their patio 
faces south and there is absolutely no shade until late afternoon.  They can’t step out  

 12



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                APRIL 17, 2007 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
onto their deck because of the heat and often hose it down before walking on it.  The 
deck has been damaged by the sun and needs to be replaced.  The furniture on the 
deck also has to be hosed down as it gets too warm. Her husband has had skin cancer 
and has to limit his exposure to the sun and her son has Multiple Sclerosis and also has 
to limit his time outside. 
 
There is a detention pond behind their home and therefore this room would not affect 
any other neighbors. There are no neighbors behind their property.  The neighbor to the 
east is totally blocked off by trees and a large pine tree blocks the neighbors to the 
west.  Once they retire, they would like to add glass windows to this room and do not 
believe this would impact any of the neighbors.  We can enjoy the up north feeling in the 
summer, fall and winter.   
 
Mr. Maxwell said that although the Board sympathizes with the medical conditions of 
their family members, a variance is granted because of a hardship with the land. 
 
Ms. Sarotte said that she fails to see the difference between having a deck there and at 
the very least a pavilion type room with pillars.  Ms. Sarotte said she does not 
understand why a roof would affect the structure. 
 
Mr. Maxwell explained that once a roof is added the deck is considered a covered 
structure. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that provisions in the Ordinance apply to decks that are uncovered 
and unenclosed.  Those types of decks can encroach into the rear yard setback up to 
15’.   
 
Ms. Sarotte asked if they could have a Pergola.  
 
Mr. Stimac said that is considered a covering and would not be allowed to encroach into 
the setback.  Mr. Stimac also explained that they could have a free-standing Gazebo as 
long as it was detached and met setbacks. 
 
Ms. Sarotte asked how far the Gazebo would have to be from the house. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that it would need to be at least 10’ from the house.  An accessory 
structure could be constructed as a free-standing structure.   
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Clark 
 
 
 
 

 13



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                APRIL 17, 2007 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Randall Whinnery, 2078 Tuscany, for relief of the 
Ordinance to construct an addition on the rear of an existing residence that will result in 
a 29’ rear yard setback where Section 30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard 
setback in R-1D Zoning Districts until the meeting of May 15, 2007. 
 

• To allow the petitioners the opportunity to look into other options. 
 
Ms. Sarotte said that this three-season room is what they want to do. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that if this request was postponed they could contact the Building 
Department and discuss what other options were available. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that in his opinion the request for an 11’ variance was quite large and 
he recommended speaking with the Building Department to find out what their options 
are. 
 
Mr. Clark said that he supported Mr. Courtney’s motion as he had seen temporary free-
standing sun blockers.  This way they could explore all options.  Mr. Clark said that he 
would not be in favor of the original request.  Other furniture could be purchased that 
would not get as hot as metal furniture.  Mr. Clark said that he believes the motion to 
postpone is the correct way to go as there is a plethora of options available.  Mr. Clark 
did not see any hardships that would require a variance. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Gies, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Clark, Courtney 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL MAY 15, 2007 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #9 – APPROVAL REQUESTED.  MICHAEL BRENNAN, 6704 LIVERNOIS, for 
approval under Section 43.74.00 to park two commercial vehicles outside on residential 
property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting approval under Section 43.74.00 
to park two (2) commercial vehicles outside on residential property.  The cube vans 
described in the application do not meet the exceptions found in Section 40.66.00 of the 
Chapter 39 of the Troy City Ordinance.  A request for approval to park this vehicle 
outdoors on the site was previously approved by City Council, under the old standards 
in 2001. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if the petitioner had looked into other locations to park his vehicle. 
 
Mr. Brennan stated that he had one of the vehicles parked in the Maple and Livernois 
area and it was broken into.  He lost thousands of dollars worth of parts and tools.  His 
garage contains parts that he needs for his business and is too small for these vehicles.  
Mr. Brennan stated that both he and his wife are Electricians and that is the reason they  

 14



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                APRIL 17, 2007 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
require two (2) vehicles.  Mr. Brennan went on to say that when he first received 
approval from City Council he was not aware that there was a time limit.  He spent 
$10,000 to put up large evergreen trees that would screen these vehicles from the 
neighbors. 
 
Mr. Brennan said that he does not believe these vehicles have a negative effect to 
surrounding property.  In two (2) years he is hoping to be able to run his business from 
a store front and have parking available at that location.  Right now, he is not using both 
trucks because of the down turn in the economy.  He would like a little more time to 
research the possibility of opening a storefront business and storing the vehicles inside 
on that property. 
 
Mr. Brennan also said that he has done what he could to screen these vehicles from 
traffic and has not received any negative comments from surrounding neighbors. 
 
Mr. Wright stated that Mr. Brennan was running a business from his home and asked if 
he was aware of the restrictions of a home business.  You are not supposed to have 
any outward appearance of running a business.  There are two (2) outward 
appearances because of the trucks. 
 
Mr. Brennan said that he thought that was why City Council had him put in large trees.  
Mr. Brennan said that in his opinion these trucks are hidden very well. 
 
Mr. Wright asked if he needed two (2) trucks because both he and his wife were 
Electricians. 
 
Mr. Brennan said that at one point he had both vehicles on the road but with the 
economy right now, only one (1) truck has been on the road and the other is parked on 
the property.  Hopefully both trucks will be gone within two (2) years. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the other man he has working for him comes to the house to pick 
up a truck.   
 
Mr. Brennan stated that his business has been slow for about the last eighteen (18) 
months.  Prior to that he had an employee come to the house. Mr. Brennan also said 
that it impossible for him to keep these vehicles anywhere else. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he could not have employees working from his house.   
 
Mr. Maxwell suggested that Mr. Brennan contact the Building Department for a list of 
properties that will have parking for commercial vehicles. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the information he has does not include whether the property 
has guards or inside parking, but the petitioner could contact them. 

 15



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                APRIL 17, 2007 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney said this is really a business operation compared to the other requests. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) approval and one (1) objection on file. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he did not have a problem granting approval for one-year to 
allow Mr. Brennan to find another location for these vehicles. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that he is operating a business out of his home and felt that a six-
month time limit would be sufficient. 
 
Mr. Brennan said he felt six-months (6) months would be a hardship unless there was a 
way to get the economy going. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that the Board does not have any control over the economy. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he was having a difficult time with this request as Mr. Brennan is 
running a business from his home and is violating the home office restrictions because 
he is not to have any employees come to his house.  This is a direct violation of the 
Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Brennan said that he does not have any employees right now. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he understands the necessity of the two vehicles, because both 
Mr. and Mrs. Brennan are Electricians, however, this is too close to becoming a full 
fledged business rather than being used as an office. 
 
Mr. Wright stated that he was inclined to deny this request as running a business out of 
the house violates the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Maxwell pointed out that the trucks are very visible from Livernois. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Clark 
 
MOVED, to grant approval for six (6)-months to Michael Brennan, 6704 Livernois under 
Section 43.74.00 to park two commercial vehicles outside on residential property. 
 

• Six (6) – month time frame will allow petitioner to look into alternative areas to 
park his vehicles. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Gies, Kovacs, Maxwell, Clark, Courtney 

 16



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                APRIL 17, 2007 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
Nays:  1 – Wright 
 
MOTION TO GRANT APPROVAL FOR SIX (6)-MONTHS CARRIED 
 
Mr. Kovacs announced the birth of his daughter, Julie Michele on March 28, 2007.  Mr. 
and Mrs. Kovacs have two sons and a daughter.  Congratulations from the Board. 
 
Ms. Lancaster stated that she finds the comments from the Board very helpful regarding 
commercial vehicles.  The Planning Commission has been struggling with trying to 
adopt an Ordinance on this issue for quite some time.  There are other Cities that do not 
allow commercial vehicles at all.  They usually define commercial vehicles by weight or 
size. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that he thinks the criteria are very vague and any large commercial 
vehicle would have an effect to surrounding property.  This is a time of transition as 
people have been using these trucks for their livelihood for a long period of time.  The 
Board has to take some of the history of each case into account.  The Board can make 
a case for or against these vehicles. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that he believes that more attention has to be paid to the word 
“temporary”.   
 
Mr. Kovacs said he believes temporary means just that.  A time frame is involved. 
 
Mr. Clark said that the petitioners tonight have stated that there was a economic 
hardship to have another vehicle to get them to these trucks when parked in another 
location.  An Economic hardship is not one of the things this Board considers when 
making a decision.  Mr. Clark also said that there are a number of commercial panel 
vans in his neighborhood and asked if they were allowed.  
 
Ms. Lancaster explained that the current Ordinance on the books allows for some panel 
vans to be parked outside on residential property.  Some of the people parking these 
vehicles for a long period of time have been doing that illegally.   
 
Mr. Stimac stated that prior to 1991 parking anything over one-ton was against the 
Ordinance and there was no variance procedure in place.  In 1991 City Council wanted 
to create some type of appeal process and allowed for appeals of commercial vehicles 
beyond what is depicted as pickup trucks or cargo vans. If you had something more 
than that it required approval.  Approval was required for the number and type of 
vehicles.  In 2006 City Council adopted and modified the requirements that are before 
you and also gave this Board the authority to act on these requests.  The reason these 
approvals are temporary is because conditions change e.g. vehicle type or number of 
vehicles.  Because of changing conditions these need to be looked at periodically.  This 
was part 2 of a 3-part revision.  The 3 part was the definitions of commercial vehicles 

 17



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                APRIL 17, 2007 

and what is allowed and what is not.  There have not been any other recommendations 
from City Council. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that he is having a very hard time understanding the language.  He 
asked what was reasonable in Part B of the criteria. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that an extreme example of Part B would a two-story home with 
bedrooms above the garage having no place else to add on.  Or, the land could be 
available but there are deed restrictions that preclude an accessory building.  Another 
example would be a parcel that is maxed out on lot coverage.   
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:21 P.M. 
 
 
 
              
       Mark Maxwell, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
       Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
 
 

 18



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        May 3, 2007 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday,  
May 3, 2007 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair Bud Black called the meeting to order at  
1:00 PM. 
 
Present: Bud Black, Member Jo Rhoads, Member  
 Pauline Noce, Member James Berar, Member   
 JoAnn Thompson, Member   David Ogg, Member  
 Merrill Dixon, Member Betty Coven, Member  
 Frank Shier, Member Carla Vaughan, Staff   
 
Absent: None    
   
Visitors:  None 
 
 
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2007-5-001 
Moved by Jo Rhoads  
Seconded by Pauline Noce  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of April 5, 2007 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes:  9       
No:  0       
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
None 
 
Old Business 
  
Shuffleboard and Bocce Ball:  Carla reported that 31 people are signed up for the “learn to 
play” sessions and 11 are registered for the leagues.   League information will appear in the 
summer issue of Troy Today which is mailed in mid-May.  It is anticipated that the lines will be 
painted on the shuffleboard courts early next week.  A ribbon cutting ceremony is scheduled 
for Tuesday, May 15 at 12:30 p.m.   
 
Lunch Visits:  No report.  
 
AEDs:  Bud Black asked if Carla had anything to report and how long they should wait to hear 
from Carol Anderson.  Carla reported that Carol was working on it and would respond soon. 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        May 3, 2007 

2 

New Business 
 
Suggestion Box:  Carla reported that there was just one suggestion about retaining exercise 
instructor Ilene Hill.  She will not be teaching here after all as she has a contract with an 
exercise company that prohibits it. 
 
Handicap Parking:  James Berar reported that all handicap parking spaces were taken and 
he needs to park close to the building.  There was discussion about changing the meeting 
time, but the time was already changed once for this reason.  The Committee voted to put a 
recommendation in writing to Carol Anderson to add four handicap parking spaces at the east 
entrance just north of the entranceway and also to get a third scooter for the building that 
would be kept by this entranceway.  Bud Black will write the memo. 
 
Hospitality Committee:  Betty Cover reported that five people attended the last meeting and 
a Cinco de Mayo celebration is planned for May 8 with music, food and decorations.  The 
Committee is seeking donations from businesses to fund this event.        
 
Reports 
 
Park Board:  Merrill Dixon reported that the budget was discussed. 
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that the annual senior volunteer banquet was held on April 
19 and 150 attended.  Twenty-one AARP trained volunteers prepared 418 tax returns for low-
income Troy residents this year.  There is no charge for the service.  SHARP has had 81 
requests for service.  This is an average of almost six requests per week.  The bi-annual visit 
from the paper shredder drew 140 participants. 
 
Medi-Go:  Jo Rhoads reported that things are going well.    
 
OLHSA:  No report 
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  Jo Rhoads reported that they are preparing for 
their June breakfast meeting with the legislatures.   
 
Comments 
 
Frank Shier commented that he felt that the handicap parking discussion was too long.  He 
also announced the upcoming Heart of the Hills Players show May 17-19. 
 
Pauline Noce reported that the Supper Club had a very nice dinner. 
 
Bud Black commented that he hoped JoAnn Thompson and Merrill Dixon could hold the 
ribbon for the bocce/shuffleboard ribbon cutting ceremony. 
 
JoAnn Thompson reported that the supper club is going well with 14 members and there has 
been interest shown in forming an Eat Out Club.   
 
James Berar commented that everyone should get involved with the city budget process. 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        May 3, 2007 

3 

Betty Cover reported that the Cross Train Your Brain program is going well. 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:35 p.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Bud Black, Chair               
 
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES MAY 8, 2007  
 

TROY ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD 
TUESDAY, MAY 8, 2007 

TROY CITY HALL - CONFERENCE ROOM C 
 
I. Call to Order 7:05 p.m. 
 
II. Roll Call: 
 

Present:  
Michelle Haight 
Kelly Jones 
Hailu Robele 
Gladson Remos 
Grigore Buia 
Mayada Fakhouri 
 Cindy Stewart, City Liaison 
 
Absent: 
Tony Haddad 
Helen Yang 
Lulu Guo 
Anju Brodbine 
Reuben Ellis 
 
Intro: 
Karen Yelder, resident of Troy, with two students at Athens High. She is on the Boys & 
Girls’ Club Board and Troy Schools Sex Education Advisory Board.  
 
 

III. Approval of Minutes – April 3, 2007 
Motion by Gladson Remos to approve the April 3, 2007 minutes, seconded by Hailu 
Robele.  Approved unanimously. 

 
 

IV. Correspondence / Articles  
“Mosque expects worship, peace” – Detroit Free Press May 2007 
“Words that divided also could help unite” – Detroit Free press May 2007 
 
Panel Discussion 
Tuesday, May 15, 2007 
“Improving Communication in Hamtramck – Overcoming the Language Barrier and the 
Political Barrier” 

 
V. New Business  

a. Report on healing Racism Workshop - Tabled to June meeting. 
  

VI. Old Business  
a. Recommendations re: Board vacancies and absences –  

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01j



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES MAY 8, 2007  
 
Approved 2-year term for Board Chair at April meeting.  Kelly said it is a good idea for 
prospective members to attend 1-2 meetings before Board recommends them to the 
Board.  Members agree that it should be a minimum of two meetings, so people are 
sure this is the Board they would like to serve on.  
 
Add to process for Recommendation of new E.I.A. Board Members to City Council.  
Minimum of attendance at 2 E.I.A. Board meetings.  

 
Process 
Upon confirmation of an opening on the E.I.A. Board: 

• The Advisory Board chairman will announce the opening at the next Advisory 
Board meeting. 

• The Advisory Board chairman will contact the City and request the application 
forms of individuals who have indicated an interest in becoming members of the 
E.I.A. Board.  

• The Board as a whole will review the available application forms from the City and 
other application forms that may be given to them and create a “short list” of 
possible candidates to be interviewed for recommendation. 

• Minimum of attendance at two E.I.A. Board meetings 
• Applicants must have a background or interest in promoting diversity in our 

community. 
• Applicants must be a citizen of the United States and a registered voter. 
• Applicants must live in the City of Troy. 
• Maximum of two representatives of a specific ethnic group may be on the Advisory 

Board at any one time. 
• Upon Advisory Board selection, the Advisory Board chairman will send a letter to 

the Troy City Council proposing the selected candidate. 
 

But how do we know whom to recommend to City Council? 
Input to recommend people who will volunteer to our major events.  
 
Criteria for all E.I.A. Board Members 

• Attendance at scheduled E.I.A. Board meetings. After 3 meeting absences, 
discussion with the Board member will be held regarding scheduling conflicts and 
possible Board removal.  

• Attendance is required at most major events sponsored by the Board. 
• The Board will consist of 9 (nine) members representing different ethnic groups, a 

maximum of 2 (two) student representatives, and a liaison from the City of Troy. 
 

b. Troy School District Update 
Meeting on Monday, May 14 from 2 pm - 3 pm at 4400 Livernois  
with Dr. Fowler, Tim McAvoy, Steve Matthews and representatives from E.I.A. 
(Michelle, Hailu, Anju, Mayada, and Cindy) and Troy Interfaith Group (Padma Kuppa, 
Pastor Rich Peacock).  

 
 Draft Agenda  

1. Welcome & Introductions 
2. EIA & TIG Mission & Goals 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES MAY 8, 2007  
 
 

3. Troy School District initiatives addressing issues of diversity and inclusion 
• staff diversity training 
• student LINC project 
• Resources available to students related to diversity, inclusion, 

discrimination 
• Hiring a diverse population of staff, teachers, counselors 

4. Collaboration opportunities for Ethnic Issues Advisory Board, Troy Interfaith Group 
and the Troy School District. 

• Offering workshops related to understanding different cultures and customs 
for staff and students. 

• Teaching tolerance materials (free curriculum materials – tolerance, 
inclusion, acceptance) 

• Bridging the Racial Divide: more staff involvement. 
• Being liaison to the schools for MI Roundtable and Institute for Healing 

Racism 
• Diversity newsletter and possibility of sending it home with all elementary 

students 
• More notification from schools re: their diversity events, programs 

 
5. Upcoming Ethnic Issues Advisory Board and Troy Interfaith Group Events –  
Bridging the Racial Divide, Tuesday May 29, 2007 at Walsh College 
Ethnicity September 15 & 16 at Troy Daze. 
 
Michelle’s conversation with Tim and Steve – they are very interested and open-
minded re: diversity training.  Ethnic Issues Advisory Board and Troy Interfaith Group 
have similar goals and visions related to diversity issues, religious harmony, etc. so 
the schools wanted to meet with both groups together.  
 
Members will report back at June meeting. 
 
 

c. Troy Daze – Ethnicity 
Working on updating Resource Guide before mailing out EthniCity booth applications.  
After applications go out, Board will follow up with calls to groups.  Kelley offered to 
call groups not previously involved.  
 
Michelle will contact the foreign language clubs re: involvement.  
 
Michelle purchased musical instruments and games for an event at Barnard. They 
can be used for EthniCity for kids to play with. Instruments from Vietnam, Cameroon, 
India, Kenya, Indonesia. We can have adult volunteers work with kids in EthniCity 
tent.  
 
Michelle has a template for a booklet for kids to cut and color listing ways to say hello 
in many languages.  
 

d. Bridging the Racial Divide –  
Tuesday May 29 at Walsh College, 6-9 pm 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD DRAFT MINUTES MAY 8, 2007  
 
 
Michelle Height and Barb Ford are the coordinators 
 
Board members please promote this event.  
Michelle, Kelley, Cindy will attend.  
 

e. Translation of City Brochures 
 

Companies would not do this for free, but they will quote prices.  
 

VII. Public comment – Karen Yelder feels this Board is doing wonderful work. Karen met 
Michelle and Padma at the MLK event. She is excited to work with this Board.  

 
 
VIII. Adjournment  

 Motion to adjourn by Gladson Remos, seconded by Hailu Robele.  Meeting adjourned at 
 9:05 pm.     

 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
Michelle Haight, EIA Chair 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, EIA Recording Secretary 



campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



























campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



campbellld
Text Box
J-03c





campbellld
Text Box
J-03d





S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5

6 7 8 9 10 11 12
13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30 31

May 2007
S M T W T F S

1 2
3 4 5 6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30

June 2007May 2007

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
May 1

7:00pm Ethnic Issues 
Advisory Board 
(Conference Room C)

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

7:30pm CANCELLED Historic 
District Study Comm

2
8:30am Building Code Board 

of Appeals 
(Conference Room 
LL)

7:00pm Persons with 
Disabilities Meeting 
(Conference Room C)

3
1:00pm Advisory Committee 

for Senior Citizens 
(Community Center 
Room 301)

4 5

6

7 8 9
12:00pm Employee's 

Retirement System 
Board  (Conference 
Room C)

10
7:30pm Library Advisory 

Board (Library 
Director's Office)

11 12

13

14
7:00pm CANCELLED Liquor 

Advisory Committee 
Meeting (Conference 
Room Lower Level)

7:30pm City Council Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

15
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission 
(Conference Room C)

16
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

7:30pm CANCELLED Traffic 
Committee 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

17
7:00pm CANCELLED Parks & 

Recreation Advisory 
Board (Community 
Center - 3179 
Livernois)

18 19

20

21
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

22
7:00pm Troy Daze Advisory 

Committee 
(Community Center - 
3179 Livernois)

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study 
Meeting (Council 
Boardroom)

23
7:00pm Youth Council (Lower

Level Conference 
Room)

24 25 26

27

28
City Hall Closed

29 30 31

campbellld
Text Box
J-05



S M T W T F S
1 2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30

June 2007
S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 31

July 2007June 2007

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
June 1 2

3

4
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

5
7:00pm Ethnic Issues 

Advisory Board 
(Conference Room C)

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study 
Meeting (Council Boa

7:30pm Historic District Study
Committee (Museum 

6
8:30am Building Code Board 

of Appeals 
(Conference Room 
LL)

7:00pm Persons with 
Disabilities Meeting 
(Conference Room C)

7
1:00pm Advisory Committee 

for Senior Citizens 
(Community Center 
Room 301)

8 9

10

11
7:00pm Liquor Advisory 

Committee Meeting 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

12
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

13
12:00pm Employee's 

Retirement System 
Board  (Conference 
Room C)

1:00pm Retiree Health Care 
Benefits Board 
(Conference Room C)

14
7:30pm Library Advisory 

Board (Library 
Director's Office)

15 16

17

18
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

19
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission 
(Conference Room C)

20
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

7:30pm Traffic Committee 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

21
7:00pm Parks & Recreation 

Advisory Board 
(Community Center - 
3179 Livernois)

22 23

24

25 26
7:00pm Troy Daze Advisory 

Committee 
(Community Center - 

7:00pm Historical Commission
(Museum Resource 
Room)

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study Meetin

27 28 29 30



S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 31

July 2007
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 31

August 2007July 2007

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun

July 1

2 3
7:00pm Ethnic Issues 

Advisory Board 
(Conference Room C)

7:30pm Historic District Study
Committee (Museum 
Resource Room)

4
City Hall Closed

7:00pm Persons with 
Disabilities Meeting 
(Conference Room C)

5 6 7

8

9
7:00pm Liquor Advisory 

Committee Meeting 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

7:30pm City Council Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

10
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

11
9:00am Building Code Board 

of Appeals 
(Conference Room L

12:00pm Employee's 
Retirement System 
Board  (Conference 

12 13 14

15

16 17
3:00pm BRA Meeting (Council

Boardroom)
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)

18
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

7:30pm Traffic Committee 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

19
7:00pm Parks & Recreation 

Advisory Board 
(Community Center - 

7:00pm Cable Advisory 
Committee 
(Conference Room C)

20 21

22

23
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

24
7:00pm Troy Daze Advisory 

Committee 
(Community Center - 

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study 
Meeting (Council Boa

25 26 27 28

29

30
3:00pm LDFA Committee 

(Council Boardroom)

31



TO: Members of the Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  

Allan T. Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: May 3, 2007 

  
  

SUBJECT: Law Day 2007  
 

 
 

Consistent with this year’s Law Day theme, “Liberty Under the Law:  Empowering 
Youth, Assuring Democracy,” the City Attorney’s Office conducted a youth survey for the 
purpose of obtaining information from high school students in Troy.  The questions in the 
survey were designed to educate students about the current laws that affect young people, 
and also to solicit their opinions on the current laws, as well as their opinions on how the law 
can better serve their needs.   A report on the results of the survey is attached. 

The report will be submitted to local judges, legislators, and local newspapers.  It is 
our hope the results of the survey will be taken into consideration by all those involved in the 
implementation and enforcement of laws that affect young people, as well as the 
implementation of the future vision for our community.  The survey and the report will also be 
featured in the Law Day display, which will appear in the Troy Library during the month of 
May, and it will be available for public review, along with other information about Law Day, on 
the City Attorney’s web page, www.ci.troy.mi.us/law. 

The City Attorney’s Office also held its annual Law Day reception on May 2, 2007.  
Brochures and pamphlets with information on various legal topics were available for all 
attendees.  Additionally, as in years past, those attending the reception provided donations of 
materials, supplies and money for CARE House – the home of the Child Abuse and Neglect 
Council for Oakland County.  

If you have any questions, please let us know.        

 
    

campbellld
Text Box
J-06



 

 

 City of Troy Attorney’s Office  
        Law Day 2007 Youth Survey Report 

 
 

Law Day is a national day set aside to celebrate the rule of law.  Law Day 
underscores how law and the legal process have contributed to the freedoms that all 
Americans share. In 1961, May 1 was designated by a joint resolution of the United 
States Congress as the official day for celebrating Law Day.  However, Law Day 
programs, which are designed to help people understand how law keeps us free and how 
our legal system strives to achieve justice, often take place throughout the month of May 
each year.  
 

In recognition of this year’s theme for Law Day, “Liberty Under Law: 
Empowering Youth, Assuring Democracy” the Troy City Attorney’s Office conducted a 
Youth Survey.  The Survey was designed to both educate students as to the current 
provisions of various laws that affect young people, and to gather input on how the law 
can better serve their needs.  All the public school districts serving the City of Troy were 
given an opportunity to have their high school students participate in the survey.  Over 
250 surveys were completed and returned to the Troy City Attorney’s Office.  The survey 
questions are set forth below along with the various responses1 including the percentage 
of each response received. The survey also offered students an opportunity to provide 
written comments, which are also included in this report.  This report and other 
information about Law Day are available to the public on the City of Troy, City 
Attorney’s Office Web Page www.ci.troy.mi.us/law.   
 

We wish to thank all the students and teachers who participated in our Law Day 
Youth Survey.  Your participation helped us accomplish one of the main goals of this 
year’s Law Day theme, which is to assure that the voices of our youth are heard and 
considered within our democracy.  

 
 

  Survey Results 
  
1. In Roper v Simmons, 543 US 551(2005), the United States Supreme Court ruled 
that the death penalty may not be applied to minors, citing the Eighth and Fourteenth 
Amendments. Do you agree with this decision of the Supreme Court? 

 
A.  I agree with the decision because a person under 18 years of age 

should not be held to the same standard of accountability as an 

                                                           
1 Many of the student participants were inadvertently provided with an earlier draft of the survey.  The 
questions in the earlier draft are the same as those set forth in the final version, except the final version had 
one additional question (Question 15) and the wording of the choices of responses for some of the 
questions was slightly different.  Those questions where the wording of the choices of available responses 
varied between the earlier draft and the final version are addressed in subsequent footnotes. 



 

 

adult. 52% 
B.  I disagree with the decision because a young person (for example, 

a person between the ages of 13 and 17), who commits a serious 
crime, should be subject to the same punishment as an adult. 19% 

C.  I neither agree nor disagree because I am opposed to the death 
penalty. 29% 

 
2. School Boards are made up of elected officials who make decisions for the 
students in their districts.  Under Section 492 of Michigan’s Election Law, MCL 168.492, 
students cannot vote for the School Board members that represent them until they reach 
18 years of age. Do you agree with this law? 

 
A. This is the way it should be. 29% 
B. All students should be able to vote for School Board members. 6% 
C. Students’ age 16 or older should be able to vote for School Board 

29% 
D. All high school students should be able to vote for School Board 

members. 36% 
 

3. In 1971, when the Twenty-Sixth Amendment to the United States Constitution 
was ratified, the voting age was lowered to 18 from 21.  The majority of students in high 
school cannot vote in elections. What is the appropriate voting age?2 

 
A. The minimum voting age should be lowered to 16. 15% 
B. The minimum voting age should be lowered to 17. 6% 
C. The minimum voting age should remain at 18. 76% 
D. The minimum voting age should be changed to 21. 3% 

 
4. Due to advances in technology, images, videos, and music can be obtained rapidly 
through Internet downloading.  Often this downloading constitutes a violation of the 
Copyright Act, 17 USC § 101, et seq., which allows an artist to protect their monetary 
interest in their own work. Do you think free downloading is a crime? 

 
A. It is stealing and should be treated as a crime. 10% 
B. It does not harm anyone and should be allowed as long as the 

person who downloads the material agrees to not sell the material 
for a profit. 55% 

C. Since the artist is making plenty of money, the person who 
downloads the material should not be subject to any adverse 
consequences or restrictions. 10% 

D. The person violating the copyright should not be charged with a 
crime but should be required to pay the artist for what they have 
downloaded. 25% 

 
                                                           
2 The earlier draft had the choice of responses in a different order.  This report accurately reflects the 
opinion of all participants as to what the minimum voting age should be.  



 

 

5. Under Michigan law, MCL 722.754, a township, city or village may impose a 
curfew of minors by ordinance.  A typical curfew ordinance may make it illegal for a 
person under the age of 18 to be out of their homes from 11pm to 6am. Choose the one 
response that best fits your belief with regard to curfews.3 

 
A. There should be no curfew of minors because young people should 

have the same right to be outside of their homes as adults. 19% 
B. There should be a curfew for minors, but it should only apply to 

young children and not high school students. 38% 
C. A curfew of minors under the age of 18 is a good idea because it 

keeps young people out of trouble, and it protects children from 
harm. 43% 

 
6.   The Federal minimum wage may soon be raised from $5.15 to $7.25.  Some 
people believe that the minimum wage for people under 18 should remain at $5.15.  
Choose the response that best reflects your belief regarding a lower minimum wage for 
those under 18. 

 
A. I believe the minimum wage for people under 18 should be lower 

than the minimum wage for adults because most young people who 
are working are working part time simply for extra discretionary 
spending money. 8% 

B. I believe the minimum wage for people under 18 should be the 
same as the minimum wage for adults because the value of 
services provided by workers are the same regardless of age and 
therefore the law should not discriminate against young people. 
74% 

C. I believe the minimum wage for people under 18 should be lower 
than the minimum wage for adults if the young person is working 
only for extra discretionary spending money. However, if the 
young person is working to help support his/her family or saving 
the money for college then they should earn the same minimum 
wage as adults. 15% 

D. I believe there should be no Federal minimum wage because free 
market forces should determine salaries and wages. 3% 

 
7.    The Michigan Legislature has passed several laws designed to promote school     
safety.  Among the laws passed is a law allowing school officials to search a student’s 
locker without a warrant (MCL 380.1306), a law requiring a student to be expelled for 
certain acts such as bringing a dangerous weapon to school (MCL 380.1311), laws 
requiring the board of a school district to obtain the criminal history of individuals 

                                                           
3 The earlier draft had the following choices of responses:  A. (same); B. (same); C. A curfew of minors 
under the age of 18 is a good idea because it keeps kids out of trouble; D. A curfew of minors under the age 
of 18 is a good idea because it protects children; E. Both C and D above.  In this report, all those who 
submitted the earlier draft and chose C, D or E are included in the percentage for those who chose response 
C in the final version. 



 

 

employed by the school district and to terminate employees who have been convicted of 
certain offenses (MCL 380.1230g, MCL 380.1230c, and MCL 380.1535a), and laws 
establishing school safety zones within an area that lies 1,000 feet from the school and 
prohibiting registered sex offenders from residing within such zones (MCL 28.733 and 
MCL 28.735).  What best describes your belief with regard to Michigan’s School Safety 
Laws?   

 
A. I feel totally safe in school and I am confident Michigan’s School 

Safety Laws will protect me. 74% 
B. I do not feel safe in school and believe that more school safety 

laws should be in place. 10% 
C. I feel Michigan’s School Safety laws are overly restrictive and 

interfere with the rights of students and individuals employed by 
school districts. 16% 

 
8. What issues affecting youth do you believe should be addressed by our 
representatives in Lansing and Washington? Please write your answer in the space below.  
 
In question 8, the survey requested a narrative response.  The majority of the participants 
did not provide a response.  A summary of each narrative response to question 8 is set 
forth below: 
 

• The ability to do things like jobs at an earlier age 
• They do a good job addressing issues of youth 
• More rights, allowed to share views, restrictions on use of computers 

lessened 
• Schools should have no say on dress codes 
• Raise age of consent to 21, death penalty for illegal drugs, guns should 

be prohibited except for policemen 
• No curfew, education should be required, 16 year olds should be able 

to vote 
• Movies should not be rated, kids should be able to see R-rated movies 
• It should be made clear whether it is legal or illegal to download 

internet music so kids know what they can do 
• Raising taxes and cutting funds hurts students - how do you expect us 

to learn when there is no money put into education 
• School lunches should be healthier and provide more nutrients with 

less calories 
• Driving age should be lowered to 15 
• Curfews are a good thing but instead of 6am, it should be 4:30 or 5am 

because some high school students run in the morning or drive places 
on the weekend 

• Bad teachers 
• Education, alcohol abuse 
• Getting credits for playing sports 



 

 

• Honors grading scale should be lowered because classes are harder, 
more graduation requirements to push students more, sports as a gym 
credit 

• We (high school students) should be treated the same as adults unless 
we do something to change minds 

• The government should put more emphasis on avoiding drunk driving 
and driving under the influence of a controlled substance so that 
innocent people, especially youth, are not killed due to lack of 
regulations for drinking and/or use of a controlled substance and 
driving. 

• Prayer should be put back in schools because our country was 
founded as “one nation under God” 

• I think discrimination in schools is a major issue, there should be 
harsher rules against discrimination based on race or peoples looks, 
etc. 

• The government should find ways and promote programs to get 
young people out to vote 

• Providing places where young people without a lot of money and/or a 
car can gather to keep them out of a problem  

• Girls sport seasons, more healthy and affordable cafeteria food, more 
education and help with college, advanced programs and classes 

• Discrimination in schools 
• Students right to free speech, full sex education with coverage on 

protection, giving student information to military under No Child Left 
Behind Act 

• Homework, students should get homework but not large amounts 
• I think some teachers are mean to students and kids get scared 
• Sanitation in school bathrooms 
• Underage drinking and drug use 
• More education should be provided 
• Curfews should be lowered down to 10:00 
• Violent video games and violent children 
• Peer pressure, smoking, and pressure to do well in school, economy 

and jobs 
• Adults are biased against teenagers - police officers will assume we 

are up to something if they see us outside at 11:05 
• Dress codes - schools without dress codes have teens with short skirts, 

revealing tops, etc., other issues are curfew and downloading 
• Curfews, minimum wage, credits 
• Lack of job opportunities such as programming, graphics, etc. 
• Flag burning should be banned 
• The people in Lansing should work on school safety to avoid more 

shootings 
• No more final exams –if we learned the subjects once, no point in 

learning them again 



 

 

• The time school begins – if school starts later students will be more 
aware during school hours 

• Tolerance of peoples differences – diversity programs starting at a 
young age will help people get along and prevent resentment 

• Alcohol control 
• Gay rights in school 
• All the bad stuff 
• Teens and drugs should be addressed 
• Dress code regarding skirt lengths should be more lenient 
• Gun control, alcohol restriction 
• Making more skate parks of excellent quality 
• Laws about the minimum age to earn money 
• Prayer in school 
• Gay and minority discrimination 
• School should start later 
• Drinking age 
• Driver’s training is too long 
• School starts too early 
• Less school 
• Prayer in school 
• Sex offenders should be further away from schools 
• Stricter laws for people who violate or harm children 
• Drinking age should be lowered because people can go to war and die 

without being able to drink 
• Curfew change to 12am, drinking age changed because 18 year old 

men can fight and get shot for our country, legalize marijuana 
• Legalize marijuana 
• Too much homework, it should be limited to a number of hours per 

night because of extracurricular activities, back packs that are too 
heavy could cause back damage 

• More stores (A & W, 7-11) should be built in Troy - I’m tired of 
seeing a bank built on every street corner 

• Teachers should not have right to search back packs - I understand 
lockers, but not back packs 

• Drugs and alcohol 
• Drinking and driving 
• Test requirements, curfews, driving fast 
• Change age to 16 for R-rated movies 
• Legalize marijuana, drinking age should be18 
• Drinking age should be 18 because you can fight and die in wars at 

that age 
• Drugs in the community are affecting youth 
• Drugs and alcohol 
• School policies, age of consent, R-rated movies 



 

 

• Minimum wage and school hours 
• Mainstreaming in schools 
• Drinking age should be 18 since at that age you are responsible 

enough to vote and at age 18 you should have full responsibility and 
control of your life. 

• School should start later so students will be more awake which leads 
to better learning, more time for homework and time to eat breakfast 

• Curfews and minimum wage issues should be changed - kids under 
age 18 work just as hard as anyone, curfews are not needed because if 
the parents know where there kid is, it should not be a problem 

• The use of drugs, guns and weapons, sex 
• More break time for students off from school 
• The smoking age should be raised because many young people are 

ruining their lungs 
• Students at the age of 14 should be allowed to work at any job 
• Teenagers below the age of 18 should be able to vote because we’re 

affected by laws too 
• Use of cell phones by students should be addressed - use of them 

before and after school is okay, but many kids text during the day 
when they should be learning, and this is not right 

• An issue that could be addressed is starting school so early in the 
morning 

• I think the representatives are doing just fine 
• Minimum wage 
• There are a lot of people who do drugs and they should address 

having more rules and more enforcement of laws on drugs 
• Youth should have more say in the government 
• Students choosing school board members 
• We should have longer days and longer breaks 
• Lunches, bullying, teacher/student conflicts 
• MEAP testing is too stressful and somewhat unneeded 
• Adults who buy alcohol and cigarettes for kids is affecting youth a lot 

and it should be stopped 
• Lower drinking age 
• Students should be as equal as teachers 
• MIP’s and MIA’s 
• Michigan merit award should be available to those who choose an out 

of state college, it’s unfair that the money can only be used in state 
• School funding 
• Affirmative action 
• Drinking age 
• Student safety 
• Obsession with pop culture, rap, T.V., radio, My Space, MTV and 

that whole culture – it’s ridiculous, kids need hobbies and something 
positive to balance school and outside life 



 

 

• Underage drinking 
• Hard core drugs, not marijuana 
• The drinking and partying concerning high school and college 

students, harassment (making fun of kids for any reason) 
• MIP’s – it’s all about money 
• Searching of cars on school property 
• Civil rights of students, minimum wage 
• Protection of transfer students to a school in a different area bring 

questionable results that give the transfer students a blatant disregard 
for the people around them due to the protection they receive 

• Lowering the voting age 
• All issues threatening our health should be addressed 
• Lower voting age 
• Marijuana should be legalized for personal use 
• Racism, underage sex 
• Increasing student motivation in school 
• Legalize marijuana, schools should not put someone on contract if 

they miss too many days of school, police should do other things on 
Friday nights other than just looking to bust kids 

• Those who are expelled from school or had to drop out of school 
should be given an inexpensive second chance  

• Racism 
• Harsher punishment for underage drinking 
• Laws regarding minors drinking alcohol and using drugs – laws 

should be harsher and enforcement should be better 
• Drinking 
• The biggest issue affecting youth is drugs – there is crime because 

people need money for drugs, and there is violence due to drugs 
• Reckless driving, drinking and driving 
• Safety in school 
• Music in schools, music programs are rapidly being eliminated while 

schools build new facilities and fund other departments 
• Protection at school and keeping a closer eye on the drug distributor 
 

9.  Do you believe our representatives in Lansing and Washington adequately 
represent the interests of youth? 

 
A. Yes, absolutely. 4% 
B. Yes, somewhat. 49% 
C. No, not really. 40% 
D. No, not at all. 7% 
 

10. In 1979, the legal drinking age in Michigan was raised from 18 to 21. The latest 
scientific research suggests that the brain is not fully developed until a person reaches his 



 

 

or her mid twenties. Given the latest studies, do you believe 21 is the appropriate age?4 
 
A. Yes. 58% 
B. No, the drinking age should be raised. 17% 
C. No, the drinking age should be lowered back to 18. 23% 
D. There should be no minimum drinking age. 2% 
 

11. One important principal of law in our country is that a person put on trial should 
have a jury of his or her peers. However, under Michigan law, when juveniles are 
prosecuted and put on trial, the jury is composed of adults. Do you believe this is fair?5 
 

A. Yes. 46% 
B.         No. 54% 
 

12. Under Michigan Law, a minor cannot enter into a contract with an adult.  For 
example, a car dealer will not sell a car to a minor unless an adult, typically a parent or 
guardian, signs the purchase agreement. Do you believe minors should be allowed to 
enter into contracts with adults without gaining the approval of a parent or guardian?6 

 
A. Yes, at any age. 8% 
B. Yes, if the minor is at least 16. 39% 
C. Yes, if the minor is at least 17. 4% 
D. No, allowing minors to enter into contracts would lead to abuses 

like fraud or duress. 49% 
 

13. In Michigan, the Holmes Youthful Trainee Act (HYTA) provides that individuals 
between the ages of 17 and 21 who plead guilty to a criminal offense (misdemeanors and 
felonies), other than a traffic offense, major drug crime, a crime penalized by 
imprisonment for life and certain other specified crimes, may be assigned the status of 
youthful trainee and earn a dismissal of the criminal offense if the terms and conditions 
of the court ordered probation are complied with.   Which of the following best describes 
your opinion concerning this law? 

 
A. This is a good law because it provides young people who make a 

mistake with an opportunity to avoid a criminal record. 55% 
                                                           
4 This question was worded differently in the earlier draft.  However, both the final version and the earlier 
draft inquire whether the legal drinking age should remain at 21, be raised, be lowered to 18, or if there 
should be no minimum legal drinking age.  The responses from those who took the earlier draft are 
incorporated accordingly.  The earlier draft also allowed participants to select a response indicating the 
consumption of alcohol should be prohibited at any age.  Approximately 4% of those who took the earlier 
draft of the survey chose that response. 
5 The choice of responses set forth in this report are those that were set forth in the earlier draft.  The final 
version had a choice of three detailed responses as to why the current system is fair. However, since the 
basic issue is whether it is fair that only adults may serve as jurors in juvenile cases, the earlier draft choice 
of responses is used in this report.  The responses to this question from those who took the final version of 
the survey are incorporated accordingly. 
6 The choice of responses was worded differently in the earlier draft, but the above results accurately reflect 
the opinions of all respondents regarding the age a person must be before entering into a contract.  



 

 

B. This is a bad law because if an individual commits a crime, there 
should be a public record of conviction for that individual 
regardless of the age of the person when the crime was committed. 
18% 

C. I agree that young people who commit minor offenses should have 
an opportunity to earn a dismissal of the charges, but the current 
law is too lenient because it should not apply to felonies. 27% 

 
 
14.       The Michigan law that makes it a crime to operate a motor vehicle while under 
the influence of alcohol, a controlled substance, or a combination of alcohol and a 
controlled substance has a zero tolerance provision for persons who are less than 21 years 
of age.  Under the law, a person under the age of 21 who has “any” bodily alcohol 
content (or who has the presence of “any” controlled substance in the person’s system) 
and drives can be convicted.  Which of the following describes your belief as to the effect 
of this law? 
 

A. People in my age group are well aware of this law and it is very 
effective at preventing teenage drinking and driving. 31% 

B. Although people in my age group are aware of the law, it is not 
effective at preventing teenage drinking and driving. 59% 

C. Most people in my age group are not aware of this law. 10% 
 

 15.       According to the Supreme Court in Tinker v Des Moines School District, 393 US 
503 (1969), if there is no interference with school activities, students may wear armbands 
to protest a war. A school’s attempt to prohibit the armbands was an impermissible 
prohibition against the expression of speech under the First and Fourteenth Amendments.  
Many schools have dress codes that ban students from wearing hats.  Courts have upheld 
school dress codes on the basis that a student’s attire can have a positive or negative 
effect on the learning process and such codes are needed to limit distractions that may 
result from a student’s appearance. With this in mind, which of the following best 
describes your belief: 
  

A. A school ban on the wearing of hats should be abolished based on the 
First and Fourteenth Amendments. 55% 

B. A ban on the wearing of hats does not violate the Constitution because 
a no hat policy results in students staying focused on instruction rather 
than on what hat someone is wearing. 31% 

C. Hats should be allowed in school, but only if the student is wearing the 
hat to express his or her opinion on something. 14% 

 
Thank you for participating in the City of Troy Attorney’s Office Law Day 2007 Youth 
Survey.  If there are other legal issues that you want us to hear about, or if you wish to 
provide further comment related to any of the questions in this survey, or if you have any 
ideas on how the law can better serve the needs and interest of young people, please 
respond in the space provided below.   



 

 

 
The majority of the students participating in the survey did not provide additional 
comment.  A summary of each additional comment received is set forth below: 
 

• If you lower the drinking age to 18 it won’t be such a thrill to party 
• I think if you can fight in a war you should be able to drink beer and there 

should be no curfew from the age of 13 
• I respect and agree with the DUI law, but teen drinking is something really 

common, and I don’t think there should be such a harsh penalty for “minor 
in possession” - I think that making that law, it helps people to have other 
drugs of choice, like overdosing on medication and such 

• MEAP test = waste of time 
• The new law in Troy stating you can’t leave your dog on a leash outside for 

more than 4 hours needs to be changed - it’s not fair to those who can’t 
afford a cyclone fence or an invisible fence and it would not be fair to put the 
dog in a 10 by 10 cage 

• I think we should be told, or have a complaint box for local problems 
• Legalize motorized go-peds, dirt bikes for people under 16, police should lay 

off a bit in Troy and let there be parties 
• Survey was interesting, send more  
• Stop building banks and build smarter stuff that will make more money 
• School should be year round without vacations 
• Legalize dirt bikes and snowmobiles and airsoft guns for kids, Hooters 

should get its liquor license, Troy cops should stop ticketing people for stupid 
stuff, legalize marijuana 

• I think having more police out in the evening would reduce drunk driving 
and crimes 

• Higher minimum wage 
• You guys are good 
• More rights for minors 
• People should be able to have a criminal record erased after probation or 

community service, everyone makes mistakes, it’s part of growing up, but 
being prosecuted for the rest of one’s life isn’t fair because of a stupid child 
mistake 

• Homeless people should be given a second chance and taken in and taught so 
their lives can be better and we can get more American people in our work 
force   

• Get rid of the MIA law – you can get in trouble for helping a friend if they 
are intoxicated – don’t punish people for doing the right thing 



campbellld
Text Box
J-07




	AGENDA: May 21, 2007
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	Presentation by Oakland County Commissioner Tim Burns on Var
	Service Commendation – Ann Tyrrell
	Service Commendations Presented to Troy SeniorNet Computer L
	Falun Dafa Day – May 21, 2007


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Conditional Rezoning Application (File No. CR-002) – Pro
	C-2 Rezoning Application (File Number Z-625 B) – Southwest C

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 Hooters v. Troy – Proposed Consent Judgment

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):
	a\) Service Commendation – Homes for Our�
	b\) Service Commendation – Linda Thielfo�
	c\) Proclamation in Recognition of Falun�

	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Aw�
	b\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Aw�
	c\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: T�

	E-5 Morrell v Troy, et al

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Histo
	F-2 Standard Resolutions 1, 2 and 3 for Paving of the East ½
	F-3 Approval of Project Plan for Expansion and Improvements 
	F-4 Bid Waiver – Sanitary Sewer Televising Inspection Equipm
	F-5 Scheduling a Joint Meeting with the Chamber of Commerce

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	Rezoning Application (File Number Z-722) – Northwest Corner 

	G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1 No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – January 18, 2007
	Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – February 15, 200
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – Apr
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – Apr
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – April 5, 2007
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – April
	Library Advisory Board/Final – April 12, 2007
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Final- April 17, 2007
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – May 3, 2007
	Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – May 8, 2007

	J-2 Department Reports:
	City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – April 30, 2007

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Thanks to Jeff Biegler, Ed Carpus and the Troy Par
	Letter of Thanks to the Troy Police Department from Bambi Ma
	Letter to Chief Craft from the FBI National Academy Associat
	Letter to Chief Craft from the FBI National Academy Associat

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Law Day 2007
	J-7  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session:

	RECESSED
	RECONVENED
	ADJOURNMENT



